
1. REPORT DATE: 00/00/00 
2. BUREAU: FUS 
3 . SECTION(S) : 
5. APPROVED BY: 

DIRECTOR: 
SUPERVISOR: 

6. PERSON IN CHARGE: 
;. DOCKET NO: A-311242 

CAPTION SHEET LSE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

4. PUBLIC MEETING DATE: 
00/00/00 

7. DATE FILED: 01/28/03 
9. EFFECTIVE DATE: 00/00/00 

PARTY/COMPLAINANT: 

RESPONDENT/APPLICANT: FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTI 

COMP/APP COUNTY: UTILITY CODE: 311242 

ALLEGATION OR SUBJECT 

APPLICATION OF FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTIONS LLC FOR APPROVAL TO OFFER,, 
RENDER, FURNISH OR SUPPLY TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES AS A RESELLER OF TOLL . 
SERVICES TO THE PUBLIC IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA. 

NT 

JAN3Q2003 



C O U D E R T B R O T H E R S L L P 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1637 I STREET. N.W. 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 3 0 0 0 6 - 4 0 0 7 
TEL: <aoa> 7 7 5 - 5 I O O 
FAX; ( 3 0 2 ) 7 7 5 - I 168 
WWW.COUDERT.COM 

BY FEDERAL EXPRESS 

LOS ANGELES. N E W - f f t R K r ^ A U ) ' 
SAN FRANCISCO. WASHINGTON 

EUROPE 
ANTWERP. BERLIN, BRUSSELS, FRANKFURT, 
GHENT, LONDON, MILAN. MOSCOW, MUNICH. 
PARIS, ROME. ST. P O E R S B U R G , STOCKHOLM 

A S I A / P A C I F I C 
ALMATY, BANGKOK, BEIJING. HONG KONG, 
JAKARTA. SINGAPORE, SYDNEY, TOKYO 

A S S O C I A T E D O F F I C E S 
BUDAPEST, MEXICO CITY, PRAGUE. SHANGHAI 

January 28, 2003 

James J. McNulty 
Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Ulility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
2nd Floor, Room N201 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

RECEIVED 
JAN 2 8 2003 

SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

Re: France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C; Application for 
Approval to Offer, Render, Fumish or Supply Resold Local Exchange 
and Interexchange Telecommunications Services to the Public 

Dear Mr. McNulty: P \ - 3 W 9 ^ ] ^ 0 0 0 ^ 

On behalf of France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C, enclosed for filing please 
find an original plus three copies of its Application for Approval to Offer, Render, Furnish or 
Supply Resold Local Exchange and Interexchange Telecommunications Services to the Public 
in the Commonweallh ofPennsylvania. 

Also enclosed is a check payable to the "Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission" in 
the amount of $250.00 lo cover the requisite filing fee. Please file-stamp and relurn the extra 
copy ofthis filing in the pre-addrcssed, stamped envelope provided for this puipose. 

Kindly direct any questions to the undersigned. 

Regards, 

Enclosures 
cc: Office of Consumer Advocate 

Office of the Attorney General 
Office of Small Business Advocate 
All Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers in PA 

William K Coulter 
Elizabeth Holowinski 
Counsel for France Telecom 
Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 

F0lQ 



Application of: 

France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C, t/a. 

CEIVED 
J^N 2 8 2003 

PUC-377 
Rev.10/01 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

for approval to offer, render, furnish or supply telecommunications services to the public in the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

1. IDENTITY OF THE APPLICANT: The name, address, telephone number, and fax number of the Applicant. 

France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive, Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 2 0171 
T e l : 703-375-4919 
Fax: 703-375-4905 

Please identify any predecessors of the Applicant and provide other names under which the Applicant has operated within 
the preceding five years, including name, address, and telephone number. 

None. 

ATTORNEY: The name, address, telephone number, and fax number of the Appiicant's attorney. 

W i l l i a m K. Coulter 
E l i z a b e t h Holowinski 
Coudert Brothers LLP 
1627 I St r e e t , N.W., Suite 1200 
Washington, DC 20006 
Te l : 202-775-5100 
Fax: 202-775-1168 

CONTACTS: 

A) APPLICATION: The name, title, address, telephone number, and fax number of the person to whom 
questions about this application should be addressed. 

W i l l i a m K. Coulter or 
Eli z a b e t h Holowinski 
Coudert Brothers LLP 
1627 I St r e e t , N.W., Suite 1200 
Washington, DC 20006 
Tel: 202-775-5100 
Fax: 202-775-1168 
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B) PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (PEMA): The name, title, 
address, telephone number and FAX number of the person with whom contact should be made by 
PEMA. 

Russel Alan Emerson 
c/o Equant 
12490 Sunrise V a l l e y Drive 
Reston, VA 20196 
Te l : 703-689-5611 
Fax: 703-689-5527 

C) RESOLVING COMPLAINTS; Name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the 
person and an alternate person responsible for addressing customer complaints. These persons will 
ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for resolving complaints and queries filed with the Public Utility 
Commission or other agencies. 

Charles Hartman 
France Telecom 
12490 Sunrise V a l l e y Drive 
Reston, VA 20196 
Tel: 866-280-3726 
Fax: 703-689-5527 

4. FICTITIOUS NAME: 

X The Applicant will not be using a fictitious name. 

[ J The Applicant will be using a fictitious name. Attach to the Application a copy of the Applicant's filing with the 
Commonwealth's Department of State pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-953. 

5. BUSINESS ENTITY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS: 

• The Applicant is a sole proprietor. 

The Applicant is a: 

O General partnership 

• Domestic limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8511) 

• 'Foreign limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8582) 

• Domestic registered limited liability partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8201) 

'Foreign registered limited liability general partnership {15 Pa. C.S. §8211) 

'Provide name and address of Corporate Registered Office Provider or Registered Office within PA. 

Attach to the application the name and address of partners. If any partner is not an individual, identify 
the business nature of the partner entity and identify its partners or officers. 

Attach to the application proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing 
requirements as indicated above. 
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5. (Continued) 

The Applicant is a: 

• Domestic corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §1306) 

• 'Foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124) 

• Domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8913) 

X 'Foreign limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8981) 

'Provide name and address of Corporate Registered Office Provider or Registered Office within PA. 

See E x h i b i t A . 

Attach to the application proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing 
requirements as indicated above. Additionally, provide a copy ofthe Applicant's Articles 
of Incorporation or a Certificate of Organization. The Applicant is incorporated in the 
State of Delaware 

Give name and address of officers: 

See E x h i b i t B. 

6. AFFILIATES AND P R E D E C E S S O R S WITHIN PENNSYLVANIA: 

The Applicant has no affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done business in 
Pennsylvania. 

X The Applicant has affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done business in 
Pennsylvania. Name and address of the affiliates. State whether they are jurisdictional public utilities. Give 
docket numbers for the authority of such affiliates. 

See E x h i b i t C. 

If the Applicant or affiliates has a predecessor who has done business within Pennsylvania, give name and 
address of the predecessors and state whether they were jurisdictional public utilities. Give the docket 
numbers for the authority of such predecessors. 
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7. AFFILIATES AND P R E D E C E S S O R S RENDERING PUBLIC UTILITY S E R V I C E OUTSIDE 
PENNSYLVANIA: 

X The Applicant has no affiliates rendering or predecessors which rendered public utility service outside 
Pennsylvania. 

• The Applicant has affiliates rendering or predecessors which rendered public utility service outside 
Pennsylvania. Name and address of the affiliates. Name and address of the predecessors (please specify 
which). 

8. APPLICANT'S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (Select and complete the appropriate statement) 

X The applicant is not presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a public utility. 

The applicant is presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a: 

• Interexchange Toll Reseller, interLATA and/or IntraLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1+, 800, WATS, Travel and Debit 
Cards) 

a Interexchange Toll Facilities-based carrier, InterLATA and/or IntraLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1+, 800, WATS, 
Travel and Debit Cards) 

Competitive Access Provider (dedicated point-to-point or multipoint service; voice or data) 

a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier: 

Facilities-Based 

Non-facilities-Based 

a Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier. 

• Other (Identify). 
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9. APPLICANT'S PROPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a: 

X Interexchange Toll Reseller, InterLATA and/or IntraLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1 +, 800, WATS, Travel and Debit 
Cards) 

a Interexchange Toll Facilities-based carrier, InterLATA and/or IntraLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1+, 800, WATS, 
Travel and Debit Cards) 

X Competitive Access Provider (dedicated point-to-point or multipoint service; voice or data) 

X Competitive Local Exchange Carrier: 

a Facilities-based 

X Non-facilities-based 

Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier 

• Other (Identify). 

10. PROPOSED SERVICES: Describe in detail the services which the Applicant proposes to offer. If proposing 
to provide more than one category in Item #9, clearly and separately delineate the services within each proposed 
operation. 

The Applicant plans t o o f f e r a l l forms of l o c a l exchange 

telecommunications services on a resale basis w i t h i n the s t a t e . 

I n i t i a l l y , A pplicant w i l l provide Local Exchange Service, V i r t u a l 

P r i v a t e Network Service, Local Dedicated Service, I n t e g r a t e d Services 

D i g i t a l Network Primary Rate I n t e r f a c e (ISDN-PRI). Applicant also 

plans t o o f f e r a l l forms of interexchange telecommunications services 

on a resale basis w i t h i n the State. I n i t i a l l y , A p plicant w i l l provide 

Switched Interexchange Service, Dedicated Interexchange Service, Frame 

Relay Service, C a r r i e r 800 Service and Travel C a l l i n g Card Service. 

11. SERVICE AREA: Describe the geographic service area in which the Applicant proposes to offer services. 
Clearly and separately delineate the service territory for each category listed in Item #9. For Competitive Local 
Exchange Carrier operations, you must name and serve the Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers in whose 
territory you request authority. 

Interexchange T o l l Reseller: Statewide. 
CLEC : Statewide . 
CAP: Statewide 
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12. MARKET: Describe the customer base to which the Applicant proposes to market its services. Clearly and 
separately delineate a market for each category listed in Item #9. 

Interexchange T o l l Reseller: Business customers only. 
CLEC: Business customers only. 
CAP: Business customers only. 

13. PROPOSED TARIFF(S): Each category of proposed operations must have a separate and distinct proposed 
tariff setting forth the rates, rules and regulations of the Applicant. Every proposed tariff shall state on its cover 
page the nature of the proposed operations described therein, i.e., IXC R/S, CLEC, CAP, or IXC F/B. A copy of all 
proposed tariffs must be appended to each original and duplicate original and copy of Form 377. 

See E x h i b i t s D and E. 

14. FINANCIAL: Attach the following to the Application: 

A general description of the Applicant's capitalization and, if applicable, its corporate stock structure; 
See E x h i b i t F . 

Current balance sheet, Income Statement, and Cash Flow Statement of Applicant or Affiliated Company, if 
relying on affiliate for financial security; See E x h i b i t G. 

A tentative operating balance sheet and a projected income statement for the first year of operation within the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania; provide the name, title, address, telephone number and fax number of the 
Applicant's custodian for its accounting records and supporting documentation; and indicate where the Applicant's 
accounting records and supporting documentation are, or will be, maintained. See E x h i b i t H. 

If available, include bond rating, letters of credit, credit reports, insurance coverage and reports, and major 
contracts. N o t a v a i l a b l e . 

15. START DATE: The Applicant proposes to begin offering services on or about i m m e d i a t e l y u p o n 
c e r t i f i c a t i o n . 

16. FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS: Attach to the Application a statement of further developments, planned or 
contemplated, to which the present Application is preliminary or with which it forms a part, together with a 
reference to any related proceeding before the Commission. 

None. 
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17. NOTICE: Pursuant to 52 Pa. Code §5.14, you are required to serve a copy of the signed and verified 
Application, with attachments, on the below-listed parties, and file proof of such service with this Commission: 

18. 

Office of Consumer Advocate Office of Small Business Advocate 
555 Walnut Street Commerce Building, Suite 1102 
5th Floor, Forum Place 300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1923 Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Office of the Attorney General 
Office of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14 t h Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

A certificate of service must be attached to the Application as proof of service that the 
Application has been served on the above-listed parties. A copy of any Competitive 
Local Exchange Carrier Application must also be served on any and/or all Incumbent 
Local Exchange Carrier(s) in the geographical area where the Applicant proposes to 
offer services. See E x h i b i t I . 

FEDERAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1996: State whether the Applicant claims a particular status 
pursuant to the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996. Provide supporting facts. 

Applicant intends t o provide i n t e r s t a t e and i n t e r n a t i o n a l services t o 
customers on a p r i v a t e c a r r i e r basis as defined under f e d e r a l law. 

19. COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person 
identified in this Application has been convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity. Identify all 
proceedings, limited to proceedings dealing with business operations in the last five (5) years, whether before an 
administrative body or in a judicial forum, in which the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person 
identified herein has been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as to the resolution or present status 
of any such proceedings. 

The Applicant, i t s a f f i l i a t e s , predecessors of e i t h e r , or any person 
i d e n t i f i e d i n t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n has never been convicted of a crime 
i n v o l v i n g f r a u d or s i m i l a r a c t i v i t y . 
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20. FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statement(s) herein may be grounds for 
denying the Appiication or, if later discovered, for revoking any authority granted pursuant to the Application. This 
Application is subject to 18 Pa. C.S. §§4903 and 4904, relating to perjury and falsification in official matters. 

2 1 . CESSATION: The Applicant understands that if it plans to cease doing business within the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, it is under a duty to request authority from the Commission for permission prior to ceasing business. 

Applicant:: 

By: 

Title: 

Jean-Sebastien Falisse 

Treasurer of France Telecom 
Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
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22. AFFIDAVIT: Attach to the Application an affidavit as follows: 

AFFIDAVIT 

[Commonwealth/State] of V i r g i n i a : 

ss. 

County of: F a i r f a x 

J e a n - S e b a s t i e n F a l i s s e , Affiant, being duly [swom/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

[He] is the T r e a s u r e r (Office of Affiant) of France Telecom C o r p o r a t e S o l u t i o n s L . L . C ; 
(Name of Applicant) 

That [he/she] is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said corporation; 

That F r a n c e T e l e c o m C o r p o r a t e S o l u t i o n s L . L . C , the Applicant herein, acknowledges that 
it may have an obligation to serve or to continue to serve the public by virtue of the Applicant commencing the 
rendering of service pursuant to this Application consistent with the Public Utility Code of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, Title 66 of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes; with the Federal Telecommunications Act of 
1996, signed February 6, 1996, or with other applicable statutes or regulations; 

That F r a n c e T e l e c o m C o r p o r a t e S o l u t i o n s L . L . C , the Applicant herein, asserts that it 
possesses the requisite technical, managerial, and financial fitness to render public utility service within the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that the Applicant will abide by all applicable federal and state laws and 
regulations and by the decisions of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. 

That F r a n c e T e l e c o m C o r p o r a t e S o l u t i o n s L . L . C , the Applicant herein, asserts that it has 
contacted the appropriate 911 Coordinator(s), and that arrangements are under way for the provisioning of 
emergency 911 service in each of the Counties/Cities where service is to be provided. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his knowledge, information and belief, and that he 
expects said entity to be able to prove the same at any hearing thereof. 

&f2J^< 
S i0natyreo£Aff i ant 

Sworn and subscribe before me this day of 
MfcAth 

. pm3 
Year 

V 
ignature of official administering oath 

iMy Commission expires J ^ j 

''1 
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23. VERIFICATION STATEMENT: Attach to the Application a verification statement as follows: 

[Commonwealth/State] of V i r g i n i a : 

ss. 

County of: F a i r f a x : 

Jean-Sebastien Fal isse , Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

He is the Treasurer (Office of Affiant) of France Telecom Corporate So lu t ions L . L . C ; 
(Name of Applicant] 

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said corporation; 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his knowledge, information, and belief and that he 
expects said corporation to be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof. 

Signature of Affiant 

Sworn and subscribed before me this I day of .'JdJlVdJ/^' , (foO? • 
onth Year 

Signature of official administering oath 

"j ' ,• 

""' ' 1 1 " 1 My Commission ExnMK'Jaffijary 37.", 2006 
My Commission expires: . 

10 
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PAGE 1 

The Jirst State 

I , HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 

L.L.C." I S DULY FORMED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE 

AND I S IN GOOD STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL EXISTENCE SO FAR AS THE 

RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE SEVENTEENTH DAY OF 

OCTOBER, A.D. 2002. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL TAXES HAVE 

BEEN PAID TO DATE. 

3461073 8300 

020642303 

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State 

AUTHENTICATION s 2040119 

DATE: 10-17-02 



07/23/2002 17:12 FAX 202 S ^ 0 9 9 FRANCE TELECOM £ ®<>°2 

State of Delaware 

Office of the Secretary of State P A G E i 

T, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF FORMRTION OF •"FRANCE TELECOM 

CORPORATE SOLUTIONS -L.I,..C'.-", FILED IN THIS. OFFICE ON THE 

TWENTY-EIGHTH DAT OF NOVEMBER, A.D. 2001; AT-9:30 O'CLOCK A.M. 

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of Suum 

3461073 B100 AUTHENTICATION: 1469976 

010601102 DATE: 11-29-01 



07/23/2002 17:12 FM 202 8gfe099 FRANCE TELECOM 
(2)003 

11/28/2001 10:07 FAX 202 922 2099 FRANCE TELECOM STATS OF DSLA*. 
SECRETARY OF STSPZ02 

DTVISZON OF CORPORATZONS 
FILED 09:30 Ztt 11/28/2001 

D106O1102 - 3461073 

CERTTFIC ATB OF FORMATION 

OF 

FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTIONS LX.C. 

1. The name of the linnted liability company is France Telecom Coiporate 

Solutions LX.C. 

2. Hie address of its repstexed office in the State of Delaware is Coiporation 

Tnist Center. 1209 Orange Street, in the City of Wihniagtoa, County of New 

Castle. The name of its regisiered agent at such addrcas is The Corporation Trust 

Company. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigDed has executed this Certificne 

of Fonnation of Fiance Telecom Carpcrale Solutions L,L,C. 

this ^2.^ day of November, 2001 

FRANCE TELECOM PARTICIPATIONS 

U.S.,INC-

( Danielle Agum 
Assistant Secretary 

Cen fonn. doc 



COMMONWEALTH OF P E N N S Y L V A N I A 

D E P A R T M E N T OF . S T A T E 

JULY 24. 2002 

TO ALL WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME. GREETING 

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT. 

FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTIONS. LLC 

is duly registered as a Foreign Limited Liability Company under the laws 

of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and remains subsisting so far as the 

records of this office show, as of the date herein. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF. I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused 
the Seal of the Secretary's 
Office to be affixed, the day 
and year above written. 

Secretary of the Commonwealth 
DPOS 



PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 326 
CORPORATION BUREAU 

ROOM 206 NORTH OFFICE BUILDING 
P.O. BOX 8722 

HARRISBURG, PA 17105-8722 

FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTIONS, LLC 

THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HAPPY TO SEND YOU YOUR FILED DOCUMENT. 
PLEASE NOTE THE FILE DATE AND THE SIGNATURE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE 
COMMONWEALTH. THE CORPORATION BUREAU IS HERE TO SERVE YOU AND WANTS 
TO THANK YOU FOR DOING BUSINESS I N PENNSYLVANIA. 

I F YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS PERTAINING TO THE CORPORATION BUREAU, 
PLEASE VISIT OUR WEB SITE LOCATED AT WWW.DOS.STATE.PA.US/CORPS OR 
PLEASE CALL OUR MAIN INFORMATION TELEPHONE NUMBER (717)787-1057. FOR 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING BUSINESS AND/OR UCC FILINGS, PLEASE 
VISIT OUR ONLINE "SEARCHABLE DATABASE" LOCATED ON OUR WEB SITE. 

ENTITY NUMBER: ?.07579€: 

MICROFILM NUMBER: 2002052 

1090-1091 

CT CORP SYSTEM 
COUNTER 



France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 

Corporate Registered Office Provider within PA: 

CT Corporation System 
1515 Market Street 
12,h Floor 
Philadelphia, PA 19102 

WASHINGTON 2588S6v 
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List of all Officers, Directors, General Partners, Trustees and Members 
of Applicant 

Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SP0606 
Herndon, VA 20171 

Jean Nivoix 
General Manager 
France Telecom 
Europarnasse, 8-10 Boulevard de Vaugirard 
75903 Paris Cedex 15 
France 

Bernard Perrillon 
Manager 
France Telecom 
Europarnasse, 8-10 Boulevard de Vaugirard 
75903 Paris Cedex 15 
France 

Marc Dandelot 
Manager 
France Telecom Inc. 
1270 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, NY 10020 

WASHINGTON 257334vl 
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LIST OF APPLICANT'S AFFILIATES 
OPERATING IN THE UNITED STATES 

Equant U.S., Inc.1 

400 Galleria Parkway 
Atlanta, GA 30339 
Telephone: (678) 346-3000 

France Telecom Long Distance USA1 

2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Suite 600 
Herndon, V A 20171 
Telephone: (703) 375-8227 

GlobeCast Incorporated2 

7291 NW 74lh Streel 
Miami, FL 33166 
Telephone: (888) 988-5288 

None of these companies are jurisdictional public utilities. 

1 Both of these companies currently hold Seclion 214 authorizations from the Federal 
Communications Commission lo provide interstate and international resold and facilities based 
telecommunications services. Neither of these companies have auihority to provide intrastate 
telecommunications services in any state, and do not offer intrastate common carrier 
telecommunications services in any state. 

2 GlobeCast is a private carrier which provides interstate and international services using earth 
stations licensed by the Federal Communications Commission. 

WASHINGTON 255488vl 
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France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 1 

t 
J 

TITLE PAGE 

FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTIONS L.L.C. 

REGULATIONS AND SCHEDULE OF INTRASTATE CHARGES 

APPLYING TO INTEREXCHANGE COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES WITHIN 

THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 2 

CHECK SHEET 

The Tille Page and pages listed below ofthis Tariff are effective as ofthe date shown. 
Revised pages contain all changes from the original Tariff lhat arc in effect as of the date 
indicated. 

Page Number of Page Number of Page Number of Page Number of 
No. Revision No. Revision No. Revision No. Revision 

ALL PAGES ARE ORIGINAL. 

* New or Revised Page. 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA20171 



France Telecom Coiporale Solutions L.L.C. FA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TITLE PAGE Cover 

CHECK SHEET 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 3 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 4 

APPLICABILITY 4 

AVAILABILITY 4 

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS 5 

TARIFF FORMAT 5 

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 7 

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 13 

SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS 41 

SECTION 4- RATES 51 

SECTION 5 - SPECIAL PROMOTIONAL OFFERINGS 62 

SECTION 6 - CONTRACT SERVICES 63 

SECTION 7 - LEGISLATIVE, REGULATORY OR JUDICIAL ACTIVITY 64 

SECTION 8 - SUBSCRIBER CHARGES 65 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Trea surer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



7rance Telecom Coiporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 4 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

This Tariff sets forth rates and rules of France Telecom Coiporate Solutions L.L.C. (the 
"Company") applicable to its provision of resold interexchange service within the 
Commonwealth ofPennsylvania. 

This Tariff sets forth the service offerings, rales, terms and conditions that apply lo long 
dislance telecommunications service provided by Company to business customers within 
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Company does not provide residential long 
dislance services at this time. This Tariff applies only for use of services provided by 
Company for communications between points within the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. 

The rates and rules contained herein are subject to change pursuant to the rules and 
regulations oflhe Commission. 

APPLICABILITY 

This Tariff applies to inierexchange lelephone service between points in Pennsylvania. 
Such service is provided 24 hours per day, seven days per week. Service is offered using 
the facilities ofthe Company's underlying facilities-based carriers and may be offered in 
combination wilh resold services provided by other certificated carriers. Service is 
provided subject to the availability and economic feasibility of necessary service, 
equipment and facilities. 

AVAILABILITY 

The Company offers this service in the service areas in which il has been certified by the 
Pennsylvania Public Service Commission and in which the Company has available 
required network facilities or is able to lease required network facilities to enable the 
offering of local service. Only Customers which have also subscribed to Company's 
interstate and international services pursuant to an agreement with the Company are 
eligible lo apply for Ihe service offerings contained in this Tariff. Interstate and 
international services arc subjeel lo the jurisdiction of the Federal Communications 
Commission ("FCC"). 
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EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS 

(C) To signify a changed regulation. 

(D) To signify discontinued material, including listing, rale, rule or condition. 

(I) To signify an increase in a rate. 

(M) To signify material relocated from or to another pail of Tariff schedule wilh no change in 
text, rate, rule, or condition. 

(N) To signify new material including listing, rale, rule or condition. 

(R) To signify reduction. 

(T) To signify change in wording of text but no change in rate, rule or condition. 

TARIFF FORMAT 

A. Page Numbering - Page numbers appear in the upper right comer of the page. Pages are 
numbered sequentially. However, new Pages are occasionally added to the Tariff. When 
a new Page is added between Pages already in effect, a decimal point is added. For 
example, a new Page added between Pages 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

B. Page Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each 
page. These numbers arc used to determine the most current Page version on file wilh the 
Commission. For example, the 4 t h revised Page 14 cancels the 3 r d revised Page 14. 
Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Commission follows in their 
Tariff approval process, the most current Page number on file with the Commission is not 
always the Tariff page in effect. 
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TARIFF FORMAT (CONT'D) 

C. Paragraph Numbcriim Sequence - There arc six levels of paragraph coding. Each level is 
subservient lo ils next higher level: 

1.1 
1.1(a) 
Ll(a)l. 
l.l(a)l.(a) 
l.l(a)l.(a)(i) 

D. Check Sheets - When a Tariff filing is made wilh the Commission, an updated check 
Page accompanies the Tariff filing. The check sheet lists the pages contained in the 
Tariff, with a cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, 
the check sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are 
designated by an asterisk (*). The Tariff user should refer to the latest check sheet to find 
out if a particular page is the most current on file with the Commission. 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 

8XX Number - A number beginning with 800, 888, 877 or 866. 

Access Line - A communications path, provided by a person other than the Company on the 
customer side ofthe demarcation point, which connects a demarcation point to another point. 

Alternate Destination on Call Limiter - Allows the Customer to specify the maximum number 
of simultaneous incoming calls allowed for a specific dialed number. As soon as the maximum 
number of simultaneous calls allowed is reached, calls are routed to the alternate destination 
predefined by the Customer. The Call Limiter can be defined per number or for a group of 
access numbers. 

Authorization — The process of granting or denying access to a network resource. 

Authorization Code - A pre-defined scries of numbers to be dialed by the Customer or 
Authorized User upon access lo Ihe Carrier's Travel Service or Prepaid Calling Card network lo 
identify the Caller and validate the Caller's authorization to use the services provided. The 
Customer is responsible for charges incurred through the use of his or her assigned Authorization 
Code. 

Authorized User - A person, firm, corporation, or any other entity authorized by the Customer 
lo utilize the Carrier's service under the lerms and conditions of this Tariff. The Customer 
remains responsible for payment of services. 

Bit - The smallest unit of information in the binary system of notation. 

BPS - Bits per second. 

Call - Telephonic communication originated by a person or mechanical or eleclrical device from 
a number to another number that is answered by a person or mechanical or electrical device. The 
numbers may be located any distance apart within Pennsylvania. Communication may consist of 
voice, data, a combination of both, or other transmission, may be by wire or wireless medium and 
may be for any duration of time. An attempted or incomplete Call is an unsuccessful attempt by 
a Customer to place a Call. 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS (CONT'D) 

Calling Card Call - A service whereby the Customer or Authorized User dials all of the digits 
necessary to route and bill a call placed from a location other than his/her residence or normal 
place of business. Service is accessed via a "1-800" or other access code dialing sequence. 

Circuit - A communications path provided by Company between two or more demarcation 
points, at a transmission speed agreed to between Company and Customer. 

Channel - A communications path between two or more points of termination. Such 
termination points may be located anywhere in Pennsylvania. Communication may consist of 
voice, data, a combination of both, or other transmission and may be by a wire or wireless 
medium. Channel capacity may be any size and is typically measured in bits per second, with 1.5 
megabits per second equal to one voice channel. Duration is typically of unlimited duration. 

Commission - Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, the regulatory agency wilhin Ihe 
Commonweallh ofPennsylvania. 

Committed Information Rate - The Committed Information Rate ("CIR") is the amounl of 
bandwidth lhat the Company agrees to make available lo the Customer's Frame Relay Data 
Tenninal Equipmenl through the Network enabling the transfer of data between any given Frame 
Relay Permanent Virtual Circuit ingress and egress points during normal network operational 
conditions. CIRs are provided on a per individual Data Link Channel basis. 

Company or Carrier - FTCS unless otherwise clearly indicated by the context. 

Customer - The person, firm or corporaiion which orders service and is responsible for the 
payment of charges, compliance wilh the terms and conditions ofthis Tariff, and compliance 
with the laws oflhe Commonwealth ofPennsylvania. 

Customer Premises - A location occupied by Customer, or which Customer has the right lo 
occupy, for the purposes of transmitting or receiving communications signals, and which is made 
available lo Company for Ihe maintenance and operation thereon or therein of a Company 
terminal location. 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS (CONT'D) 

Customized Announcement - Allows the Customer to play customized messages lo callers 
according lo pre-defined parameters such as time of day, day of week, or other routing features. 
The same message can be played in different languages. Once the customized announcement is 
read, the call is tenninated. 

Dedicated - A facility or equipment system or subsystem set aside for the sole use ofa specific 
Customer. 

Demarcation Point - The point of interconnection of an Access Line or other connecting 
communicaiions path or equipment provided by Customer or any person lo company-provided 
equipmenl. 

Dialed Number Identification - Dialed Number Identification is translating each public number 
into a specific private number, with the global VPN enables the Customer to identify the dialed 
number and the originating location for each call and to route the call lo the appropriate operator. 

Facilities - Cables, wires, poles, conduits and olher Company equipment that is used to provide 
service to Customers including wire center distribution frames and central office switching 
equipmenl. 

FTCS - France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 

Fiber Optic Cable - A thin filament of glass with a protective outer coating through which a 
light beam carrying communications signals may be transmitted by means of multiple internal 
reflections to a receiver, which translates the message. 

Individual Case Basis - A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and charges are 
developed based on the specific circumstances of the Cuslomer and at the Company's sole 
discretion. 

Initial - The Initial Period denotes the interval of time allowed al the rate specified for a 
connection between given service points. 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS (CONT'D) 

Integrated Services Digital Network - The Integrated Services Digital Network ("ISDN") is a 
digital network that permits the switched interconnection of voice, data and video transmissions 
requiring differing capacities over common facilities. 

LATA - A Local Access and Transport Area established pursuant to the Modification of Final 
Judgment entered by the United Stales District Court for the District of Columbia in Civil Action 
No. 82-0192; or any olher geographic area designated as a LATA in the National Exchange 
Carrier Association, Inc. Tariff F.C.C. No. 4. 

Mbps - Megabits per second, denotes millions of bits per second. 

MRC - Monthly Recurring Charge. 

NXX - The designation for the first three digits of a local telephone number where N represents 
2-9 and X represents 0-9. 

Optimized Call Transfer - Provides call re-dircclion upon customer request, with route 
optimization. It allows to transfer callers to other Customer sites in the most economical way, 
without occupying call center trunks throughout the duration ofthe transferred call. 

Permanent Virtual Circuit - The Permanent Virtual Circuit ("PVC") is the logical connection 
from one port ofa Frame Relay network to another port ofthe same Frame Relay network. The 
sizing ofthe PVC is determined by its CIR and its EIR. 

Port - A facility or equipment syslem or subsystem set aside for the sole use of a specific 
Customer. 

Premises - The space occupied by the Customer or Authorized User in a building or buildings or 
contiguous property not separated by a public or quasi-public right-of-way. 

QoS - Quality of service levels. 

Recurring Charges - The monthly charges to the Cuslomer for services, facilities and 
equipment, which continues for the agreed upon duration of the service. 

Remote Queuing ~ Allows the queuing of calls within the network in case of busy conditions at 
the call center. Limited Customer PBX/ACD resources are mobilized and the lowest price is 
charged for the lime the calls have been queued. 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS (CONT'D) 

Residential Service - Telecommunications services used primarily as non-business service. 
Residential Service is not offered by the Company at this lime. 

Routing on Menu Selection - Routing on Menu Selection allows the Customer to screen calls 
within the network and route them according to the caller's needs. With this service, Customer 
call centers can implement call qualification at the network level or provide self-service for 
routine transactions, as a front-end application, or for overflow traffic. 

Service - Any means of services offered herein by the Company or any combination thereof. 

Service Order - The written request for Company services executed by the Customer and the 
Company in the fonnal devised by the Company. The signing ofa Service Order Form by the 
Customer and acceptance by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set 
forth therein and pursuant to this Tariff. 

Shared - A facility or equipment system or subsystem which can be used simultaneously by 
several Customers. 

Special Facilities - Any facilities, goods, supplies, products, equipment, fixtures or other 
installation specifically installed or constructed for Customer by Company pursuant to a 
negotiated agreement between Company and Customer. 

Subscriber - See Customer. 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS (CONT'D) 

Ta r i f f - FTCS's PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2. 

Terminal Equipment — Any telecommunications equipmenl other than the transmission or 
receiving equipment installed al a Company Terminal Location. 

Time-Dependant Routing - Allows the Customer to define a routing plan depending on date 
and time. The parameters arc time of day, day of week, and day of year. The routing plan can be 
defined per dialed number or per tcrminaling call center site. 

Transmission of Touch-Tone Signaling - Transmission of Touch-Tone Signaling allows Ihe 
Customer Interactive Voice Mail lo accept touch-tone signaling from inbound callers to the 
Customer site. 

Transmission Speed - Transmission speed or rale, in bits per second (bps), as agreed to by 
Company and Cuslomer for each circuit. 

United States - The forly-eighl slates contained within the mainland United Stales, the District 
of Columbia, Alaska, Hawaii, Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam and the 
Commonweallh ofthe Northern Mariana Islands. 

Virtual Private Network - A Virtual Private Network ("VPN") is a switched network with 
special services such as abbreviated dialing, which allows customers to call belween offices in 
different area codes without dialing all digits. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

2.1 Undertaking of FTCS 

FTCS's services are furnished for interexchange communications originating and 
tenninating within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania under the tenns of this Tariff. 
FTCS's services are available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 

FTCS arranges for installation, operation and maintenance of the communications 
services provided in this Tariff for Customers in accordance with the tenns and 
conditions set forth under this Tariff. FTCS may acl as the Customer's agent for ordering 
access connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities, when authorized by the 
Customer, to allow connection ofa Customer's location to FTCS's network. 

2.2 Use 

Services provided under Ihis Tariff may be used by the Customer for any lawful 
telecommunications purpose for which the service is technically suited. 

2.2.1 Any entity which uses, appropriates or secures the use of services from FTCS 
other than under the terms and conditions ofthis Tariff shall be liable for an 
amount equal to the accrued and unpaid-charges for services received pursuant 
to this Tariff, plus all applicable court costs and attorneys fees. 

2.3 Limitations of Service, Equipment or Facilities 

2.3.1 Service is offered subject to the availability oflhe necessary facilities and/or 
equipment and subject to the provisions of this Tariff. The Company may 
decline applications for Service to or from a location where the necessary 
facilities or equipment are not available. The Company may discontinue 
furnishing Service in accordance wilh the tenns of this Tariff. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.3 Limitations of Service, Equipment or Facilities (Cont'd) 

2.3.2 The Company reserves the right to discontinue or limit Service when 
necessitated by conditions beyond its control. Examples of these conditions 
are more fully set forth elsewhere in this Tariff or when Service is used in 
violation ofthe provisions ofthis Tariff or the law. 

2.3.3 The Company does not undertake to generate content messages, but offers the 
use of its Service when available. As more fully set forth elsewhere in this 
Tariff, the Company shall not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure 
to establish connections. 

2.3.4 The Company reserves the right lo discontinue Service, limit Service, or to 
impose requirements as required lo meet changing regulatory or statutory rules 
and standards, or when such rules and standards have an adverse material 
affect on Ihe business or economic feasibility of providing Service, as 
detennined by the Company in its reasonable judgment. 

2.3.5 The furnishing of Service under this Tariff is subject to the availability on a 
continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and/or equipment are not 
available. FTCS may decline applications for service to or from a location 
where the necessary facilities or equipment are not available. 

Issued: ,2003 Effective: ,2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



Trance Telecom Coiporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TarifTNo. 2 
Original PageNo. 15 

SECTION 2 - R U L E S AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.3 Limitations of Service, Equipment or Facilities (Cont'd) 

2.3.6 FTCS reserves the right to deny service to any person or entity: (A) who, in 
FTCS's judgment, presents an undue risk of nonpayment, refuses to comply 
with the deposit requirements set forth in this Tariff, or does not pass a credit 
check; or (B) i f FTCS believes that the person's or entity's use ofthe Service 
would violate the provisions of this Tariff or any applicable law or regulation, 
or i f any applicable law or regulation restricts or prohibits provision of lhe 
Service lo that person or entity; or (C) i f FTCS determines in its sole 
discretion that facilities are not available to provide the Service; or (D) i f 
FTCS determines in its sole discretion that any order for Service, letter of 
authorization and/or third party verification is not in conformance with any 
applicable law or regulation; or (E) the Service requested has been 
discontinued; or (F) i f an order for the Service may be denied under the terms 
of any carrier, switched or independent sales representative agreement. 

2.3.7 Service may be discontinued by FTCS, at any time and without notice to its 
Cuslomers, by blocking traffic lo or from certain cilics, NXX exchanges, or 
individual telephone stations, by blocking call origination for FTCS's 
services, or by blocking calls using certain Customer Authorization Codes 
and/or access codes, when FTCS deems it necessary to take such action lo 
prevent unlawful and/or unauthorized use of its services. In addition, FTCS 
may take any ofthe foregoing actions in the case of actual or anticipated non­
payment for its service. In order to control fraud, FTCS may refuse to accept 
Calling Card, Collect Calling, and/or Third Parly calls which it reasonably 
believes to be unauthorized or invalid and/or may limit the use of these billing 
options lo or from certain areas within the Commonwealth ofPennsylvania. 

2.3.8 FTCS reserves the right to refuse to provide service to or from any location 
where i l has not ordered access facilities, installed network interconnections, 
or the necessary facilities and/or equipment are not available, acceptable, or 
justifiable. FTCS also reserves the right to make changes to equipment, 
service components, and/or network configurations as may be required. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.3 Limitations of Service, Equipment or Facilities (Cont'd) 

2.3.9 The provision of service will nol create a partnership or joint venture between 
FTCS and the Customer nor result in joint service offerings to their respective 
authorized users. 

2.3.10 Use of Service Mark 

(a) No Customer shall use any service mark or trademark ofthe Company or 
refer to Company in conneclion with any product, equipment promotion, 
or publication of the Customer wilhout the prior written consent of the 
Company. 

2.4 Location of Service 

2.4.1 Originating Areas - areas in this state where service has been established by 
the Carrier. 

2.4.2 Terminating Areas - all areas of the Commonwealth ofPennsylvania. 

2.5 Assignment or Transfer 

All service provided under this Tariff is directly or indirectly controlled by FTCS and 
neither the Customer nor its Authorized Users may transfer or assign the use of service 
without the express prior written consent of FTCS. Such transfer or assignment shall 
only apply where there is no interruption ofthe use or location of service. All tenns and 
conditions contained in this Tariff shall apply to all such pennitted transferees or 
assignees. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.6 Liability 

2.6.1 The liability of FTCS for damages of any nature arising from errors, mistakes, 
omissions, interruptions, or delays of FTCS, its agents, servants, or 
employees, in the course of establishing, furnishing, rearranging, moving, 
terminating, maintaining, restoring, or changing the service or facilities or 
equipment shall not exceed an amount equal to the charges applicable under 
this Tariff (calculated on a proportionate basis where appropriate) to the 
period during which such error, mistake, omission, interruption or delay 
occurs. 

2.6.2 In no event shall FTCS or any of its affiliates be liable to Customer, its 
customers or any of their affiliates under this Tariff for any loss of profit or 
revenue or for any incidental, consequential, indirect, punitive or similar or 
additional damages incurred or suffered as a result of incorrect or defective 
transmissions, or any direct or indirect consequences thereof, while using the 
Services, performance, non-performance, termination, breach, or other action 
or inaction, on the part of FTCS, under this Tariff, even if Customer advises 
FTCS of the forcseeability, possibility, likelihood, probability or certainty of 
such loss or damage. 

2.6.3 When the services or facilities of other entities are used separately or in 
conjunction wilh FTCS's facilities or equipment in establishing connection lo 
points not reached by FTCS's facilities or equipment, FTCS shall not be liable 
for any act or omission of such other entities or their agents, servants or 
employees. FTCS shall not be liable for any act or omission of vendors 
supplying equipment to Customer nor for claims regarding the performance of 
such vendor supplied equipment. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.6 Liability (Cont'd) 

2.6.4 FTCS shall not be liable for any failure of perfonnancc hereunder if such 
failure is due to any cause or causes beyond its reasonable control as 
detennined by FTCS. Such causes shall include, without limitation, acts of 
God, fire, explosion, vandalism, cable cut, storm or other similar occurrence, 
any law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of the United Slates 
govemment or of any other govemment or of any civil or military authority, 
national emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars, strikes, lockouts or work 
stoppages or other labor difficulties, supplier failures, shortages, breaches or 
delays, unavailability of rights-of-way or materials, or preemption of existing 
service to restore service in compliance wilh the decisions, rules, regulations 
and orders oflhe Commission or any other federal, international, state, or local 
governmental agency or authority. 

2.6.5 FTCS shall not be liable for interruptions, delays, errors, or defects in 
transmission, or for any injury whatsoever, caused by the Customer, the 
Customer's agents, or Authorized Users, or by facilities or equipment 
provided by the Customer. FTCS shall not be liable for any act or omission by 
any entity furnishing to the Company or to the customer facilities or 
equipment used for or with the services the Company offers. The Company 
shall not be liable for the claims of vendors supplying equipmenl to Customers 
ofthe Company which may be installed at the premises ofthe Company. The 
Company shall not be liable for the performance of said vendor or vendor's 
equipment. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.6 Liability (Cont'd) 

2.6.6 FTCS does not guarantee or make any warranty with respect lo any equipment 
provided by it where such equipment is used in locations containing an 
atmosphere which is explosive, prone to fire, dangerous, or otherwise 
unsuitable for such equipment. Customers and Authorized Users indemnify 
and hold FTCS harmless from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits or other 
action, or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or 
asserted by any party or persons, for any personal injury to or death of any 
person or persons, and for any loss, damage, or destruction of any property, 
whether owned by the Customer, Authorized User, or others, caused or 
claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, 
operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, 
location, or use of such equipment so used. 

2.6.7 The Company is not liable for any defacement of or damage to the premises of 
a Customer or end-user (or authorized or joint user) resulting from the 
furnishing of services or equipment on such premises or the installation or 
removal thereof, when such defacement or damage is not the result bf the 
gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the agents or employees 
ofthe Company. 

2.6.8 The Company shall not be liable for any damages resulting from delays in 
meeting any service dates due to delays resulting from normal construction 
procedures. Such delays shall include, but not be limited to, delays in 
obtaining necessary regulatory approvals for construction, delays in obtaining 
right-of-way approvals and delays in actual construction work. 

2.6.9 The Company shall not be liable for any damages whatsoever to property 
resulting from the installation, maintenance, repair or removal of equipment 
and associated wiring unless the damage is caused by the Company's willful 
misconduct or gross negligence. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.6 Liability (Cont'd) 

2.6.10 The Company shall not be liable for any damages whatsoever associated with 
service, facilities, or equipment which the Company does not fumish or for 
any act or omission of Customer or any other entity furnishing services, 
facilities or equipment used for or in conjunction wilh service. 

2.6.11 THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, 
STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE, 
EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN. 

2.6.12 The Customer and any authorized or joint users, jointly and severally, shall 
indemnify and hold the Company harmless from claims, loss, damage, 
expense (including allomcy's fees and court costs), or liability for patent 
infringement arising from (1) combining with, or using in connection with 
facilities the Company furnished, facilities the Customer, authorized user, or 
joint user furnished, or (2) use of facilities the Company furnished in a manner 
the Company did not contemplate and over which the Company exercises no 
control and from all other claims, loss, damage, expense (including attorneys' 
fees and court costs), or (3) liability arising out of any commission or 
omission by the Customer, authorized user, or joint user in connection with 
the Service. In the event that any such infringing use is enjoined, the 
Customer, authorized user, or joint user, at its option and expense, shall obtain 
immediately a dismissal or stay of such injunction, obtain a license or other 
agreement so as to extinguish the claim of infringement, tenninate the claimed 
infringing use, or modify such combination so as to avoid any such 
infringement. In addition and wilhout limitation, the Customer, authorized 
user, or joint user, shall defend, on behalf ofthe Company and upon request 
by the Company, any suit brought or claim asserted against the Company for 
any such slander, libel, infringement, or other claims. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.6 Liability (Cont'd) 

2.6.13 The Company shall not incur any liability, direct or indirect, to any person 
who dials or attempts to dial the digits "9-1-1" or to any other person who may 
be affected by the dialing of the digits "9-1-1". Customer agrees to advise its 
users lhat as to Company's data services, the "9-1-1" emergency dialing does 
not connect to the local public safety answering point. 

2.7 Billing and Payment for Service 

2.7.1 Application for Service 

(a) Customers desiring to obtain Service must complete service application 
forms provided by Company. Company may require Customers or 
potential customers to provide information pertaining to their ability to pay 
for Service. Company may deny Service to Cuslomers or potential 
customers which do not provide Ihe requested infonnation or who fail to 
meet Company's financial criteria. Only Customers which have 
subscribed to Company's interstate and international services pursuant to 
an agreement wilh the Company are eligible to apply for the service 
offerings contained in this Tariff. 

2.7.2 Cancellation of Application for Service: 

(a) Where installation of Service has been started prior to the cancellation of 
an application for Service, a cancellation charge equal to the costs incurred 
by the Company may apply. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.7 Billing and Payment for Service (Cont'd) 

2.7.3 Cancellation of Service: 

(a) The Customer may have service discontinued upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to the Company. The Company shall hold the Customer 
responsible for payment of all bills for service furnished until the 
cancellation date specified by the Customer or until the date that the 
written cancellation notice is received, whichever is later. Upon early 
cancellation ofa term agreement, Ihe Customer agrees lo pay Company for 
the balance due under the contract for the entire tenn ofthe agreement. 
Unless the Customer notifies Company at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
end of the initial tenn of the agreement, the agreement shall be 
automatically extended for a tenn equivalent to the initial term. 

2.7.4 Deposits 

Tlie Company does not collect deposits or prepayments from Customers at this 
time. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.7.5 Payment of Charges 

(a) The Company shall bill on a current basis all charges incurred by and 
credits due to the Customer. The Customer may receive its bill in: 1) a 
paper fonnat, or 2) via electronic transmission. Such bills are due upon 
receipt regardless of the media utilized. The Company shali bill in 
advance charges for all services to be provided during the ensuing billing 
period except for charges associated with service usage. Adjustments for 
the quantities of Service established or discontinued in any billing period 
beyond the minimum period will be prorated to the number of days based 
on a 30-day month. The Company will, upon request and if available, 
furnish such detailed infonnation as may reasonably be required for 
verification oflhe bill. 

(b) All bills for Service provided to the Customer by the Company are due 15 
days from the bill date. If any portion oflhe payment is received by the 
Company after the payment due date as set forth above, or if any portion of 
the payment is received by the Company in funds which are not 
immediately available to the Company, then a late payment penalty shall 
be due to the Company. The late payment penalty shall be a portion ofthe 
payment not received by the payment due date times a late factor. The late 
factor shall be 1.5% per monlh or 18% annually, or the highest rate 
allowed by law, whichever is the lesser. The late factor will be applied for 
Ihe number of days from the payment due dale lo and including the date 
lhat the Customer actually makes the payment to Ihe Company. 

(c) Cuslomer shall be responsible for payment of all sales, use, gross receipts, 
excise, access, bypass or other local, state and Federal taxes, charges or 
surcharges, however designated, imposed on or based upon the provision, 
sale or use of the services rendered by Company. Such taxes and 
surcharges shall be separately stated on the Customer's bill. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.7 Billing and Payment for Service (Cont'd) 

2.7.5 Payment of Charges (Cont'd) 

(d) When a check which has been presented lo Company by a customer in 
payment for charges is returned by the bank, the customer shall be 
responsible for the payment ofa Returned Check Charge of $20. 

2.7.6 Non-Recurring Charges 

(a) Non-recurring charges are payable when the service for which they are 
specified has been ordered. If an entity other than FTCS (e.g., another 
carrier or supplier) imposes or will impose charges on FTCS in connection 
with an ordered service, those cosls will also be charged to the Customer. 

2.7.7 Customer Overpayments 

(a) Company will provide interest on customer overpayments lhat are nol 
refunded within 30 days of the dale Company receives the overpayment. 
An overpayment is considered to have occurred when payment in excess 
ofthe correct charges for service is made because of erroneous Company 
billing. The customer will be issued reimbursement for the overpayment, 
plus interest, or, if agreed to by the customer, credit for the amount will be 
provided on the next regular Company bill. The rate of interest shall be 
the greater ofthe customer deposil interest rate or Company's applicable 
late payment penalty. 

(b) Interest shall be paid from the date when overpayment was made, adjusted 
for any changes in the deposit rate or late payment rate, and compounded 
monthly, until the date when the overpayment is refunded. The date when 
overpayment is considered to have been made will be the date on which 
the customer's overpayment was originally recorded to the cuslomer's 
accounl by Company. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.7 Billing and Payment for Service (Cont'd) 

2.7.8 Disputed Bills 

(a) In the event that a billing dispute occurs concerning any charges billed to 
the Customer by the Company, the Customer musl submit a written 
documented claim for the disputed amounl. The Cuslomer must submit all 
documentation as may reasonably be required lo support the claim. All 
claims must be submitted to the Company within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of billing for those services. If the Cuslomer does not submit a 
claim as slated above, Ihe Customer waives all rights lo filing a claim 
thereafter. 

(b) Unless disputed, the invoice shall be deemed to be correct and payable in 
full by Customer. Upon notificalion of a dispute, the Company will 
undertake an investigation of lhe disputed charges. At the conclusion of 
Ihe investigation, the Company will notify the Customer of ils resolution 
ofthe dispute in accordance wilh 52 Pa. Code Sections 64.141 and 64.142. 
I f lhc Customer is unable to resolve any dispute with the Company, then 
Cuslomer may file a complaint wilh Ihe Commission's Bureau of 
Consumer Services, P.O. Box 3265, 231 Slate Street, Barto Building, 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17101, (717) 783-5187, in accordance with the 
Commission's rules of procedure. 

(c) If the dispute is resolved in favor ofthe Customer, no interest credits or 
penalties will apply. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.8 Service Connections and Facilities on Customer's Premises 

2.8.1 All Service along the facililics between the point identified as the Company's 
origination point and the point identified as the Company's termination point 
will be furnished by the Company, its agents or contractors. 

2.8.2 Customer shall allow Company continuous access and right-of-way to 
Customer's premises to the extent reasonably determined by the Company to 
be appropriate to the provision and maintenance of services, equipment, 
facilities and systems relating to this Tariff. 

2.8.3 The Company may undertake to use reasonable efforts to make available 
services to a Customer, on or before a particular date subject to the provisions 
of and compliance by the Customer with the regulations contained in this 
Tariff. The Company does not guarantee availability by any such dale and 
shall not be liable for any delays in commencing Service to any Cuslomer. 

2.8.4 The Company undertakes to use reasonable efforts to maintain only the 
facilities and equipment that it furnishes to the Customer. The Customer, joinl 
user, or authorized user may not, nor may the Customer permit others to, 
rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair, or otherwise tamper with any 
of the facililics or equipment installed by the Company, except upon the 
written consent ofthe Company. 

2.8.5 Tille to all facilities provided by Company, including Terminal Equipmenl, 
shall remain with the Company. The operating personnel and the electric 
power consumed by such equipment on the premises ofthe Customer shall be 
provided by and maintained at the expense of the Customer. 

2.8.6 Equipment the Company provides or installs at the Customer's premises for 
use in connection wilh the Services the Company offers shall not be used for 
any puipose other lhan that for which the Company provided it. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.8 Service Connections and Facilities on Customer's Premises (Cont'd) 

2.8.7 Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided equipment 
connected lo Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such 
equipment and facilities. The magnitude and character of the voltages and 
currents imposed on Company-provided equipment and wiring by connection 
shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company-provided equipment and 
wiring or injury to the Company's employees or other persons. 

2.8.8 The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation, or 
maintenance of any Customer-provided communications equipment. Where 
such equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this Tariff, 
the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of 
facilities offered under this Tariff and to the maintenance and operation of 
such facilities; subject to this responsibility, the Company shall not be 
responsible for: 

(a) the transmission of signals by Customer-provided equipment or for the 
quality of, or defects in, such transmission of; or 

(b) the reception of signals by Customer-provided equipment. 

2.8.9 Company is solely responsible for operating Company-provided equipment. 
In the event that Customer attempts to operate any Company-provided 
equipment without first obtaining Company's written approval, in addition to 
any other remedies of Company for a breach by Customer of Customer's 
obligations hereunder, Cuslomer shall pay Company for any damage to 
Company-provided equipment caused or related to Customer's improper 
operation of Company-provided equipment upon receipt by Customer of a 
Company invoice therefore. In no event shall Company be liable to Customer 
or any other person for interruption of the Service or for any other loss, cost or 
damage caused or related to Customer's improper use of Company-provided 
equipment. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.8 Service Connections and Facilities on Customer's Premises (Cont'd) 

2.8.10 Customer agrees to allow Company to remove all Company-provided 
equipment from Customer's premises: 

(a) upon tennination, interruption or suspension ofthe Service in connection 
with which the equipment was used; and 

(b) for repair, replacement or otherwise as Company may determine is 
necessary or desirable. 

2.8.11 Al the time of such removal, such equipment shall be in the same condition as 
when delivered to Customer or installed on Cuslomer's premises, normal wear 
and tear only excepted. Customer shall reimburse Company for the 
unamoratized cost of any such equipment in the event the foregoing conditions 
are not met. 

2.8.12 The Customer, authorized user, or joint user is responsible for ensuring that 
Customer-provided equipment connected to Company equipment and 
facilities is compatible with such Company equipmenl and facilities. The 
magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company-
provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or maintenance 
of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to the 
Company provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's 
employees or to other persons. In advance, Customer will submit to Company 
a complete manufacturer's specification sheet for each item of equipment that 
is not provided by the Company and which shall be attached to the Company's 
facilities. The Company shall approve the use of such item(s) of equipment 
unless such item is technically compatible with Company's facilities. Any 
additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury 
shall be provided by the Company at the Customer's expense. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.8 Service Connections and Facilities on Customer's Premises (Cont'd) 

2.8.13 Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between 
the facilities and equipment ofthe Company used for furnishing Service, and 
the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the 
Customer's expense. 

2.9 Interconnection 

2.9.1 Service furnished by FTCS may be interconnected with services or facilities of 
other authorized communications common carriers and with private systems, 
subject lo technical limitations established by FTCS. Service furnished by 
FTCS is not part of a joint undertaking with such other common carriers or 
systems. FTCS does not undertake to provide any special facilities, 
equipment, or services to enable the Customer to interconnect the facilities or 
the equipment of FTCS with services or facilities of other common carriers or 
with private systems. 

2.9.2 Interconnection with the services or facilities of olhcr common carriers shall 
be under the applicable terms and conditions of this Tariff and the other 
common carrier's Tariffs. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.10 Inspection, Testing and Adjustment 

FTCS may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections as may be necessary 
to detennine whether the tenns and conditions ofthis Tariff are being complied with in 
the installation, operation or maintenance of the Customer's facilities or equipment. 
FTCS may interrupt service at any time, without penalty or liability, due to the departure 
from or reasonable suspicion of the departure from any of these tenns and conditions. 

2.11 Credit Allowances for Interruption of Service 

Credit allowances for interruptions of service which are not due to FTCS's inspection or 
testing, to the negligence ofthe Customer, or the failure of channels, equipment and/or 
communications systems provided by the Customer, are subject to the general liability 
provisions set forth in this Tariff. 

It shall be the obligation ofthe Customer to notify FTCS immediately of any interruption 
in service for which the Customer desires a credit allowance. Before giving such notice, 
the Cuslomer shall ascertain that the trouble is not within his or her control, or is not in 
wiring or equipment, if any, furnished by Customer. 

For purposes of credit computation, every month shall be considered to have 30 days. 
The Customer shall be credited for an interruption of one day (24 hours) or more at the 
rate of l/30 th of the monthly charge for the services affected for each day lhat the 
interruption continues. 

Credit Formula: 

Credit = A/30 x B 

A = outage time in days 

B = total monthly charge for affected service. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.11 Credit Allowances for Interruption of Service (Cont'd) 

No credit allowances shall be made for: 

Interruptions that are caused by the negligence ofthe Customer or others authorized by 
the Customer to use the Customer's service; 

Interruptions that are due to the failure of power, equipment, systems, or services not 
provided by FTCS; 

Interruptions during any period during which FTCS or its agents are nol afforded access 
to the premises where Access Lines associated with the Customer's service are located; 

Interruptions during any period when the Customer or user has released the service lo 
FTCS for maintenance, rearrangement, or the implementation ofa Customer order; 

Inlerruptions during any period when the Customer or user has refused to release the 
service for testing or repair; 

Interruptions during any period when the non-completion of calls is due to network busy 
conditions; or 

Inlerruptions not promptly reported to the FTCS. 

2.12 Obligations of the Customer 

2.12.1 The Customer shall be responsible for: 

(a) The payment of all applicable charges as set forth in this Tariff. 

(b) Damage or loss of Ihe Company's facilities or equipment caused by the 
acts or omissions of the Cuslomer, authorized user, or joint user or the 
non-compliance by the Customer, authorized user, or joint user with these 
regulations; or by fire or thefl or other casualty on the premises of the 
Customer, authorized user, or joint user unless caused by the negligence or 
willful misconduct ofthe employees or agents ofthe Company. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.12 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd) 

2.12.1 The Customer shall be responsible for (Cont'd): 

(c) Providing as specified from time to time by the Company any needed 
personnel, equipment, space and power to operate Company facilities and 
equipment installed on the premises ofthe Customer, authorized user, or 
joint user and the level of power, heating and air conditioning necessary to 
maintain the proper environment on such premises. 

(d) Obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for rights 
of way and conduit necessary for insiallation of fiber optic cable and 
associated equipment to provide Service to the Cuslomer, authorized user 
or joint user from the cable building entrance or the property line of the 
land on which the structure wherein any termination point or origination 
point used by the Customer, authorized user or joint user is placed or 
located, whichever is applicable, through the point of entry into the 
structure, throughout the structure, to the location of the equipment space. 
Any and all costs associated with Ihe obtaining and maintaining of the 
rights of way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure 
to pennit installation of the Company-provided facilities, shall be bome 
entirely by, or may be charged by the Company to the Customer. The 
Company may require the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with 
this seclion prior to accepting an order for Service. 

(e) Providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and 
regulations regarding the working conditions on the premises at which 
Company employees and agents shall be installing or maintaining the 
Company's facilities and equipment. The Customer may be required lo 
install and maintain Company facilities and equipment within a hazardous 
area if, in the Company's opinion, injury to Company employees or 
property might result from installation or maintenance by the Company. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.12 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd) 

2.12.1 The Customer shall be responsible for (Cont'd): 

(f) Complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all 
consents, approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect 
to, the location of Company facilities and equipment in any Customer 
premises or the rights of way for which the Cuslomer is responsible and 
obtaining permission for Company agents or employees to enter the 
premises of the Customer, authorized user, or joint user at any reasonable 
hour for the purpose of installing, inspecting, repairing, or upon 
termination of Service as slated herein, removing the facilities or 
equipment ofthe Company. 

(g) Making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for 
maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the 
Customer. No allowance will be made for the period during which 
Service is interrupted for such purposes. 

(h) Keeping the Company's equipment and facilities located on the 
Cuslomer's premises of rights of way obtained by the Customer free and 
clear of any liens or encumbrances relating to the Customer's use of the 
Company's services or from the locations of such equipment and facilities. 

(i) Customer provided tenninal equipment on the premises ofthe Customer, 
authorized user, or joint user, the operating personnel there, and the 
electric power consumed by such equipment shall be provided by and 
maintained at the expense ofthe Customer, authorized user, or joint user. 
Conformance of Customer provided station equipment with Part 68 ofthe 
FCC Rules is the responsibility ofthe Customer. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.12 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd) 

2.12.1 The Customer shall be responsible for (Cont'd): 

(j) The Customer, authorized user, or joint user is responsible for ensuring 
that Customer-provided equipment connected to Company equipment and 
facilities is compatible with such equipment and facilities. The magnitude 
and character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company-
provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or 
maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause 
damage to the Company-provided equipment and wiring or injury to the 
Company's employees or other persons. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.13 Refusal or Discontinuance by the Company 

2.13.1 The Company, by ten (10) days prior written notice to the Customer, may 
discontinue Service or cancel an application for Service without incurring any 
liability when there is an unpaid balance for Service that is overdue and nol 
disputed. 

2.13.2 The Cuslomer whose check or draft is returned unpaid for any reason, after 
two attempts al collection, shall be subject to discontinuance of Service in the 
same manner as provided for nonpayment of overdue charges. 

2.13.3 The Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, 
for any violation of any law, rule, regulation or policy of any govemment 
authority having jurisdiction over Service, or by reason of any order or 
decision of a court or other govemment authority having jurisdiction which 
prohibits the Company from furnishing such Service, or for any violation of 
any of the provisions governing Ihe furnishing of Service under this Tariff. 

2.13.4 The Company may immediately discontinue service to any Customer, without 
notice, in order to protect against fraud or lo otherwise protect Company 
personnel, agents, facilities, or services. 

2.13.5 The Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, 
for the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental 
authority havingjurisdiction. 

2.13.6 If any Customer files for bankruptcy or reorganization or fails to discharge an 
involuntary petition therefor within the time pennitted by law, the Company 
may immediately discontinue or suspend Service under this Tariff without 
incurring any liability. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.13 Refusal or Discontinuance by the Company (Cont'd) 

2.13.7 Upon the Company's discontinuance of Services to the Customer, the 
Company, in addition to all other remedies that may be available to the 
Company at law or in equity or under any other provision of this Tariff, may 
declare all future monthly and other charges which would have been payable 
by the Customer under this Tariff during the remainder ofthe minimum term 
for which such Services would have otherwise been provided to the Customer 
to be immediately due and payable. 

2.13.8 If Service has been discontinued for nonpayment or as otherwise provided 
herein and the Cuslomer wishes il continued, Service shall, at the Company's 
discretion, be restored when all past due amounts are paid or the event giving 
rise to the discontinuance (if other than nonpayment) is corrected and the 
Customer pays a deposit in advance at Company's discretion. Non-recurring 
charges apply to restored Services. 

2.13.9 Any notice Ihe Company may give to a Customer shall be deemed properly 
given when delivered, if delivered in person, or when deposited with the U.S. 
Postal Service, addressed to the Customer's billing address or to such address 
as may be subsequently given by Customer to the Company. 

2.13.10 Except for cancellation of Service or as otherwise provided by these rules, any 
notice from any Customer may be given by the Customer or any authorized 
representative to the Company's business office orally or by written notice 
mailed to the Company's business address. Cancellation of Service must be 
by written notice. 

2.14 Restoration of Service 

If service has been discontinued for nonpayment or as otherwise provided herein and the 
Customer wishes it continued, service shall, at FTCS's discretion, be restored when all 
past due amounts are paid or the event giving rise to the discontinuance (if other than 
nonpayment) is corrected. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.15 Schools and Libraries Discount Program 

2.15.1 General 

The Schools and Libraries Discount Program permits eligible schools (public 
and private, grades Kindergarten through 12) and libraries to purchase FTCS 
services offered in this Tariff at a discounted rate, in accordance with the 
Rules adopted by the FCC in its Universal Service Order 97-157, issued May 
8, 1997. The Rules are codified at 47 Code of Federal Regulation (C.F.R.) 
54.500 et. seq. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.15 Schools and Libraries Discount Program (Cont'd) 

2.15.1 General (Cont'd) 

As indicated in the Rules, the discounts will be between twenty (20) and 
ninety (90) percent of the pre-discount price, which is the price of services to 
schools and libraries prior to application ofa discount. The level of discount 
will be based on an eligible school or library's level of economic disadvantage 
and by its location in cither an urban or rural area. A school's level of 
economic disadvantage will be detennined by the percentage of its students 
eligible for participation in the national school lunch program, and a library's 
level of economic disadvantage will be calculated on the basis of school lunch 
eligibility in the public school district in which the library is located. A non­
public school may use either eligibility for the national school lunch program 
or other federally approved alternative measures to determine its level of 
economic disadvantage. To be eligible for the discount, schools and libraries 
will be required to comply with the tenns and conditions set forth in the rules. 
Discounts are available only lo the extent that they are funded by the federal 
universal service fund. Schools and libraries may aggregate demand with 
other eligible entities to create a consortium. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.15 Schools and Libraries Discount Program (Cont'd) 

2.15.2 Regulations 

(a) Obligation of eligible schools and libraries: 

1. Requests for service: 

(a) Schools and libraries and consortia shall participate in a 
competitive bidding process for all services eligible for discounts, 
in accordance with any slate and local procurement rules. 

(i) Schools and libraries and consortia shall submit requests 
for services to the Schools and Libraries Division, as 
designated by the FCC, and follow established procedures. 

(ii) Services requested will be used for educational purposes. 

(iii) Services will not be sold, resold or transfeired in 
consideration for money or any other thing of value. 

(b) Obligations of FTCS: 

1. FTCS will offer discounts to eligible schools and libraries on 
commercially available telecommunications services contained in this 
Tariff 

2. FTCS will offer services lo eligible schools, libraries and consortia at 
prices no higher than the lowest price it charges to similarly situated non­
residential customers for similar services (lowest corresponding price). 

3. In competitive bidding situations, FTCS may offer flexible pricing or rates 
olher than in this Tariff, where specific flexible pricing arrangements are 
allowed. 
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (CONT'D) 

2.15 Schools and Libraries Discount Program (Cont'd) 

2.15.3 Discounted Rates for Schools and Libraries 

(a) Discounts for eligible schools and libraries and consortia shall be set as a 
percentage from the pre-discount price, which is the price of services to 
schools and libraries prior to application ofa discount. 

(b) The discount rate will be applied lo all commercially available 
telecommunications services purchased by eligible schools, libraries or 
consortia. 

(c) The discount rate is based on each school or library's level of economic 
disadvantage as detennined in accordance with Ihe FCC's Rules and by its 
location in cither urban or rural area. 

(d) The discount matrix for eligible schools, libraries and consortia arc as 
follows: 

% Of Students Eligible For % Of U.S. Urban Rural 
National School Lunch Program Schools Discount Discount 

< 1% 3% 20% 25% 
1%- 19% 31% 40% 50% 
20% - 34% 19% 50% 60% 
35% - 49% 15% 60% 70% 
50% - 74% 16% 80% 80% 
75%- 100% 16% 90% 90% 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS 

3.1 General 

FTCS offers intrastate interexchange telecommunications services on a resold only basis 
for communications originating and terminating within the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania under terms ofthis Tariff. 

Customers are billed based on their use of FTCS's services. Charges may vary by service 
offering, mileage band, class of call, lime of day, day of week, and/or call duration. 

3.2 Timing of Calls 

Billing for calls is based in part on the duration ofthe call as follows, unless otherwise 
specified in this Tariff: 

3.2.1 Call timing begins when the called party answers the call (i.e., when two-way 
communications are established). Answer detection is based on standard 
industry answer detection methods, including hardware and software answer 
detection. 

3.2.2 Chargeable time for calls ends when one ofthe parties disconnects from the 
call. 

3.2.3 For billing purposes, the minimum call duration periods vary by service and 
are specific by product or option in subsequent sections of this Tariff. 

3.2.4 For billing purposes, usage after the initial period varies by service and is 
specified by product or option in subsequent sections ofthis Tariff. 

3.2.5 FTCS will not bill for unanswered calls. When a Customer indicates thai 
he/she was billed for an incomplete call, FTCS will reasonably issue credit for 
the call. 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.3 Rate Periods 

3.3.1 Unless otherwise specified, all usage charges are applicable twenty-four (24) 
hours per day, seven (7) days a week. 

3.3.2 For services subject to holiday discounts, the following are Company-
recognized national holidays, determined by the location of the calling station: 
New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Thanksgiving Day, and 
Christmas Day. 

3.3.3 Calls are billed based on the rate in effect at the time the call begins. Calls 
that cross rate period boundaries are billed the rate in effect at the beginning of 
the call for the duration ofthe entire call. 

3.4 Long Distance Interexchange Services 

3.4.1 Nature of Service 

Carrier offers resold long distance interexchange telephone services that allow 
customers to originate and tenninate calls at locations within the Commonwealth 
ofPennsylvania. Usage charges are generally based on the distance, duration, and 
time of day of each call, or may be based on monthly volume of usage. The 
service is offered in two variations depending upon the method employed to gain 
access lo the Company's underlying carrier's network for use ofthe service: 

(a) Switched Interexchange Service is offered in Feature Group D (FGD) 
exchanges where the Customer's local telephone lines are presubscribed 
by the local exchange company to the Company's Interexchange Service, 
such that " ]+" interLATA calls are automatically routed lo the Company's 
underlying carrier's network. 

(b) Dedicated Interexchange Service is offered to the extent facilities are 
available in those cases where the Company and the Customer jointly 
arrange for the establishmenl of dedicated access facilities connecting the 
Customer's trunk-compatible PBX or other suitable equipment lo the 
Company's underlying carrier's POP. The Customer shall be responsible 
for all costs and charges associated with the dedicated access facilities. 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporale Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Coiporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



Trance Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 43 

SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.5 Virtual Private Network Service 

3.5.1 Nature of Services 

The Voice Virtual Private Network ("VPN") service provides the 
Customer the functionality and capabilities ofa private network through 
the use of shared and/or dedicated transmission facilities. This service 
permits the Customer lo establish a communications path between two 
Customer locations. 

(a) On Net - On Net 

The following features shall be available: 

1. Private numbering plan; 

2. Call Line Identification ("CLI"), in order to get the appearance of an 
alphanumeric message including name of the calling Customer site and the 
last digits ofthe caller's extension; 

3. User access code, in order lo identify, monitor and authorize the use of 
tolled services; 

4. Intrastate toll free and toll shared services, for inbound communications to 
Customer call centers; and 

5. Call rerouting to an alternate Customer site. 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.5 Virtual Private Network Service (Cont'd) 

3.5.1 Nature of Services (Cont'd) 

(b) Virtual On Net (VPN) 

The following fealurcs shall be available: 

1. Private numbering plan; 

2. Call Line Identification ("CLID"), in order to get the appearance of an 
alphanumeric message inciuding name ofthe calling Customer site and the 
last digits ofthe caller's extension; 

3. User access code, in order to identify, monitor and authorize the use of 
tolled services; 

4. Intrastate toll free and toll shared services, for inbound communications to 
Customer call centers; 

5. Call rerouting to an alternate Customer site; 

6. On N e l - O f f Net; 

7. OffNet-OnNet ;and 

8. O f f N e t - O f f N c t . 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.6 800 Services 

3.6.1 Nature of Services 

Catrier 800 services arc inward WATS services that permit intrastate calls to a 
Customer call center in one location from stations in diverse geographical 
locations, and for which the cuslomer is billed for the calls rather than the call's 
originator. In addition, Customers may also order Originating ANI Sorting, which 
provides the Customer with a detailed monthly analysis of the originating 
telephone numbers of those placing 800 calls. 

(a) Routing Features: 

1. Alternate Destination on Call Limiter; 

2. Time-Dependent Routing; 

3. Optimized Call Transfer; 

4. NIVR Services; 

5. Remole Queuing; 

6. Customized Announcement; and 

7. Routing on Menu Selection. 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.6 800 Services (Cont'd) 

3.6.1 Nature of Services (Cont'd) 

(b) Termination features: 

1. Call Line Identification; 

2. Dialed Number Identification; and 

3. Transmission of Touch-Tone Signaling. 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.7 Frame Relay Services 

3.7.1 Nature of Services 

Frame Relay is a public, fast-packet data network service offering which offers a 
cost-effective alternative to meshed private line networks. It employs a form of 
packet switching analogous to a streamlined version of X.25 networks. The 
packets are in the form of "frames," which are variable in length, with the payload 
being anywhere between 0 and 4,096 octets. Frame Relay supports a variety of 
simultaneous data applications over a single integrated facility (such as data, voice 
and video). Frame Relay adheres to established ITU-T frame relay standards. 

Access to Frame Relay is available only over a dedicated, digital access circuit 
(lhal typically is 56/64 Kbps, DS-1 or DS-3). 

Transmission of frames between the user sites is on the basis of Permanent Virtual 
Circuits (PVCs), which are pre-detennined paths specifically defined in the Frame 
Relay routing logic. 

The Company will provide a Frame Relay data transport service to Customer, in 
order to support the communications needs across customer sites. The service 
meets the following characteristics: 

1. Compliance with international standards (ANSI Forum); 

2. Access leased lines speed ranging from 64 Kbps to 2 Mbps (For higher 
speed, ATM can be used instead of Frame Relay (after a technical 
feasibility study); 

3. Physical interfaces V35, X.21 and G703/704; 

4. Committed Information Rate ("CIR"); 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.7 Frame Relay Services (Cont'd) 

3.7.1 Nature of Services (Cont'd) 

5. Permanent availability of the CIR; 

6. Use ofthe LMIs (Local Management Interface) on DLCIs 0 and 1023; 

7. Detection and handling of congestion issues, in compliance with ANSI 
T 1.606 standard; 

8. Bi-directional Frame Relay PVCs, with the same CIR in both directions; 

9. Asymmetric PVCs; 

10. Switched Virtual Circuit; and 

11. End-to-end ISDN backup, which shall be activated only in the event of 
local loop or PVC failure. 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.8 Private Line Service 

3.8.1 Nature of Services 

Private Line Service is provided via DS-1 or DS-3 facility. The DS-1 service is a digital 
transmission facility of 1.544 Mbps with a capacity of up to 24 analog or digital channels. 
This service supports voice, analog dala, digital data and video. The DS-3 service is a 
digital transmission facility of 44.736 Mbps with a capacity of up to 28 DS-1 channels or 
672 voice, analog data, or digital data channels. 
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SECTION 3 - SERVICE DESCRIPTIONS (CONT'D) 

3.9 Calling Card Service 

3.9.1 Nature of Services 

Calling Card Service is designed for Customers who travel or make long distance calls 
away from their primary service location. Access to the service is gained by dialing a toll 
free "800" number plus a seven or eleven digit access code plus the called number. In 
addition, the Company may pass through and bill Customer-initiated charges made to 
calling cards billed by local exchange carriers for Customers under the other carriers' 
names. 
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SECTION 4-RATES 

4.1 Long Distance Interexchange Services 

4.1.1 Switched Interexchange Service 

(a) Recurring Charges 

1. IntraLATA Per Minute Rates: 

Volume Commitment Term Commitment 
10,000 +Minutes of 
Use 

Month to Month One Year Two Years 10,000 +Minutes of 
Use $0.15 $0.10 $0,095 

2. InterLATA Per Minute Rates: 

Volume Commitment Term Commitment 
10,000 +Minutes of 
Use 

Month to Month One Year Two Years 10,000 +Minutes of 
Use $0.15 $0.10 $0,095 

(b) Non-Recurring Charges 

1. Early Tennination Charge 

If a Customer terminates service prior to the expiration ofthe term of the 
contract, the Customer will be required to pay the early tennination charge 
in accordance with the Customer's contract for service. 

2. Third Party Vendor Charges 

Customers may also be charged for certain charges incurred by Carrier (at 
the Customer's instruction) in obtaining services from third party vendors. 
At the earliest opportunity, the Customer will be advised ofthe nature of 

the charges and the estimated amount of the charges. 
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SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

Long Distance Interexchange Services (Cont'd) 

4.1.1 Switched Interexchange Service (Cont'd) 

(b) Non-Recurring Charges (Cont'd) 

3. Reconnect Fee: $50 for first two lines. 

This charge applies to reconnect service after dial tone has been suspended 
or service has been disconnected. 

4.1.2 Dedicated Interexchange Service 

(a) Recurring Charges 

Term Per Minute Rates 
0-1 Year $0.11 
2 Years $0,105 
3 or more Years $0,100 

(b) Non-recurring Charges 

1. Early Termination Charge 

If a Customer terminates service prior to the expiration ofthe term ofthe 
contract, the Customer will be required lo pay the early tennination charge 
in accordance with the Customer's contract for service. 

2. Third Party Vendor Charges 

Customers may also be charged for certain charges incurred by Carrier (at 
the Customer's instruction) in obtaining services from third party vendors. 
At the earliest opportunity, the Customer will be advised of the nature of 
the charges and the estimated amount of the charges. 
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SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.1 Long Distance Interexchange Services (Cont'd) 

4.1.2 Dedicated Interexchange Service (Cont'd) 

(b) Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd) 

3. Reconnect Fee: $50 for first two lines. 

This charge applies to reconnect service afier dial tone has been suspended 
or service has been disconnected. 

4.2 Virtual Private Network Service 

4.2.1 Recurring Charges 

(a) The following per minute rates apply to all virtual private network 
switched and dedicated calls as specified below: 

Service InterLATA IntraLATA 
On-Net - On-Net $0.04 $0.04 
Virtual On Net $0.04 $0.04 
On Nel -Off Net $0.10 $0.10 
Off Net-On Net $0.10 $0.10 
OffNet-OffNet $0.15 $0.15 

(b) Olher Recurring Charges: 

Remole Access $0.50 per call 
Personal Codes (per account) $40 per month 
Remole Access per 8XX $2 per monlh 
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SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.2 Virtual Private Network Service (Cont'd) 

4.2.2 Non-recurring Charges 

Set Up Charge $10,000 
Switched Access Line Group charge (applies to 
each Company VPN location with switched 
access) 

$100 per location 

Switched overflow $50 

4.3 800 Services 

4.3.1 Recurring Charges 

(a) A monthly recurring charge applies per assigned toll-free number. 
Monthly Recurring Charge: $ 12 

(b) Per Minute Usage Rates: 

Volume Commitment Term Commitment 
10,000 +Minutes of 
Use 

Month to Month One Year Two Years 10,000 +Minutes of 
Use $0.15 $0.10 $0,095 

4.3.2 Non-recurring Charges 

(a) Area Code Blocking: $150 
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SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.4 Frame Relay Services 

4.4.1 Recurring and Non-recurring Charges 

Issued: 

Monthly 
Port Increment Recurring Install Change 

in Kbps Charuc/Port Charge/Port Charee/Port 

64 $190 $150 $150 
128 $355 $250 $250 
192 $395 $250 $250 
256 $420 $250 $250 
320 $580 $250 $250 
384 $625 $250 $250 

448 $720 $250 $250 
512 $790 $250 $250 
576 $890 $250 $250 
640 $940 $250 $250 
704 $970 $250 $250 
768 $990 $250 $250 
832 $1,110 $250 $250 
896 $1,180 $250 $250 
960 $1,220 $250 $250 

1020 $1,265 $250 $250 
1088 $1,330 $250 $250 
1152 $1,370 $250 $250 
1216 $1,410 $250 $250 
1280 $1,450 $250 $250 
1344 $1,500 $250 $250 
1408 $1,530 $250 $250 
1472 $1,560 $250 $250 
1536 $1,595 $250 $250 

45000 $3,190 $500 $500 
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SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.4 Frame Relay Services (Cont'd) 

4.4.1 Recurring and Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd) 

Permanent Virtual Circuits* 

QoS 
VFRrt 
VFR nrt 
UFR 

MRC perSK 
Simplex of CIR 

$8 
$6 
$4 

Install/Change 
Fees/PVC 

$25 
$25 
$25 

Switched Virtual Circuits** 

QoS 
VFR nrt 

Per megabyte (MB) 
of traffic under CIR 

$0.04 

Per megabyte (MB) 
of DE traffic 

$0.03 

Gateway Connection 

Customer's must subscribe to access lo a particular Gateway Connection on a monthly basis in 
capacity increments (available in n x 64 or n x 56 increments up to DS-1 capacily) equal to or in 
excess of the sum of all simplex CIRs on all cuslomcr PVCs connecting to such Gateway 
Connection ("Total Gateway CIR"). PVC charges are additional as set forth below: 

* Charges apply to each PVC between: (1) two customer Ports; (2) Customer Port and 
Gateway Connection; and (3) two distinct Gateway Connections. 

** Metered charges are for MB of payload transmitted and accepted at ingress. 
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SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.4 Frame Relay Services (Cont'd) 

4.4.1 Recurring and Non-recurring Charges (Cont'd) 

Automatic Reconfiguration** 
Authority 

$250 
$1,000 

$250 
$2,000 

Total Gateway Recurring Total Gateway Recurring 
CIR in Kbps Charge/Port CIR in Kbps Charge/Port 

64 $150 896 $1,955 
128 $295 960 $2,090 
192 $435 1020 $2,220 
256 $570 1088 $2,345 
320 $715 1152 $2,465 
384 $855 1216 $2,580 
448 $990 1280 $2,725 
512 $1,120 1344 $2,865 
576 $1,265 1408 $3,000 
640 $1,405 1472 $3,130 
704 $1,540 1536* $3,255 
768 $1,670 above 1536* ICB 
832 $1,815 

Monthly Install Change 
Recurring Fees Fees 

$250 
$500 

* Install Charge of $500 applies for each DS-1 level (1536 Kbps) or fraction thereof of 
Total Gateway CIR. 

** Per disaster recovery site. 
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2300 Coiporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 58 

SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.5 Private Line Service 

4.5.1 Recurring and Nonrecurring Charges 

(a) DS-1 Transport Rates 

Minimum Monthly Revenue Commitment: $500 

1. Recurring 

Channel Mileage - Monthly Recurring Charge per DSO Mile: $0.20 

2. Non-Recurring 

Installation: $1,000 

Cancellation prior to install: $200 

Cancellation during install, prior to acceptance: $600 

Issued: , 2003 Effeclive: , 2003 

By: Jean-Scbaslien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Coiporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Coiporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Coiporate Solutions L.L.C. FA F.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 59 

SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.5 Private Line Service (Cont'd) 

4.5.1 Recurring and Nonrecurring Charges (Cont'd) 

(b) DS-2 Transport Rates 

Minimum Monthly Revenue Commitment: $4,000 

1. Recurring 

Channel Mileage - Monthly Recurring Charge per DSO Mile: $0.08 

2. Non-Recurring 

Installation: $4,000 

Cancellation prior to install: $200 

Cancellation during install, prior to acceptance: $600 

(c) OC-3 Transport Rates 

Minimum Monthly Revenue Commitment: $100,000 

1. Recurring 

Channel Mileage - Monthly Recurring Charge per DSO Mile: $0,014 

2. Non-Recurring 

Installation: $10,000 

Cancellation prior to install: $300 

Cancellation during install, prior to acceptance: $1,200 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Coiporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Coiporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 60 

SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.5 Private Line Service (Cont'd) 

4.5.1 Recurring and Nonrecurring Charges (Cont'd) 

(d) OC-12 Transport Rates 

Minimum Monthly Revenue Commitment: $100,000 

1. Recurring 

Channel Mileage - Monthly Recurring Charge per DSO Mile: $0,018 

2. Non-Recurring 

Installation: $20,000 

Cancellation prior to install: $300 

Cancellation during install, prior to acceptance: $1,200 

(e) OC-48 Transport Rates 

Minimum Monthly Revenue Commitment: $ 100,000 

1. Recurring 

Channel Mileage - Monthly Recurring Charge per DSO Mile: $0,016 

2. Non-Recurring 

Installation: $30,000 

Cancellation prior to install: $300 

Cancellation during install, prior to acceptance: $1,200 

Issued: ,2003 Effective: ,2003 

By: Jcan-Scbastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Coiporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. FA F.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 61 

SECTION 4 - RATES (CONT'D) 

4.6 Calling Card Services 

4.6.1 Recurring Charges 

Per minute rate: $0.25 

Monthly advanced features charge: $5 (per feature) 

Surcharge: $0.80 per call 

Monthly Account Maintenance Charge: $.50 

4.6.2 Non-recurring Charges 

Advanced features set up charge: $10 (per feature) 

Pay Telephone Surcharge: $.30 per each call originated from a pay 
telephone. 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Coiporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Corporale Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 62 

SECTION 5 - S P E C I A L PROMOTIONAL OFFERINGS 

5.1 General 

From time to time FTCS shall, at its option, promote subscription or stimulate network 
usage by offering to waive some or all oflhe nonrecurring or recurring charges for the 
Customer ( i f eligible) of target services for a limited duration. Such promotions shall be 
made available to all similarly situated Customers in the target market area(s). 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebaslicn Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. FA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 63 

SECTION 6 - CONTRACT SERVICES 

6.1 General 

At FTCS's option, service may be offered on an Individual Case Basis lo meet 
specialized requircmenls ofthe Customer not contemplated in this Tariff. The terms of 
each contract shall be mutually agreed upon between the Customer and FTCS and may 
include discounts off of rates contained herein, waiver of recurring or nonrecurring 
charges, charges for specially designed and constructed services not contained in FTCS's 
general service offerings, or other customized features. The terms oflhe contract may be 
based partially or completely on the term and volume commitment, type of originating or 
terminating access, mixture of services or other distinguishing features. Service shall be 
available lo all similarly situated Customers for a fixed period of time following the 
initial offering to the first contract Customer as specified in each individual contract. 

Issued: , 2003 Effective: , 2003 

By: Jean-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Coiporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA20171 



•ranee Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. PA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 64 

SECTION 7 - L E G I S L A T I V E , R E G U L A T O R Y OR JUDICIAL A C T I V I T Y 

Notwithstanding any statement lo the contrary contained in this Tariff, in the event that 
any regulatory agency, legislative body or court of competent jurisdiction promulgates 
regulations or modifies existing ones including, without limitation, regulations regarding 
payphone compensation, access charges and/or universal service ("Regulatory Activity"), 
FTCS reserves the right, al any time and without notice to: (i) pass through to the 
Customer all, or a portion of, any charges or surcharges directly or indirectly related to 
such Regulatory Activity; or (ii) modify the rates, including any rate guarantees, and/or 
tenns and conditions contained in this Tariff to reflect the impact of such Regulatory 
Aclivity. 

Issued: ,2003 Effective: ,2003 

By: .Ican-Sebastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Coiporale Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



France Telecom Corporale Solutions L.L.C. FA P.U.C. TariffNo. 2 
Original Page No. 65 

SECTION 8 - SUBSCRIBER CHARGES 

Payphone Use Charge 

A $.30 per call charge will apply to calls that originate from any payphone used to access 
FTCS services. This charge, which is in addition to standard Tariffed usage charges and 
any applicable surcharges associated with FTCS service, applies for the use of the 
instrument used to access FTCS service and is unrelated to Ihe FTCS service accessed 
from the payphone. Customers will be charged the payphone use charge for each call 
which is placed from payphones with the exception of: (i) calls placed by inserting coins 
during the progress ofthe call; (ii) calls using Telecommunications Relay Service; or (iii) 
calls originated by customers with qualified speech or hearing impairments who arc 
certified. 

Issued: , 2003 Fffective: , 2003 

By: Jcan-Scbastien Falisse 
Treasurer 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
Mailstop SPO606 
Herndon, VA 20171 



EXHIBIT F 



Capitalization and Corporate Stock Structure1 

Contributed member equity: US$7,005,000 

Retained: US$(6,266,505) 

Net Equity: US$738,495 

1 As of September 30. 2002. 

WASHINGTON 355455vl 



EXHIBIT G 



France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
Demonstration of Financial Capability 

As a newly-formed company, Applicant does not have any audited financial statements. 
Applicant is majority owned and controlled by France Telecom S.A. ("France Telecom"), one of 
the largest communications companies in the world. Applicant's financial information will be 
fully consolidated in the financial statements of its pareni company.1 A copy of France 
Telecom's consolidated audited financial statements for the last three years is attached. 

France Telecom is a leading integrated communicaiions company which is publicly-
traded on both the Paris Stock Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange. As indicated in its 
audited 2001 financial statemenls, France Telecom's consolidated revenue for the year was 
€43.026 billon, EBITDA was €12.32 billion, and operating income was €5.2 billion.2 

The attached financial documents demonstrate that France Telecom Corporate Solutions 
L.L.C. clearly possesses the requisite financial capability to provide intrastate 
telecommunications services in this State. 

1 See Consolidated Financial Statements - France Telecom, 2001, 2000 and 1999 at p. 7 
("companies which are wholly owned or which France Telecom controls, either directly or 
indirectly, are fully consolidaied"). 

Id. at p. 3. As of September 12, 2002, ihe exchange rale between the euro and the U.S. 
dollar was approximately €1 to US$0.98. 

WASHINGTON 257]41vl 



FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(in millions ol euros, except per share dala) 

Six months to June 30, 
Note 

2002 2001 

(1) EBITDA : operating income befoie Special items, net and Depreciation and amortization 

Earnings per share (In euros) 

Earnings per share Oelore goodwill amortizaiion and minority interest 
- basic 
• diluted 

(9.86) 
(9.86) 

Earnings per share 
- net income (loss) 
- lully diluted 

(11.29) 
(11.29) 

2.80 
2,75 

1,77 
1.74 

Yoarended 
December 31, 

2001 

Sales of services and products 22 472 20 424 43 026 

Cost of services and products sold (excluding items shown separately below) (9 133) (8 405) (17619) 
Selling, general and administrative expenses (6 187) (5 687) (12 520) 
Research and development expenses (282) (266) (567) 

EBITDA (1) 6 870 6 066 12 320 

Depreciation and amonization (excluding goodwill) (3 595) (3 251) (6 910) 

Operating income before special items, net 22 3 275 2 815 5 410 

Special items, net 24 (93) (101) (210) 

Operat ing income 3182 2 714 5 200 

Interest expenses, net 12 (1 754) (1 967) (3 847) 

Foreign exchange loss, nel (87) (399) (337) 
Discounting of early retirement plan and other long-term liabilities 18 (126) (114) (229) 
Other non-operating income / (expense), net 25 (9 339) 1 778 (5 904) 
Income taxes 26 (2 296) 1 439 2 932 
Employees profit-sharing (51) (71) (131) 
Equity in nel income of affiliates 7 (163) (292) (890) 

Income (loss) before goodwil l amort izat ion and minori ty interest (10 634) 3 088 (3 206) 

Goodwill amortization 4 - 7 (1 466) (1 353) (2 531) 
Exceptional goodwill amortization 4 - (3 257) 
Minority interest 20 (76) 216 714 

Net income (loss) (12 176) 1 951 (8 280) 

(2.91) 
(2.91) 

(7,51) 
(7.51) 

See Noles lo Consolidated Financial Statements 

- 4 -



FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(in millions of euros) 

Note 
Six months ended 

June 30, 
Year ended 

DecemberSI, 

ASSETS 

2002 2001 

Goodwill, nel 4 34 041 34 963 
Other intangible assets, net 5 19 279 18 189 
Property, plant and equipment, net 6 37 128 31 728 
Investmenls accounted (or under the equity method 7 4 278 8 912 
Non consolidated investmenls. net 8 1 720 3 240 
Other long-term assets, net 1 517 1 936 
Deferred income taxes, nel 26 4 040 5 369 
Total lonq-term assets 102 003 104 337 

Inventories 850 900 
Trade accounts receivable, less allowances (1,856 at June 30, 2002. 9 7 730 7 596 
1.475 al December 31. 2001) 
Deferred income laxes. nel 26 646 1 102 
Prepaid expenses and other currenl assets 10 5 678 6 653 
Receivable from divestment of real eslale 6 239 2 669 
Marketable securities 12 148 1 138 
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2 288 2 943 
Total current assets 17 579 23 021 

TOTAL ASSETS 119 582 127 358 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Share capital -€4 par value - Authorised and issued: 1.187,519,899 shares effective period end 4 750 4 615 
Additionnal paid-in capital 24 755 24 228 
Retained earnings (loss) (4 865) 4 682 
Nel income (loss) for ihe year (12 176) (8 280) 
Foreign currency translation adjuslment (2 929) 644 
Own shares (9 975) (5 002) 
Shareholders' equity 21 (440) 21 087 

Minority interests 20 10149 8101 

Exchangeable or convertible noles 12 7 66B 10 750 

Other long- and medium-term debl, less current portion 12 41 485 43 793 
Olher lonq-term liabilities 18 15 164 8 663 
Total lonq-term liabilities 64 317 63 206 

Current portion of long- and medium-term debt 12 9210 1 596 
Bank overdrafts and olher short-term borrowings 12 13 769 11 365 
Trade accounts payable 7 898 8 631 
Accrued expenses and other payables 19 8 255 7 259 
Other current liabilities 19 2 638 2 481 
Deferred income laxes 26 456 374 
Deferred income 11 3 330 3 258 
Total current liabilities 45 556 34 964 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUirc 119 582 127 358 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

- 5 -



FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 
(in millions of euros) 

Nolo 

Six months ended 

Juno 30, 

year ended 

Docomber 31, 

2002 2001 2001 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income/floss) (12 176) 1 951 (S 260) 

^(Jjuslmonrs ro ruconcito nol income/lloss) lo lands gonomtod from operations 
Depreciation & amonization of properly, plant & equipment and intangible assels 4-5-6-7 5 056 4 604 12 698 
Gain on divcsimenl of real eslale 25 (705) 
Result on divestment of other tangible and intangible assels (92) 
Result on divestment of older assels 25 (212) (939) (2 093) 
Changes in valuation allowances nnd other provisions 25 9 286 (1 204) 7 860 
Undistributed earnings of affiliates 164 293 641 
Deferred income laxes 26 1 825 (411) (2 090) 
Minority Interests 20 76 (216) (714) 
Olher ilems 4 (5) (19) 

4 025 4 073 7 406 

Decrease (increase) in inventories 76 168 341 
Decrease (increase) in trade accounis receivable 24 118 (628) 
Securitization of receivables $ 28S eao 914 

Decrease (increase) in other current assets 115 (1 01B) (1 974) 
Impact ol sale of carry back receivables 26 1 111 (1 630) (1 111) 
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts payable (422) (926) (588) 
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and olhcr payables (378) 1 365 2 026 
Impact oi sales of future receivables IB (25) 690 
Other chanqos in oporotinq assets and liabititios 789 (t 045} (330) 

Net cosh provided by operating activities 4 814 3 028 7 076 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of properly, plant, and equipmenl and intangible assets nel ol movements in supplier 
balances ((538) at June 30, 2002, (184) at June 30, 2001. 411 at December 31, 2001) 5 - 6 (3 620) (4 066) (8 553) 
Income from sale of real estate 6 2411 
Proceeds from sale ol other property, plant, and equipmenl and intangible assets 107 222 296 
Repurchase ol Orange SA shares: exercise of E.On put option 3 (950) 
Purchase ot own shares (Orange pic accuisition) 28 (4 974) (8 785) (8 607) 
Orange SA IPO proceeds 3 6 102 6 102 
Cash paid lor investmenls securities and acquired businesses, net of cash acQuired 3 (97) (728) (1 071) 
Change in nel cash following the full consolidation of TP Group 3 144 
Investments in affiliates 7 (3) (442) (3 264) 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities and businesses, net of cash sold 3 - 6 89 3 233 4 524 
Decrease (increase) in marketable securities and other long-term assets (10) 43 (31) 

Net cash used in investing activities (7 103) (4 421) (10 824) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Issuance of long-term debt 12 734 22 553 37 244 
Repayment ol long-term debt 12 (1 212) (11 458) (18 174) 
Increase (decrease) in bank overdraits and short-letm borrowings 12 1 806 (7 198) (13 556) 
UMTS vendor financing IB 282 234 
Minority inleresl shareholder contributions 4 149 181 
Dividends paid lo minority shareholders 20 (39) (99) (128) 
Appropriation of earnings 21 0 (1 075) (1 075) 

Net cash used in financing activities 1 575 2 672 4 726 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (714) 1 479 978 
Effeci of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 59 44 (75) 
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning ot period 2 943 2 040 2 040 
Cash and cash equivalents at and of period 2 2S8 3 563 2 943 

Supplomontary disclosures 

Cas'i paid during tho period lor: 
. Inleresl (1 887) (1 655) (3 695) 
. Income laites (608) (377) (610) 

See Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statemenls 



FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(in millions ol euros cicepl per share data) 

Number of 
thtres 
issued 

Shore 
capital 

Additional 
paid-in 
capital 

Retained 
earnings 

Qoss) 

Foreign currency 
translation 
adjustment 

Own 
shares 

Balance al January 1. 2001 I 153 83 J 943 4 615 24 228 E40S 59 (2 153) 33 157 

No! income far Ihe year 2001 
Movcmanis in holdings ot own shores (sec Note 21) 
Appropnaiion ol earnings 
Translatioii adjusimem 
Other movements 

(8 280) 
(1 271) 
(1 075) 

620 

(2 649) 

785 

(S 280) 
(4 120) 
(1 075) 

785 
620 

Balance at DeccmDer 31, 2001 I 153 63 1 943 4615 24 228 (3 598) 844 (5 002) 25 087 

Net incomo (or the six month period 
Movemems in holdings ot own shores (see Nolo 21) 
Appropriation ot earnings (soo Note 21) 
Increases in capital (see Note 21) 
Translation adjusimem 
Other movoments: mainly TP Group (see Note 3) 

33687 956 135 527 

(12 176) 

(1 056) 

(211) 

(4 973) 

(3 762) 
<1>) 

(12 176) 
(4 973) 
(1 056) 

662 
{3 782) 

(222) 

Balance at June 30. 2002 I t87 5J9 899 4 750 24 755 (17041) (2 929) (9 975) (440) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Sialemonts 
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FRANCE T E L E C O M 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 

A vertissement 

Cette traduction anglaise des comptes consolides rediges en langue frangaise a ete 
preparee pour le confort des lecteurs anglophones. Malgre tout le soin apporte a cette 
traduction, certaines erreurs, omissions on approximations peuvent y subsister. France 
Telecom, ses representants et scs salaries n 'en assumeront aucune responsabilite. 

Disclaimer 

This English language translation ofthe consolidated financial statements prepared in 
French has been prepared solely for the convenience of English speaking readers. 
Despite all the efforts devoted to this translation, certain errors, omissions or 
approximations may subsist. France Telecom, its representatives and employees decline 
all responsability in this regard. 
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FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(in millions of euros, except per share dala} 

Note Year ended December 31, 
2001 2000 1999 

Sales of services and products 43 026 33 674 27 233 

Cost of sen/ices and products sold 
Selling, general and administrative expenses 
Research and developmenl expenses 

(17 619) 
(12 520) 

(567) 

(12 733) 
(9 685) 

(449) 

(9 686) 
(7 341) 

(593) 

EBITDA (1) 12 320 10 807 9 613 

Depreciation and amortization (goodwill excluded) (6 910) (5 726) (4 885) 

Operating income before special items, net 22 5 410 5 081 4 728 

Special items, net 24 (210) (225) (236) 

Operating Income 5 200 4 856 4 490 

Inleresl expense, net 12 
Exchange gains/( losses), nel 
Discounting of early retirement liability 18 
Olher non-operaling income/(expense). net 25 
Income taxes 26 
Employees profil-sharing 
Equity in ne) income/ (loss) of affiliates 7 

(3 847) 
(337) 
(229) 

(5 904) 
2 932 
(131) 
(890) 

(2 006) 
(141) 
(237) 
3 957 

(1 313) 
(141) 
(275) 

(662) 
(20) 

(196) 
767 

(1 797) 
(135) 

259 

lncome/(loss) before goodwill amortization and minority Interests (3 206) 4 700 2 706 

Goodwill amortization 4-7 
Exceptional goodwill amortization 4 - 7 
Minonty interests 20 

(2 531) 
(3 257) 

714 

(1 092) 

52 

(136) 

198 

Not income/floss) (8 280) 3 660 2 768 

(1) EBITDA : operating incomo boforo special items, not and depreciation and amortization 

Earnings/ (loss) per share 

Income/ (loss) before goodwill amortization and minorily interests 
- basic 
- diluted 

(2.91) 
(2.91) 

4.41 
4.33 

2.64 
2.60 

Net income/(loss) 
- basic 
- diluted 

(7.51) 
(7.51) 

3,44 
3.38 

2.70 
2.66 

See Noles lo Consolidated Financial Statements 
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FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(in millions of euros) 

Note At December 31, 

ASSETS 

2001 2000 1999 

Goodwill, nel 4 34 963 36 049 1 206 
Other intangible assets, net 5 18 169 16 289 925 
Plant, propeny and equipment, net 6 31 728 34 623 28 964 

Investmenls accounted for using the equity method 7 8 912 10 506 1 066 
Investment securities, nel 8 3 240 10 218 5 673 
Olher long-term assets, net 9 1 936 722 443 

Deferred income laxes, net 26 5 369 2 532 2 285 
Total long-term assets 104 337 110 939 40 562 

Inventories 900 1 216 621 
Trade accounts receivable, less allowances ( 1 475 in 2001 9 7 596 8 783 6 884 

1 406 in 2000 and 1 137 in 1999) 
Deferred income (axes, net 26 1 102 1 609 677 
Prepaid expenses and olher currenl assels 10 6 653 4 782 2 676 
Receivable from divestment of real estate 6 2 689 - -
Marketable securities 12 1 138 216 211 
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2 943 2 040 2 424 
Total current assets 23 021 18 646 13 493 

TOTAL ASSETS 127 358 129 585 54 055 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Share capital of 1 153 831 943 shares (€ 4 par value) 4 615 4 615 4 098 
Additional paid-in capital 24 228 24 226 6 629 
Retained earnings 4 682 2 748 5 255 
Nel income (loss) for the year (8 280) 3 660 2 768 
Foreign currency translation adjustment 844 59 153 
Own shares (5 002) (2153) 
Shareholders' equity 21 21 087 33 157 18 903 

Minority interests 20 8 101 2 036 1 369 

Convertible and exchangeable noles 13 10 750 2 653 2 654 
Other long and medium term financial borrowings 14 43 793 27 894 9 579 
Olher lonq term liabilities 18 8 663 5 220 4 182 
Total long-term liabilit ies 63 206 35 767 16 415 

Current portion of long and medium term borrowings 14 1 596 7 542 2 551 
Bank overdrafts and Other shorl-lerm borrowings 15 11 365 25 165 2 479 
Trade accounts payable 8 631 7 618 5 330 
Accnied expenses and other payables 7 259 7 729 4 208 
Olher currenl liabilities 19 2 481 8 113 1 175 
Deferred income taxes 26 374 512 495 
Deferred income 11 3 258 1 946 1 130 
Total current liabilit ies 34 964 58 625 17 368 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 127 358 129 585 54 055 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
{in millions of euros except per share data) 

Number Share Additional Retained Foreign Own Total 
of capital paid-in earnings currency shares 

shares capital translation 
issued adjustment 

Al January 1. 1999 1 024 614 56f 3 905 6 620 6 472 (15) 16 991 

Nel income for the year 1999 
Increase in capital (nole 21) 
Movements in holdings of own shares 
Appropriation of net income 
Translation adjustmenl 

1 340 193 
2 768 
(193) 

1 
(1 025) 

Balance at December 31. 1999 

168 

2 768 
0 
I 

(1 025) 
168 

t 024 615 901 4 098 6 629 8 023 153 18 903 

Nel income for ihe year 2000 
Increase in capital (note 21) 
Movements in holdings of own shares (note 21) 
Adjuslment on Orange pic acquisition cosl (note 3) 
Appropriation of net incomo 
Translation adjustment 
Olher movements 

129 2 t6 042 517 17 599 
3 660 

(4 335) 
(1 025) 

85 
(94) 

(2 153) 

3 660 
18 116 
(2 153) 
(4 335) 
(1 025) 

(94) 
85 

Balance at December 31. 2000 f 153 831943 4 615 ?A 228 6 408 59 (2 153) 33 157 

Nol income lor the year 2001 
Movements in holdings of own shares (note 21) 
Appropriation ol net income 
Translation adjustmenl 
Other movements (note 7} 

(8 260) 
(1271) 
(1 075) 

620 

(2 849) 

785 

(8 280) 
(4 120) 
(1 075) 

785 
620 

Balance al December 31. 2001 I 153 831 943 •t 615 24 228 (3 598) 844 (5 002) 21 087 

See Notes lo Consolidaied Financial Statements 
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FRANCE TELECOM 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW 
(in millions ol euros) 

Note Year ended December 31 
2001 2000 1999 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income/(toss) (8 260) 3 660 2 768 

Adjustments lo roconcito not income/floss) lo funds genorotod from operations 
Deprecialion & amorlization ol property, plan! & equipmenl and intangible assels 12 696 6816 5 021 
Gain on divestment ol real estate 25 (705) -
Result on divestment of other tangible and intangible assets (92) (23) 2 
Result on divestment ot olher assets 25 (2 093) (7 677) (598) 
Changes in valuation allowances and other provisions 25 7 860 4 113 79 
Undistributed earnings ot affiliates 841 276 62 
Deferred income taxes 26 (2 090) (277) 297 
Minorily interests 20 (714) (52) (198) 
Other items (19) 25 29 
Funds qonorntod from operations 7 406 6 863 7 482 

Decrease (increase) in inventories 341 (329) (176) 
Decrease (increase) in trade accounis receivable (628) (978) (780) 
Securitization of receivables 9 914 -
Decrease (increase) in other current assets (1 974) (1 372) (668) 
Impact of sale of carry back receivables 26 (1 111) -
Increase (decrease) in trade accounts payable (588) 936 1 084 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 2 026 1 493 1 167 
Impact ol sales ot future receivables IB 690 - -
Olher changes in current assets and liabilities (330) (250) 627 

Net cash provided by operating activities 7 076 6 613 8109 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets 5 - 6 (8 553) (14 313) (5 001) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment and intangible 296 274 150 
Cash paid for Orange pic 3 - (21 693) -
Purchase of own shares (Orange pic acquisition) 3 (8 807) - -
Orange SA IPO proceeds 3 6 102 - -
Cash paid (or investmenls securities and acquired businesses, nel of 
cash acquired 3 (1 071) (10 899) (2 502) 
Investments in affiliates 7 (3 284) (7 969) (302) 

Proceeds from sale of investment securities and businesses, net of cash 
sold 3 - 8 4 524 7 930 720 
Decrease (increase) in markeiable securities and olher lonq-term assets (31) (218) 268 

Nel cash used in investing activities (10 824) (46 888) (6 647) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Issuance ol long-term debt 12 37 244 21 528 1 088 
Repayment of long-term debt 12 (18174) (3 229) (2 389) 
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings 12 (13 556) 21 002 1 092 
UMTS vendor financing 18 234 - -
Minority interest shareholder contributions 181 1 847 199 
Dividends paid to minority shareholders 20 (128) (213) (71) 
Appropriation of net income (1 075) (1 025) (1 025) 

Nei cash used in financing activities 4 726 39 910 (1 106) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 978 (365) 356 
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (75) (19) 26 
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of period 2 040 2 424 2 042 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2 943 2 040 2 424 

Supplementary disclosures 

Cash paid during the period for: 
. Interest (3 695) (2 132) (1 001) 
. Income taxes (610) (1 771) (1 106) 

See Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

I. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

France Telecom group («Francc Telecom») with notably its 

publicly listed subsidiaries Orange. Wanadoo and Equant, is one 

of (he leading tclecommunicalions operators in the world and is 

(he principal (elccommunicaiions operalor in France. France 

Telecom provides consumers, businesses and olher 

leiecommunicaiion carriers with a wide range of services 

including fixed line and mobile telecommunications, dala 

transmission, Iniemet and multimedia, broadcasting and olhcr 

value added services. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

[•OLICIES 

The consolidaied financial siaiements of France Telecom are 

prepared in accordance with French generally accepted 

uceouniing principles under rule 99-02 of the Coinite ilc la 

HtjglemeiuutitM Coin/mihlc (CRC). 

France Telecom has reviewed provisions recorded al December 

31. 2001 and does noi aniictpate any significanl impacl with 

respect to the first application on January I , 2002 of rule CRC 

00-06 on liabilities. 

Presentation of the financial .italcrnents 

The consolidated balance sheel, statement of income and 

statement of cash flows are prepared in Euros. 

• EBITDA represenis operating income before special items, 

net and before depreciation and amonization. 

• Operating income before special items, net is presented 

separaiely. 

• Operating income represenis the difference between 

operating revenues and charges. Il includes specific non­

recurring ilems, recorded under ihe heading "Special items, 

nei» within Operating Income. 

• The costs resulting both from the discounting ofthe French 

early retirement plan and from ihe French legal regime of 

employee profu sharing are presented as a separate line ilem 

in the consolidaied statement of income afler Operating 

Income. 

• The «Othcr non-operating incomc/(expense). net» relates 

mainly to gains and losses on the disposal of consolidaied 

subsidiaries and investment securities including dilution 

results and the change in provisions against investmeni 

securities and marketable securities, dividends received, and 

movements in restructuring provisions. This heading also 

includes resulis on disposals where their relative size 

exceeds ordinary aclivity (real estate, commercial 

receivables...). 

• The goodwill amortization charge relates to the goodwill of 

fully and proportionally consolidated companies as well as 

investments accounted for under the equity method. 

• The balance sheet classifies assets and liabilities based on 

liquidity or maturity dales, and presents short-term balances 

(due within one year) separately from long-term balances. 

• The statement of cash flows excludes from changes in cash 

those changes in bank overdrafts and markeiable securities 

having maturities in excess of three months at ihe lime of 

purchase, which are presenied as financing and investing 

activities. 

Moreover, in order to ensure comparability ofthe 2001 financial 

statements wilh those of prior years, specific headings have been 

introduced on the face of the balance sheet and statemeni of 

income at December 31, 2001 in order to reflect directly (i) the 

receivable from the sale of real estate (Note 6) and (ii) the 

exceptional goodwill amonization. 

Principles of consolidalion 

The main consolidation principles arc as follows: 

• Companies which are wholly owned or which France 

Telecom controls, either directly or indirectly, arc fully 

consolidaied; 

• Companies in which France Telecom and a limited number 

of olher shareholders exercise joint control arc accounted 

for using ihe proportionale consolidalion method: 

• Companies over which France Telecom exercises 

significant influence but docs not control (generally a 20% 

to 50% controlling interest), arc accounted for under the 

equity method; 

• Material intcr-company balances and transactions arc 

eliminated. 



FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

Translation of financial siatcments of foreign subsidiaries 

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries in a non Euro 

functional currency, except for those in countries with hyper-

inflationary economies, are translated into Euros as follows: 

• assets and liabilities are translated at the year-end rate: 

• items in the statement of income are translated at the 

average rale for the year; 

• the translation adjuslment resulting from the use of these 

different rales is included as a separate componenl of 

shareholders' equity. 

The financial statements of ihe Argenlinean subsidiaries have 

been convened under the terms ofthe CNC (Conseil National dc 

la Coinpiahilite) announcement of January 18, 2002 relating lo 

the accounting consequences of the devaluation of ihe 

Argentinean peso. Balance sheet ilems, revenues and expenses 

from significani operations from December 21, the date on which 

ihe Argentinean peso ceased to be quoted, lo December 31, 2001 

have been converted using a rate of 1.65 pesos for I Euro. 

The local currency financial statemenls of foreign subsidiaries 

operating in counlries with hyper-inflationary economies are 

remeasured into iheir functional currency, prior to converting to 

Euro, using the following meihod; 

• monetary elements of ihe balance sheel are translated at the 

closing rate; 

• non-monetary elements are convened at the historical rale; 

• items in the slatemem of income are translated at the 

average rate for the year excepi for depreciation and 

amonization charges which are translated al ihe historical 

rale; 

• the translation adjusimem resulting from the use of these 

different rales is recorded in ihe income statemeni as an 

exchange gain or loss. 

The financial statements of subsidiaries remeasured as described 

above are ihen translated into Euro using the method applied to 

all foreign subsidiaries of France Telecom. 

At year-end, foreign currency denominated monetary balances, 

excepi for those hedged by currency swap contracts, are 

translated at closing exchange rates. 

Unrealized gains and losses on foreign currency denominated 

balances, except for those hedged by currency swap agreements 

and for those arising on liabilities effectively hedged by assets in 

ihe same currency, arc recognized in the statement of income for 

the period. 

Revenue recognition 

France Telecom's principal sources of revenue arc 

recognized as follows: 

• Revenues from telephone subscriptions or Inlemet access 

are recognized on a straight-line basis over the invoicing 

period, 

• Revenues from incoming and outgoing traffic arc 

recognized when the service is rendered, 

• Revenues from sales of tclecommunicaiions equipment, net 

of point of sales discounts, and connection charges are 

recognized upon delivery to the customer or activation of 

the line, as appropriate, 

• Revenues from Internet advertising are recognized over the 

period lhal services are provided. Barter transactions arc 

recorded, only when their value can be determined, and in 

this case are recorded at the fair value of the goods or 

services provided or received, whichever is more readily 

determinable in the circumstances, 

• Revenues from advertisements in printed and electronic 

directories are recognized when directories arc published. 

Transactions in foreign currencies 



FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31. 2001 

Cuslomcr acquisition costs and loyalty costs 

Cuslomcr acquisition cosls and loyalty costs relating to mobile 

and Inlemet cuslomers are expensed as incurred. These costs 

consist principally of commissions and rebalcs paid to 

distribuiors. 

Advertising costs 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs 

amounted to € 1,063 million in Ihe year ended December 31, 

2001. € 939 million in ihe year ended December 31. 2000. and 

€ 664 million in 1999. 

Research and developmenl 

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. 

Customer receivables 

France Telecom docs nol consider itself exposed to a 

concentration of credit risk with respect to trade accounts 

receivable due to its large and diverse cuslomer base (residential, 

professional and large business cuslomers). Allowances are 

recorded on the basis of an evaluation of the risk of non-recovery 

of receivables. The allowances are based on an individual or 

statistical asscssmem ofthis risk. 

Customer receivables which are securtized are removed from the 

heading "Trade accounts receivables, less allowances" when the 

rights and obligations attached io such receivables are 

definitively transferred to third parties. Subordinated shares held 

in Fonds cornmun de creances as part of these transactions are 

recorded as "Other long-term assets, net". Depreciation of such 

shares, determined based on the risk of non-recovery of the 

receivables divested, is presenied as a reduction in "Other long-

term assels, net". 

H'W) site development costs 

Costs relating io ihe development of web sites are capitalized or 

expensed depending on the phase of development of sites: costs 

relating to the planning and operating stages are expensed, costs 

related io development and creation ofthe design are capitalized. 

Cash and cash equivalenls 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid 

investmenls with maturities generally of three monlhs or less at 

the lime of purchase and arc slated at cost, which approximates 

fair value. 

Earnings per share 

Two types of earnings per share arc shown: basic earnings per 

share and diluted earnings per share. The number of shares used 

for the calculation of diluted earnings per share takes into 

account Ihe conversion imo ordinary shares of existing 

poicntially dilutive instruments, Dilulcd earnings are calculated 

as nei result adjusted for the financial charges of dilutive 

instruments, net of their effect on tax and employee profit 

sharing. 

Own shares held, when recorded as a reduction in consolidated 

shareholders' equity, arc not included in the calculation of 

earnings per share. 

Marketable securities 

Marketable securities are valued al acquisition cost. When 

necessary, a provision is recorded on an investment-by-

investment basis to adjust this value to ihe average markel value 

over the month prior to year-end or iheir estimated trading value 

for securities not publicly traded. 

Inventories 

Inventories arc stated at the lower of cost or probable net 

realizable value taking into account notably future revenue 

expected from new subscriptions arising from mobile handset 



FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

sales. Cost relates lo ucquisition or production costs and is 

generally deicmiined using tbe weighted average method. 

Purchase uccoutithig and goodwill 

Upon acquisition ofa business, the purchase price is allocated on 

a fair value basis to the identifiable assets and liabiliiics of the 

business acquired. The fair value of identifiable intangible assets 

such as trademarks, licenses and customer relationship is 

determined using generally accepted methods such as the income 

approach, the cost approach, or the market value approach. 

The excess of ihe purchase price over the fair value of the share 

of idenliftable assels and liabilities ofthe business acquired is 

recorded in the consolidated balance sheet under the heading 

« Goodwill » for fully and proportionally consolidated eniitics 

and is included in the heading « Investments accounted for under 

the equity meihod » for enlities over which France Telecom has a 

significant influence. 

Goodwill related to foreign companies is recorded as an asset in 

their functional currency. 

Where there is a partial disposal of shares in fully or 

proportionally consolidated companies, the cosl ofthe assets sold 

includes the related portion of goodwill disposed of which is 

removed from ihe balance sheet at disposal, be il through a direct 

sale in exchange for anolher assei or through a dilution. 

The amortization period for goodwill, usually ranging from 5 to 

20 years, is detennined after taking into consideration the 

specific naiurc of the business acquired and the strategic value of 

each acquisition. 

The value in use of goodwill is subject to review when evenis or 

circumstances occur indicating lhat an impairment may exist. 

Such evenis or circumstances include significant adverse 

changes, olher than temporary, in ihe business environment, or in 

assumptions or expectations considered at the time of the 

acquisition. The need to recognize an impairment charge is 

assessed wilh reference to undiscounted cash flows as estimated 

based on prospective economic and operating assumptions used 

by the management of France Telecom. 

Impairment • charges are recorded, where necessary, as the 

difference between nel book value and fair value. The 

recoverable value ofthe goodwill is assessed wilh reference to 

cash flow projections discounted using appropriate rates and 

considering olhcr advantages expected al the acquisilion dale 

such as synergies resulting from the iniegraiion of the business 

with France Telecom's operations and ils strategic position for 

the group. 

Other intangible assets 

Other intangible assets include trademarks, customer 

relationship, licenses, patents and submarine cable link access 

rights. 

Licenses to operate mobile networks arc recorded at historical 

cosl and amortized on a straight-line basis from the effective date 

of commercialization of services. 

The right to operate, in France, a third generation mobile network 

(UMTS) is recorded for Ihe fixed portion payable at ihe grant of 

the license, and this fixed ponion is amortized on a straight line 

basis from the effective date of commercialization of services. 

According to the ruling of the urgent issues task force of the 

CNC, the variable portion (equal to 1% of ihe eligible sales 

generated by the third generation network) will be recorded as an 

operating expense in the period incurred. 

Trademarks and customer relationship arc not amortized. 

Impairment is recorded, as necessary, taking into account 

operating conditions. 

Purchases of capacily transmission on land and submarine cables 

(IRUs) are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over 

ihe forecast useful life. Income from sale of IRUs is recorded on 

a straight-line basis in ihe stalement of income over the duration 

ofthe contract. 
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FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31. 2001 

Properly, plant and equipment 

Assels translcrreci from ihe French State on January 1, 1991. 

upon the creation of France Telecom as a public sector operator, 

were recorded in the opening balance sheet at values jointly 

approved by the Telecommunications Ministry and the Ministry 

of Economy and Finance. 

Since that date, property, plant and equipment are recorded at 

historical cost of acquisition or at construction cost. Cost of 

networks includes planning and construction costs, as well as site 

installation and equipment upgrade costs. 

Interest arising from debl incurred lo finance construction and 

developmenl of assets is. from January 1. 2000, capitalized as 

part ofthe cost of such assets during the construction period. 

Repairs and matnlenanee costs, except to the extent that they 

increase productivity or extend the useful life of an asset, are 

expensed as incurred. 

Leased assels are recorded as an acquisilion of an asset and ihe 

incurrence of a financial debl when the lease terms effectively 

transfer the risks and rewards of ownership ofthe asset to France 

Telecom, Equally, where France Telecom transfers the risks and 

rewards of ownership to a third party through a lease contract, 

this is accounted for as a disposal. 

Deprecialion of property, plant and equipment is measured on a 

straight-line basis over the following eslimated useful lives : 

consequently, are recognized in income over the estimated useful 

lives ofthe corresponding assels. 

Impairment of long-lived assets 

Plant, property and equipment and intangible assets are written 

down when, as a result of events or changes in circumstances, 

their recoverable value appears lo be permanently less than their 

carrying value. 

• For assels to be held and used, impairment is principally 

determined for each group of assets by comparing their 

carrying value with the undiscounted cash flows they are 

expected to generate based upon management's expectations 

of fuiure economic and operating conditions. 

Where necessary, impairment of these assets is recorded as 

the difference between carrying value and fair value. Fair 

value is determined on the basis of discounted cash flows or 

by reference to replacement cost for used equipment, cosl of 

alternative technologies or recenl transactions for similar 

businesses, or markel prices. 

• Assets to be disposed of are written down to their fair value, 

less costs of disposal, when such value is lower than their 

carrying value. 

Buildings and leasehold improvements 

Switching, transmission equipment and other 
network equipment 

Cables and public infrastructure 

Compulcrs and software (excluding network) 

Other 

10 to 30 years 

5 to 10 years 

15 to 20 years 

3 to 5 years 

3 to 14 years 

Investment subsidies 

France Telecom may receive non-repayable investmeni subsidies 

in the form of capita! projects funded directly or indirectly by 

third parties, primarily local and regional governments. Subsidies 

arc recorded as a reduction ofthe cost ofthe assets financed and. 

Investment securities 

Investmeni securities arc stated at cost, including any associated 

direct costs. An allowance is recorded when the value in use, 

based upon management's analysis, appears to be permanently 

less than carrying value, on the basis of different criteria such as 

market value, the outlook for development and profitability, and 

the level of shareholders' equity, and taking into accounl the 

specific nature ofeach investment. 
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FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

Deferred income luxes 

Deferred income laxes arc recorded on all icmporary differences 

between llic carrying amounts of assels and liabilities for 

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax 

purposes, as well as those arising from loss carry forwards. 

Deferred lax assets are provided for lo the extent that the 

recovery of Ihese laxes is nol considered probable. 

France Telecom uses the liabilily method under which deferred 

laxes are measured applying the tax rates enacted at the end of 

ihe accounting period, as applicable at the time the temporary 

difference is expected to reverse. Where significant: deferred tax 

assels and liabilities are discounicd when reversals can be 

reliably scheduled. 

Dchi issuance costs 

Debt issuance costs are amortized over the term ofthe related 

debl instrument since January 1. 2000. 

Purchase of own shares 

Own shares held by France Telecom are reflected in ihe 

consolidated balance sheet at iheir acquisition cost as a reduction 

in shareholders' eqtiily except for those held in share price 

stabilization transactions, which are recorded as marketable 

securities. Gains and losses on disposals of such shares, including 

related laxes are recorded wilhin shareholders' equity, net of tax. 

Allowances recorded againsi own shares held within investment 

securities in the single company financial statements of France 

Telecom, as well as provisions for risk relating lo commitments 

lo repurchase own shares, are eliminated on consolidalion. 

Commitments to repurchase own shares, set out in Note 28, are 

recorded as an off balance sheet commitment until the 

repurchase. 

Derivative financial instruments 

France Telecom manages interest rate and foreign currency risks 

using derivative financial instruments including inleresl rate 

swaps, interest rate cap and floor contracts, foreign exchange 

futures coniracts on organized forward markets, currency swaps 

and currency options. All such instruments are entered into for 

hedging purposes. 

Income and costs resulting from the use of these instruments are 

recorded in the consolidated statement of income on a 

symmetrical basis with the underlying transaciion being hedged: 

• Differences between interest receivable and interest payable 

on swaps, caps and floor contracts designated as hedges, as 

well as premiums paid for these operations or discounts, arc 

recorded in the consolidated statemeni of income over (he 

life oflhe coniract as an adjuslment to inleresl expense; 

• Initial differences belween the negotiated term rate and the 

fixing rate for the day on forward exchange contracts and 

currency swaps designated as hedging operations arc 

recorded in income over Ihe life of ihe contract as an 

adjustment to intcresl expense. Subsequent gains and losses 

generated on these coniracts due to fluctuations in exchange 

rales arc recorded as exchange rate corrections resulting 

from the item hedged: 

• Gains and losses arising on contracts designated as hedges 

of identifiable firm commitments or identifiable future 

iransaclions are deferred and taken into account in the 

valuation ofthe transaction at maturity. 

Certain operations do not qualify for accounting purposes as 

hedging operations under France Telecom's policy. Derivative 

financial instruments which do not qualify for accounting 

purposes as hedging opcraiions relaic mainly to operations 

related to management of shon-term debt (the Euribor 3 month 

future contract and rate collars). Such operations arc evaluated as 

follows: 

For operations on organized markets, margin calls arc 

recorded directly in the statement of income. 
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FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

Nei unrealized losses, calculated on instruments 

negotiated over the counter, are fully provided for. 

Unrealized gains on instruments negotiated over the 

counter are recorded upon unwinding of the position. 

Pension plan for French civil servants 

Civil servants employed by France Telecom are eligible to 

receive retirement benefits from the civil servant and military 

personnel defined benefit pension plan, which is administered by 

the French State. 

periods until the end of the plan as personnel opt for early 

retirement. 

Retirement indemnities und other pension plans 

In France, legislation requires that lump sum retirement 

indemnities be paid to non-civil servant employees based upon 

their years of service and compensation at retirement. The 

actuarial cost of this unfunded obligation is charged annually to 

income over the employees' service lives. The effect of changes 

in assumptions is accounted for in the consolidated statement of 

income over the average remaining service life of employees. 

The "France Telecom Law» (FT law) (French law no96-660 of 

July 26. 1996) states that France Telecom's obligation is limited 

to a defined annual contribution. As a result, France Telecom has 

no additional liability either for shortfalls that might arise in the 

pension plan for its civil servant employees, or for plans of other 

civil servants. 

British subsidiaries of Orange S.A. and Equant have for eligible 

employees defined contribution pension schemes and 

unapproved retirement benefit schemes financed by third parties. 

Contributions to both types of plans arc expensed as incurred. 

Early retirement plan for French civil servants 

In accordance with the «FT law», France Telecom has introduced 

an early retirement plan for civil servants and olher employees. 

The plan provides lhat until December 31, 2006, civil servants 

and other employees working for France Telecom who attain the 

age of 55 with 25 years service, may elect for early retirement. 

Between early reiirement age of 55 and normal retirement age of 

60. participants will receive 70% of their salary. In addition, 

participants receive a lump sum indemnity, which amounts to 

one year of early retirement salary if ihey elect for early 

retirement at the age of 55. and which declines progressively to 

zero as the age al which they eleel approaches normal retirement 

age. 

A provision corresponding to an actuarial measurement of the 

liability under ihis plan has been recorded (Note IS). Actuarial 

assumptions are monitored and modified based upon experience. 

Changes in actuarial assumptions arc accounted for from ihe 

anniversary oflhe plan, in ihe consolidated statement of income 

in ihe year of change, and on a prorata basis over future service 

Post-retirement benefits other than pensions 

France Telecom has commitments to provide certain additional 

post-retirement benefits such as telephone equipment, credit card 

fees and various other benefits lo retirees. 

France Telecom recognizes the expected actuarial cost of these 

posl-rctircment benefits in the consolidated statement of income 

over the service lives of the eligible employees. 

The effect of changes in actuarial assumptions is accounted for in 

the consolidaied statement of income over the average remaining 

service lives of employees. 

Slock subscription plans 

Shares of subsidiaries issued upon exercise of subscription 

options granted to employees arc reflected as a share capital 

increase, based on the exercise price of the options, creating a 

dilution result for France Telecom. 

With regard to purchase options, a provision is recorded in the 

books ofthe subsidiary to the extent that the acquisition cost of 
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FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

the shares purchased to service the exercised options is higher 

than the exercise price oflhe options. 

Social charges assumed in connection with the share option plan 

are provided for when it is probable that the options will be 

exercised. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statemenls in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 

make estimates and assumptions which affect ihe amounts 

reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes, 

notably with regard 10 provision for risks, deferred tax assets, 

goodwill and investment securities. Actual results could differ 

from those estimates. 

3. MAIN ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES OF 

COMPANIES 

For the year ended December 31. 2001 

Main acquisitions 

EquanI 

Following the Exiraordinary General Meeting of Equani on June 

27. 2001, and in accordance with the agreement concluded in 

November 2000, France Telecom performed the following 

transactions on June 29, 2001: 

• Acquisition of 67.950.000 Equant common shares from 

the SITA Foundation in exchange for France Telecom 

shares al a ratio of 2.2 Equani shares per France 

Telecom share, resulting in consideration of 6 1.739 

million based on the share price al June 29, 2001 of 

6 56.3 per share. 

• Investmeni of USS I billion (C 1,179 million) through 

subscription for 10 million newly issued Equant 

eonvenible preference shares: each preference share 

has the same voting rights as one Equani common 

share and will automatically convert into one new 

Equant common share five years afler the date of 

subscription, and 

• Contribution to Equant in exchange for 80,617,348 

newly issued Equant common shares, of 100% of the 

share capital of Global One Communications World 

Holding B.V. and Global One Communications 

Holding B.V, with France Telecom retaining certain 

activities previously performed by Global One. This 

contribution was valued on the basis of discounted 

future cash flows al USS 5,168 million (€ 6,094 

million), including contributed cash amounting to USS 

300 million. 

As a result of these transaciions, France Telecom owned, at June 

29, 2001, 54.27% oflhe combined company Equani. 

Under the terms of Ihe agreement, within a two-year period, 

France Telecom is to pay back to Equani: 

• 50% of costs related to the preservation of employment 

or the cancellation of employment coniracts for cenain 

employees of Ihe newly combined company Equani -

Global One. 

• Restructuring and integration costs olher than those 

relating to employees, up to a maximum of USS 210 

million. 

On the basis of these elements, the preliminary purchase 

accounting for Equant at December 31. 2001 is as follows: 

Contribution of Global One 

Proceeds from subscription of (he 10 million 

tiquant preference shares, paid in cash 

6,094 

1,179 

7.273 

Minorily intcrcsis, corresponding to Equant x 45.73% 

shareholders 

Acquisilion of Equant common shares from 

the SITA Foundaiion 

3,326 

1,739 
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Kcstruciuring, iniegraiion and sssociatcd 369 

acquisition cosls 

Prel iminary acquisi l ion cost 5.434 

Fair value of net assets acquired 634 

I ' r d im ina rv goodwil l 4.K»0 

Preliminary goodwill in Euros is amortized from July 1, 2001, 

over periods of up lo 20 years, and amounts to € 4.800 million 

(USS 4.071 million). The acquisition and restructuring costs 

associated with the acquisition were depreciated in the second 

half of 2001 (Note 4). 

consortium, increased their share in TP SA by 8.93% and 3.57% 

respectively for a total of PLN 3,656 million (€ 950 million) of 

which PLN 2.612 million (6 679 million) were paid by France 

Telecom. Following this operation, the consortium holds 47.5% 

of TP SA. of which 33.93% is held by France Telecom. The 

consortium holds a call option for a supplementary investmeni of 

2.5% plus one share. Moreover, put and call options have been 

concluded between Kulczyk Molding and France Telecom 

relating lo the participation of Kulczyk Holding in TP SA (Note 

28). 

The preliminary goodwill relating to this complementary 

investment amounts to €213 million and is amortized over 20 

years from October I , 2001. The investment in TP SA is 

accounted for under the equity method (Note 7). 

EtjiKinl CVRs 

On July 2, 2001. France Telecom issued to all Equani 

shareholders oilier lhan the SITA Foundation and to certain 

owners of share options and rcstricicd share awards granted by 

Equant before November 19, 2000. 138,446,013 contingenl value 

rights ("CVR"). Each CVR gives the holder the right to receive a 

cash payment, on the third anniversary ofthe completion oflhe 

Equani transaction (June 2004), representing the difference if 

negative between the average Equant share price for a defined 

period and € 60, limited to a maximum of € 15 per share. 

Movement in markel price in 2001 and in the beginning of 2002 

(notably in lerms of EBITDA multiples) has resulted in a CVR 

market value since issue corresponding to a payment ofthe CVR 

at maturity. Whilst considering that the Equant business plan 

assumptions remain valid. France Telecom management 

considers lhat such a payment would not be recovered from the 

value in use of the Equant investment as derived from the 

business plan. As a results ofthis. France Telecom has recorded a 

provision for the maximum risk, amounting to € 2.077 million 

(Note 18). 

TP SA. 

Under an agreement signed on September 5, 2001 between the 

Polish government and the consortium lead by France Telecom. 

France Telecom and Kulczyk Holding, ils partner in the 

Frecsenv 

In December 2000. Wanadoo SA made an offer for the cnlirc 

share capital of Freeserve, the main Internet services provider in 

the United Kingdom. The offer was carried out in March 2001 on 

the basis of a parity of 0.225 new Wanadoo shares for each 

Freeserve share. The number of shares issued at amounts to 

230.069,681, resulting in a purchase price of € 2,078 million. 

The resultant goodwill for this operation amounts to € 1,886 

million and is amortized over a 20-year period from March I , 

2001 (Note 4). 

Indite Multimedia 

On December 18, 2000, Wanadoo agreed to acquire ihe entire 

share capital of Indice Multimedia, the second largest directory 

operator in Spain. At the general meeting on March 22, 2001 and 

in accordance with the agreement, Wanadoo acquired 86.71% of 

the capital of Indice Multimedia by issue of 20,325,444 shares 

and a cash payment of € 80.5 million, representing an acquisition 

cost of € 190 million. The remainder of Ihe capital will be 

acquired through options granted both to shareholders, in cash 

when the option is exercised, and also to certain shareholders, in 

cash and in Wanadoo shares at exercise. 
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The acquisition of Indice Multimedia gave rise to goodwill of 

t" 318 million being amortized over a 20-year period from April 

1.2001 (Note 5). 
Main acquisitions and divestments of non consolidated 

investments (Note 8) 

Mm* 

On October 11, 2000. France Telecom and ENEL reached an 

agreement relating to the acquisition of Infostrada by ENEL and 

its commitment to merge Wind and Infostrada. 

Under this agreement, and following an extraordinary general 

meeting on July 30. 2001 which approved a capital increase 

reserved for Enel as a consideration for the contribution of 

Infostrada. France Telecom's interest was reduced from 43.4% to 

less than 27% in the new entity. The effeci ofthis operation is a 

dilution gain of € 934 million. The merger of Wind and 

Infostrada had legal effect al January 1, 2002. 

Moreover, under this agreemcnl. France Telecom and ENEL 

agreed to make a public offering of 25% of Wind, subject to 

market conditions. The agreement includes put and call options 

over Wind shares wilh ENEL, in favor of France Telecom (Note 

28). 

Orans*! SA IPO 

In February 2001, France Telecom sold 636 million existing 

shares of Orange SA representing 13.24% ofthe total number of 

existing shares and voting rights in Orange SA. through a public 

offer lo private and institutional investors as well as employees. 

The net proceeds from ihese offers amounted to € 6.1 billion. 

Since February 13. 2001, Orange SA shares have been lisled on 

the Premier Marche of Euronext Paris SA and on the London 

Stock Exchange. This operation has no material impact on 

consolidated income before tax at December 31, 2001, as a 

provision of € 1.773 million to cover the expected loss was 

recorded in (he financial statements al December 31, 2000. 

Following this offering and the transfer lo E.On of 102.7 million 

shares of Orange SA as a consideration for 42.5% of Orange 

Communicaiions SA, acquired in November 2000, France 

Telecom owns 84.4% of Orange SA (Nole 28 - commitments 

linked to the acquisition of Orange Communications SA). 

For the year ended December 31. 2000 

Main acquisitions 

Orange pic and Orange Communications SA 

In May 2000, France Telecom, and the Vodafonc group signed 

an agreement with effect Augusl 22, 2000, resulting in (i) the 

cash purchase by France Telecom of 664.74 million Orange 

shares for € 21.5 billion (ii) the contribution by the Vodafone 

group to France Telecom of 544.56 million Orange pic shares in 

exchange for 129.20 million new France Telecom shares, issued 

al € 140.2 per share, with Vodafone renouncing the voting rights 

attached to the shares. As a result of this operation, France 

Telecom held 100% of the share capital of Orange pic. France 

Telecom immediately repurchased 15.36 million France Telecom 

shares from Vodafone ai issue price, such that the Vodafone 

group would not hold more than 9.9% of the share capital of 

France Telecom. 

This share purchase was financed by France Telecom's issue ofa 

security of € 2.15 billion with maturity March 2001. 

Following the Initial Public Offering (IPO) of Orange SA on 

February 13, 2001, Vodafone and France Telecom reached an 

agreement on February 28, 2001, with respect to the terms oflhe 

buy-back of the outstanding 113.85 million France Telecom 

shares held by Vodafone. This transaction represenis a 

comprehensive settlement ofthe put and call arrangements set up 

in August 2001 and fixes the total price of these shares at 

approximately € 11.63 billion. Cash payments of € 6.65 billion 

were made in March 2001 against delivery by Vodafone of 64.1 

million France Telecom shares. A final cash payment of € 4.97 

billion is due on March 25, 2002 against 49.8 million France 

Telecom shares (Note 21 and 28). 
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On ihe basis of ihis agreemcnl. ihe total acquisition cost of 

Orange pic amounts on a historic cosl basis lo € 35,472.million 

as summarized below: 

(in millions of euros) 

Cash consideration 

Transaction cosls. net of related lax 

21.519 

174 

Sub-total 21,693 

Share consideration through issuance of 

129 201 742 France Telecom shares 18.114 

Price adjustment resulting from February 28. 2001 

agreemcnl (4,335) 

Total purchase price 35,472 

The purchase price has been allocated to the following 

identifiable assets and liabilities: 

(in millions of euros) 

35 472 
Purchase price 

Fair Value of nel assets acquired: 

Orange irademark 4 600 

Customer relationship t 950 

CiSM license 875 

Other assels acquired 544 

Other liabiliiicK acquired ' 421) 

6 548 

Goodwill 2K924 

Of which goodwill allocated to Orange 1 418 

Communicaiions SA. 

The purchase price allocation resulted in an increase to net assets 

of € 7.621 million, and relates primarily to the Orange trademark, 

customer relationship and a GSM license nol recorded in the 

Orange pic consolidated balance sheet before the acquisilion 

dale. The trademark has been recognized based on the discounted 

value of cosl savings equal to royalties which would have been 

payable io third parties for the use ofthe trademark, had Orange 

noi owned such trademark. The customer relationship has been 

valued on a discounted cash How basis relating to the customers 

concentration in Britain at ihe dale of acquisition. These assets 

arc noi amortized but are subjeel to a regular impairment review. 

Goodwill arising at acquisilion amounting lo € 28.924 million is 

amonized over a 20 year period. Following the IPO of Orange in 

February 2001, goodwill has been reduced to € 24.345 million. 

On November 10, 2000 France Telecom acquired E.On's 42.5% 

shareholding in Orange Communications SA (Switzerland) for 

€ 1,299 million of which 75% was settled through shares of 

Orange SA, with put and call arrangements (Nole 28), This 

investment was transferred to Orange. This acquisition increased 

the ownership of Orange in Orange Communications SA from 

42.5% to 85%. 

This investment, accounted for using the equity method since 

September I , 2000. has been fully consolidated from November 

I , 2000. Goodwill arising from the acquisilion of the 42.5% 

interest amounting to E 1,466 million is amortized over 20 years. 

Following the IPO of Orange, goodwill has been reduced to 

€ 1.234 million. 

Global One 

In March 2000, France Telecom acquired Sprint and Deutsche 

Telekom's interests in Global One for a tolal of USS 3,898 

million (6 4,080 million) generating goodwill of £ 3,966 million 

amortized over a 20 year period. Following these acquisitions, 

France Telecom owned 100% of Global One. This investment, 

previously accounted for using the proportionate consolidation 

method, has been fully consolidated from April I . 2000. France 

Telecom, holding the entire share capital of Global One 

following these operations, contributed almost all the aclivities of 

Global One in 2001 in relation to the Equani acquisilion. 

Following this contribution, goodwill has been reduced to 

6 2.346 million at December 31, 2001. 

MobilCom 

On March 23, 2000, France Telecom entered into a cooperation 

framework agreement with MobilCom. a German fixed line 

operator, mobile and Internet service provider, and MobilCom's 
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founding shareholder, regarding ihe acquisilion of a UMTS 

license.and the launch of UMTS mobile telecommunications 

services in Germany. Pursuant to the agreement. France Telecom 

extended a € 3.749 million loan to a company jointly owned by 

France Telecom and MobilCom lo fund that company's bid for a 

UMTS license. In October 2000. France Telecom contribuicd its 

share in this company to MobilCom in exchange for a 28.5% 

equity intcresl in MobilCom which was subsequently contributed 

lo Orange SA. 

In connection wilh these transactions. France Telecom. 

MobilCom and MobilCom's founding shareholder entered inio a 

cooperation framework ugrccment. with notably put and call 

option agreements exercisable under certain conditions (Note 

28). 

MobilCom has been accounted for under the equity meihod since 

November 1. 2000. Goodwill arising from the acquisition 

amounts lo € 2.700 million and was initially amortized over a 20 

year period. 

Wind 

On July 28. 2000. France Telecom reached an agreement with 

ENEL and Deutsche Telekom to purchase Deutsche Telekom's 

entire 24.5% interest in Wind. France Telecom acquired a 18.9% 

shareholding for€ 2.082 million, bringing ils ownership of Wind 

to 43.4%, with ENEL owning the remaining 56.6%. 

Wind is accounted for under the equity method and the 

preliminary goodwill arising from the acquisition of the 

additional 18.9% amounis lo 6 1,994 million and is amortized 

over 20 years. Following the finalization of the purchase price 

allocation exercise in 2001, goodwill amounts lo 6 1.523 million 

before the Infostrada contribution. 

TP SA 

In October 2000, following an agreement between the Polish 

govemment and a consortium led by France Telecom. France 

Telecom acquired 25% and Kulczyk Holding, its partner in the 

consortium, acquired 10% of the share capital of 

Telekomunikacja Polska SA (TP SA). Poland's state-owned 

tclecommunicaiions operator, for lotal consideration of € 4.5 

billion, of which France Telecom contributed € 3.4 billion. 

Preliminary goodwill arising from the acquisition amounts to € 

2.701 million and is amortized over 20 years since October 1, 

2000. 

This investment has been accounted for under the equity method 

since October 1. 2000. 

JTC 

In January 2000, the consortium composed of France Telecom 

and the Arab Bank of Jordan reached an agreement with the 

Jordanian government over the acquisition of 40% of the capital 

of the Jordanian telecommunications operator, Jordan 

Telecommunications Company (JTC), for USS 508 million 

(€510 million). This acquisition was made through a holding 

company. Jiico. held 88% by France Telecom and 12% by the 

Arab Bank of Jordan. Goodwill amounts to € 342 million and is 

amortized over 15 years. This investment has been 

proportionately consolidated from January 1, 2000. 

Wumidoa IPO 

On July 19. 2000. France Telecom carried out an IPO of its 

newly created wholly owned subsidiary Wanadoo with a listing 

on Euronext Paris. Approximaicly 10% oflhe outstanding shares 

of Wanadoo were listed through the issuance by Wanadoo of 

new shares and the sale by France Telecom of existing shares. 

The proceeds from the offering amounted lo approximately € 2 

billion. This IPO was followed in October 2000 by Wanadoo's 

purchase of minorily interests in France Telecom Intcmcl 

subsidiaries in Spain and in the Netherlands in exchange for 

newly issued Wanadoo shares. The effect of these two 

transactions resulted in an after tax gain in 2000 of € 1,952 

million. As a result of these transactions, France Telecom's 

interest in Wanadoo has decreased lo 88.64%. 

For ihe year ended December 31. 1999 

Main acquisitions 
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In August 1999. France Telecom and Telecom Italia increased 

their investment in the consonium Nortel Inversora. which 

controls the Argentine operator Telecom Argentina, by jointly 

acquiring an additional 35% of voting rights for USS 265 million 

(€ 249 million) each. Following this transaction, France Telecom 

and Telecom Italia each control 50% of the voting rights of the 

eonsorlium. This investment has been accounted for using the 

proportional consolidation method from September I , 1999 to 

December 21, 2001. The goodwill arising from this acquisition 

amounted to € 190 million, and was initially amortized over 15 

vcars. 

4. GOODWILL IN CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENTS 

Main goodwill arising from fully or proportionately consolidated 

investments is as follows: 

At Dcccmbcril, 

2001 2000 

Cost 1 1 1 Accumul Net book Net book 
ated 

amortiza 
value value 

(in millions of euros) 
tion 

Orange 

Orange PCS 23,435 (1,565) 21.870 27.047 

Orange Communications 2,554 (153) 2,401 2,848 

SA (Switzerland) 

Olhcr Orange 567 (348) 219 496 

Equant / Global One 

Hquam 4.619 (546) 4.073 -

Global One 2,347 (181) 2,166 3,833 

Other liquant/ Global 85 (34) 51 16 

One 

Wanadoo 

Freeserve 1,980 (82) 1,898 -

Indice Multimedia 323 (12) 311 -

Wanadoo (isparta 328 (81) 247 316 

Pages Jauncs 319 (56) 263 279 

Other Wanadoo 319 (130) 189 217 

Olher 1,724 (449) 1.275 997 

Total 38,600 (3.637) 34,963 36,049 

"> Goodwill denominated in foreign currency is translated al the closing 
rote. 

France Telecom assesses the value in use of Orange PCS and 

Orange Communicaiions SA at the level of Ihe segment resulting 

from the regrouping of Orange pic and the mobile activities 

formerly held by France Telecom. 
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Due to the integration of Global One within Equant, France 

Telecom assesses their value in use on a joint basis, taking into 

account their strategic value for the group. 

The value in use of Freeserve and Wanadoo Espana as well as 

Pages Jaunes and Indice Multimedia lake into account their 

strategic value within Wanadoo's intcrnel and dircciories 

businesses respeciively. 

Movements in net book value of goodwill is as follows: 

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

At December 31, 

(in millions o f euros) 

1001 2000 1999 

Opening balance 36.049 1.206 872 

• Acquisitions 8.027 35.757 461 

• Divestitures (6.489) - ( D 

• Amortization (2.195) (966) (136) 

• Kxcepiional amortization (560) • -
• Trunslation adjustmenl 296 4 10 

• Kcchssirication (165) 4K -

Closinu balance 34.963 36,049 1,206 

The effect ofthe main acquisitions is sel out in note 3. 

Divestments relate to the decrease in goodwill generated by the 

IPO of Orange and Global One's contribution to Equani. 

In 2001, the goodwill amonization charge includes € 1.2 billion 

relating to Orange PCS and € 365 million relating to Equant and 

Global One and. in 2000. 6 458 million relating to Orange PCS 

for the period from September I lo December 31 and €251 

million for Global One. 

Exccpiional goodwill amonization in 2001 relates to Ananova 

and Wildfire (€211 million) and io the restructuring and other 

related costs fur the new Equani entity (€ 349 million) included 

in the acquisilion cost. 

Translation adjust me nls result mainly from the recording in 

foreign currency of goodwill relating to non Euro zone 

companies. 

2001 2000 

( in millions o f euros) 

Cost . Accumul 

ated 

d t p reci a 

t ion 

Nel book 

value 

Net book 

value 

Telecommunications 

licenses 9.548 (244) 9,304 8,236 

Patents and rights o f 

use 1.145 (363) 782 761 

Trademarks 5.051 (86) 4,965 4,602 

Market share 2.688 

• 
2,688 2,195 

Other intangible assets 
819 (369) 450 495 

Tota l 19,251 (1,062) 18.189 16.289 

M o v e m e n l s in the net book value o f other in tang ib le assets is as 

f o l l ows ; 

2001 2000 1999 

(in mill ions o f euros) 

Opening balance 16.289 925 645 

• Acquisitions of intangible 

assets 

1,169 7.368 166 

• liffeet ofacquisit ions and 

divestitures 

716 8,573 171 

• Divestments (31) (14) • 
• Amortization and provisions (382) (214) (62) 

• Reclassification 76 (16) (14) 

• Translation adjustment 352 (333) 19 

Closing balance 18.189 16.289 925 

((Telecommunications licenscs» relates primarily to operating 

licenses of mobile networks, in particular the payments paid for 

the granting of UMTS licenses: 

(i) in 2001. in France for € 619 million (fixed payment excluding 

associated costs). The duration ofthis license is 20 years. 

(ii) in 2000. in the United Kingdom for €6.6 billion and in the 

Netherlands for€436 million. 
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((Patents and rights of use» relate mainly to patents and cable 

usage rights . 

<iTradetiiarks» and i(Custonier relationship" relate mainly to the 

Orange irademark and the Orange customer relationship in the 

United Kingdom resulting from the purchase price allocation of 

Orange pic (Nole 3). The Global One trademark was depreciated 

in 2001. 

ft. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

At December 31, 

2001 2000 

Cost Accumul 

ated 

deprccia 

t ion 

Net book 

value 

Net book 

value 

t in mill ions of euros) 

Land and buildings ii.-mt (5.197) 6.301 8,348 

Switching and 

transmission 

equipmenl 

24.217 (16.963) 7.254 7.285 

Cables and public 

infhistructtirc 

20.250 (11.789) 8,461 9.055 

Other network 

equipment 9,187 (3.8221 5,365 4.736 

Computer and 

tenninal equipment 

7.638 (4.500) 3,138 3,102 

Motor vehicles and 

olher 

2,737 (1,528) 1,209 2,097 

Total 75.527 (43.799) 31,728 34,623 

Changes in the net book value of property, plant and equipmenl 

arc as follows: 

2001 2000 1999 

( in mill ions o f euros) 

Opening balance 34 623 28 964 26 577 

• Acquisitions o f plant, 

propcrtyandequipment 7 811 6 993 4 835 

• Effect o f acquisitions and 

divestitures (1 605) 4 210 2 323 

• Sale o f real estate (1 963) - -
• Other retirements and sales (286) (237) (151) 

• Depreciation expense 
(6 613) (5 509) (4 819) 

• Kcclassification (428) (70) (25) 

• Translation adjustment 189 272 224 

Closing balance 31 728 34 623 28 964 

In November 2001, France Telecom concluded a binding 

reciprocal agreement wilh a consonium of real estate investors to 

sell 431 office and mixed technical buildings, whereby the 

parties commitled to sign notarial deeds by September 30, 2002. 

The notarial deeds were signed on March 12, 2002 for 242 

buildings, representing 74.7% of the sales price of the 

transaciion, and the remaining deeds are to be signed by June 30, 

2002 as the administrative issues are settled. The result on 

disposal ofthe 431 buildings, recorded in "Olher receivables" 

amounts lo € 2.7 billion, of which £ 2 billion has been cashed at 

March 13, 2002. The gain on disposal, net of costs, amounts to 

€ 705 million, and has been recorded in non-operating result 

(Note 25). At the same lime France Telecom is committed to re­

lease through 6-9 year leases these buildings except for certain 

asseis to be vacated in the short-term (Note 28). 

In 2001, the effect ofacquisitions and divestitures relate mainly 

to: 

(i) the first consolidation of Equant NV. for € 699 million. 

(ii) the equity accounting of Nortcin"clccom Argentina, for €2.7 

billion, 

(iii) the change in the percentage of proportional consolidation of 

ECMS. for€ 156 million. 
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(iv) ihe firsl consolidalion of Mauritius Telecom for € 120 

million. 

In 2000. ihe effeci of ucquisilions and divestiiurcs relale mainly 

io ihe consolidalion of Orange pic for a tolal of € 2,685 million 

and of Orange Communicaiions SA (Switzerland) for a tolal of 

£ 704 million, and to Global One (previously accounted for using 

the proportionate consolidation method) for€ 444 million. 

In 1999, the effect of acquisitions and divcstilures related mainly 

lo the proportional consolidalion of Telecom Argentina for 

€2.278 million. 

7. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 

EQUITY METHOD 

The carrying values of France Telecom's investments in affiliates 

are as follows (in millions of euros): 

Company Principal 

activilics 

% control 

at 

December 

31. 2001 

2001 2000 1999 

M o b i l C o m " 1 Telephony 

operator in 

Gcrmanv 

28.3 0 3 687 -

TP S A , " Telephony 

operator in 

Poland 

33.9 4 552 3 441 -

Wind Telephony 26.6 3 349 2011 58 

Infostrada" 1 operator in Italy 

M T C O Mobile 

telephony 

operator in 

Thailand 

49.0 460 370 -

Radian/.tl} Financial 

information 

provider 

49.0 301 

PTK Mobile 

telephony 

operator in 

Poland 

34.0 164 60 60 

Television Par Satellite 25.0 (671 (99) (67) 

Satellite television 

(TPS) 1 , 1 packages 

FTICI ^ Holding 

company for 

investmenls in 

STMic roe lec iron 

ies 

7H5 586 

Noncl / Telecom Argentina Sec 
0 - -

below 

Olhcr 

Companvs"' 
• 

153 251 429 

Total 8.912 10,506 1.066 

(1) Related off balance sheet commitments arc set out in Note 28 

(2) Subsidiary of liquant 

(3) TPS is accounted for using the equity method (25%), corresponding io 

the direct control ofthe parent company, France Tdiivision Entreprisc, in 

which France Telecom has a direct controlling interest of 65.84%. A 

memorandum of understanding to sell TPS was signed wilh TF1 in 

December 2001 (Note 28). 

(4) Transferred to investment securities in 2001 (Note 8). 

22 



FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

(5) These shares include notably the investment in the Brazilian operator 

Intelig. whose value of € K7.K million under equity accounting has been 

written down to zero at December 31, 2001. 

Telecom Argcniinu 

Telecom Argentina, proportionally consolidated until December 

21. 2001. is equity accounted for from this date. Moreover, the 

conversion of the financial statements of Telecom Argentina as 

set out in Note 2. as well as the amortization of the entire 

remaining goodwill have reduced the value under equity 

accounting to zero. The Argentinean peso crisis of December 21, 

2001 has lead Telecom Argentina to designate advisory banks in 

charge of setting up propositions for management of its debt. The 

debt of Telecom Argentina is mainly denominated in dollars, and 

the indexation of prices to the dollar has been suppressed. France 

Telecom therefore considers that the Argenlinean crisis has 

reduced its capacily to control. France Telecom neither intends 

nor is obliged to increase its commitments in Argentina. The 

impact of tlie proportional consolidation of Telecom Argentina 

nmil December 21. 2001 is as follows: 

fin millions of euros) 2001 2000 

Sales of services and 

products 

Hbilda 

Operating income 

Financial charges 

1,792 

641 

178 

(128) 

1,818 

685 

235 

(126) 

Finally to depreciate, as a measure of prudence, several 

assets totaling € 554 million (mainly the current account of 

MobilCom wilh France Telecom), recorded in non-operaling 

expenses. 

Changes in investments in affiliates are as follows: 

MobilCom 

2001 2000 1999 

(in mill ions of euros) 

Opening balance 10.506 1,066 956 

• Investmenls made in 

af filiates including capital 

increases 1 1 1 

1.208 9.958 302 

• Contribution o f LHS in 

Sema Group - 348 -

• Conlribution of Infostrada 

in Wind 934 - -

• Effeci o f transfer lo 

investmeni securities (786) (565) (17) 

• Depreciation o f the equity 

accounting value o f 

Mobi lCom (839) 

• lilTcct o f acquisitions and 

divcstilures 1,326 74 (180) 

* Equity in nel income/(lossl 

o f affiliates 

(890) (275) 275 

• Amorlization of goodwil l 
(336) (126) (16) 

• Exceptional amortization o f 

goodwill 

(2.697) - -

• Dividends received from 

affdiates ^ 

49 (1) (341) 

• Translation adjusimem 1 1 1 437 27 87 

Closing balance 8.912 10.506 1.066 

Reexamining the perspectives for the mobile telephony markel in 

Germany with the presence of two dominants operators and four 

entering operators has lead France Telecom: 

• To depreciate in full the goodwill, i.e. € 2,509 million 

recorded in exceptional amortization, 

» To depreciate ihe balance oflhe equity accounling value, i.e. 

6 839 million recorded in non-operating expenses. 

For 2000, investmenls include € 2,076 million paid in 2001. 
I J 1 Including in 1999 £ 312 million of dividends paid by FTICI. 

company holding indirectly France Telecom's investment in 
STMi croc Ice Iron ies. 

1 , 1 Of which €276 million relale to ihe translation adjustment on the 
goodwill ofTP SA in 2001. 

In 2001. complementary investments relale mainly to TP SA as 

set out in Note 3. The effect of acquisitions and divestitures show 
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mainly (i) the dtfTcrcncc arising on the revaluation of £ 620 

million.in the equity accounted value prior to the complementary 

investmeni in Wind in July 2000 on the basis of fair value at that 

dale (Nole 3), (ii) the entry ofthe Radianz shares held by Equani. 

for £ 342 million and (iii) the equity accounting of 

Nortel/Telecom Argentina. 

In 2000. Ihe investments made in affiliates relate mainly to 

investments in the mobile telephony operator MobilCom 

(Germany) and the operaiors TP SA (Poland) and Wind (Italy) as 

described in Note 3. 

In 1999, the main effeci of acquisitions relates to the Nortel 

Inversora consortium, proportionally consolidated from 

September 1. 1999 (Note 3) 

Amortization of goodwill arising on equity accounted affiliates 

amounis lo € 336 million in 2001 (€126 million in 2000). 

Exceplional amortization has also been recorded for £ 2,509 

million relating io MobilCom and for € 185 million related to 

Nortein"clecom Argentina. 

At December 31, 

(in millions of euros) 

2001 2000 1999 

TP SA 2,574 2,66K -

Wind 1 " S67 1,953 

• 
BITCO 331 243 -

Kadianz 155 - -

MobilCom 0 2.67K -

Nortel / Telecom Argentina (1 - -

Olher 29 39 53 

Total 3.956 7.581 53 

The decrease in the net goodwill for Wind is due mainly to (i) the 
impact on the preliminary goodwill in 2000 of the purchase price 
allocation exercise on (he assets and liabilities acquired and (ii) the 
dilution effect following the contribution of Infostrada io Wind (Note 
3). 

The equity in nel income/(loss) of affiliates is presented as 

follows: 

Following this, the net book value ofthe principal goodwill is as 

follows al December 31, 2001: 
(in millions of euros) 

2001 2000 1999 

TPS A 1 " 65 52 

• 
Intelig (45) (98) (14) 

BITCO (58) (1) -
MobilCom1 1 1 (178) (40) -
Wind (358) (253) (138) 

Nortel / Telecom Argentina 
Ml 

(178) • -

- 181 425 

Other companies (138) (116) 2 

Equity in net incomc/(ioss) 
of affiliates 

(890) (275) 275 

m Over three monlhs in 2000 (Note 3) 
' ; | Over two months in 2000 (Note 3) 
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As set out in Note 3, the contribution of Infostrada lo Wind in July 
2001 brought France Telecom's controlling interest in the new entiiy 
Wind/lnfostrada from 43.4% to 26.6%. 

Company proponionally consolidated until December 21, 2001. 
Tlie loss under equity accounling covers the period from December 
21. 2001 to December 31. 2001 and corresponds mainly to the loss 
recorded by these companies on their dollar denominated 
borrowings. 

Including € 399 million in 1999 from disposal of part of the 
investment in STMicrodectrunics (Note 3). 

8. OTHER I N V E S T M E N T 

R E L A T E D RECEIVABLES 

SECURITIES AND 

France Telecom's main investment securities are as follows: 

At December 31, 

2001 

At Dec 

31, 

2000 

(in millions of 
% Cast Provi­ Net Net (in millions of 

interest sion book book 
euros) value value 

NTL shares 
18.3% 2.967 (2,967) 0 2.074 

NTL preferred 
shares 

Series'11 - 2,938 (1.910) 1,028 2,819 

Series"' - 777 (505) 272 777 

NTL convertible 
notes 230 (161) 69 230 

Bull SA 16.9% 438 (438) 0 34 

Bull SA other 
instruments 33 (33) 0 33 

Panafon 11.0% 35 35 35 

Sema Group pic . . 565 

Sprint 5.7% 306 306 1,617 

Quoted companies 7,724 (6.014) 1,710 8,184 

KPN Orange 517 

Mauritius 
Telecom111 - - 310 

IT ICI ^ 36.2% 464 464 

Satellite 
organizaiions 
fit 

335 - 335 218 

Oplimus 20.0% 122 122 94 

Connect Austria 17.5% 112 112 109 

Other companies 916 (419) 497 786 

Non quoted companies 1 949 (419) 1.530 2.034 

Total 9,673 (6.433) 3.240 10,218 

5% Cumulative Participating Convertible Preferred Stocks 

5% Cumulative Participating Convertible Preferred Stocks 

Investment consolidated from January 1. 2001 

Transferred to Investments accounted for using the equity method 
then part divestment as part of the exit of France Telecom from 
STMicroclcctronics (sec below). 

Eutclsat. Inmarsat and Intelsat. 
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At Uie date of preparation of the consolidated financial 

staicments of France Telecom. 2001 nel income and 

shareholders' equity which major quoted and non-consolidated 

investees have made available are as follows: 

2001 

Shareholders' Net income 
equity'" for the period 

(in millions of euros) 

NTL 

Sprim 

n/a 

14,315 

n/a 

(1.417) 

n/a : not available 

Local GAAP data, translated at closing rate at December 31,2001 

Inveslinent in NTL 

In lyyy. France Telecom acquired ordinary and preferred shares 

of NTL, lelephone, internet access and cable television operator 

fort' 2.97 billion and € 2.94 billion respectively. 

As pan of an issue by NTL in March 2000 of 1.85 million 

preferred shares, for USS 1.85 billion, bearing inleresl at 5% and 

payable in preferred slock, France Telecom together with 

financial institutions subscribed prefened shares for USS 750 

million (E 777 million at the historical rate) and USS 1.1 billion 

respectively. As part ofthis transaction, France Telecom entered 

into put and call option agreements wilh these four financial 

institutions, amended in January 2002 (Note 28). 

At December 31. 2001, France Telecom held 18.3% oflhe voting 

rights (18.6% at December 31. 2000). 

On September 12. 2001, France Telecom, Ihe financial 

insiitutions and NTL agreed that these shares: 

• may be exchangeable in whole or in part, ai the choice of 

France Telecom, into shares of NTL Cablecom Holding 

GmbH, represenling up lo 50% of the share capital of the 

company (this company holds the cable television aclivity 

of NTL in Switzerland). 

• may be eonvenible in whole or in pan, at the choice of 

France Telecom at March 27, 2002, 2003 or 2004 into 

eonvenible preferred shares, convertible into common 

shares of NTL until March 2009 (unless NTL at that time 

opts for cash reimbursement or defers convertibility of the 

preferred shares by one year, but in no event later lhan 

March 27, 2004). The number of NTL ordinary shares 

obtained through conversion of the convertible preferred 

shares would be equal to liquidation value per preferred 

share (USS 1.091), divided by the weighted average share 

price of the 25 days prior lo the date the preferred shares 

become convertible preferred shares multiplied by 1.25. 

arc repayable in cash on March 27, 2009 for those preferred 

shares, which are neither exchanged nor converted. 

In order lo reduce ils debt, NTL began early in 2002 to seek a 

new strategic shareholder and commenced a process of financial 

restructuring. In this context, France Telecom has decided nol to 

increase its financial commitments within NTL, and to 

reappreciatc the value in use of its investment on the following 

basis: 

• The ordinary shares have been completely depreciated, 

represenling a complementary provision of € 2,075 

million in 2001, 

• The convertible notes have been valued on the basis of 

their market price al December 31, 2001, resulting in a 

depreciation charge of € 161 million, 

• The preferred shares have been depreciated for 65% of 

their nominal value, resulting in a charge of €2,415 

million. The depreciation ofthe preferred shares was 

determined by reference to the market values of the 

NTL noics. On the assumption ofa favorable outcome 

from Ihe process of financial restructuring commitled 

and on the basis of the business plan presented by NTL 

managcmcnl, ihe management of France Telecom 

considers thai the net book value of these prefened 

shares corresponds to the best estimate of the probable 

realizable value of its economic interest in NTL. 

• A provision for risk of € 811 million has also been set 

up on the same basis for the preferred shares held by 

the financial institutions and which arc subject to put 

and call options with France Telecom (Note 28). 
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DifTereni cosls linked to this operation have also been 

recorded as charges for€ 448 million. 

These items have been recorded in non-operating expenses for a 

total ofE 5.910 million (Nole 25). 

The management of France Telecom considers that it is not 

exposed to financial risk beyond the net book value of the 

investments and commitmenls set out above i.e. € 1.806 million. 

Divestments in 2001 

from which dale France Telecom is entitled lo dispose of it 

within the iimiis and conditions set out in the shareholder 

agreement. 

Sprint FON 

•As part ofa public offering France Telecom sold its share of 

9.9% of Sprint FON, the American telecommunications operator, 

for USS 1.616 million (€ 1,899 million) on June 4. 2001. The 

pre-tax gain on this transaction (net of exchange) amounts to 

€ 181 million. 

Exit from STMicroclcctronics 

In December 2001, STMicroclcctronics Holding II BV (STH II) 

the holding company through which France Telecom. Arcva, and 

Finmcccaniea held together an invesiment of 43.4% ofthe capital 

of STMicroclcctronics NV (STM) made a private placement of 

69 million STM shares, of which 39 million on behalf of France 

Telecom and 30 million for Finmeccanica. Following this 

placement and as part ofthe new agreemcnl wilh Arcva, France 

Telecom reduced from 49% to 36.2% its holding in FTICI, the 

company holding indirectly 50% of the capital of STF II . This 

operation generated a gain before tax of € 1,068 million. 

Simultaneous to the placement of STM shares by STH II , France 

Telecom issued noles convertible into STM shares for a nominal 

value of € 1.5 billion (Nole 13). These notes are exchangeable 

from January . 2. 2004 into 30 million existing STM shares, 

subjeel to subsequent revision of the exchange parity. The STM 

shares underlying ihe notes issued have been placed under 

escrow by STH II and will be transferred to France Telecom 

through the exercise ofthe call options issued by STH [I. As part 

ofthe agreement with Areva, France Telecom has committed lo 

reduce its share in FTICI through and in proportion to the 

number of STM shares which are transferred to holders of the 

exchangeable noics. 

Under the shareholder agreement held with Areva and 

Finmeccanica. France Telecom has committed lo retaining the 

balance of its indirect share in STM until the end of June 2002, 

Soma Group pic 

On February 12, 2001, in accordance wilh the agreement 

reached with Schlumbergcr and Sema Group pic, France 

Telecom contributed its investment in Sema group pic to the 

public offer for an amounl of € 931 million. The pre-tax gain on 

this transaction amounts to € 401 million. 

KPN Orange 

In February 2001. France Telecom sold its 50% share in KPN 

Orange (Belgium) lo KPN Mobile for a net cash payment of € 

500 million, including € 102 million for the reimbursement of 

short-term borrowings. KPN Orange being reflected at fair value 

in the purchase price allocation of Orange pic, this transaction 

has no effect on the income before lax for ihe period. 

Divestitures in 2000 

Telefonos de Mexico (Telmex) 

In June 2000, France Telecom sold its stake of 7.1% in the 

Mexican national telecommunications operator, Telefonos de 

Mexico (Tclmcx) in the form of an international public offering 

on the Mexican, American and European markets. The sales 

price, net of commission and costs, amounted lo USS 2.7 billion 

(€ 2.9 billion). The net gain after tax.amounts to € 2,173 million. 
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Crown Castle International Corp Croup (CCIC) 

In connection wilh the investments made in the British 

telecommunications operator NTL, the British competition 

authorities (Office of Fair Trading) requested that France 

Telecom withdraw from the companies forming the Crown 

Castle International Corp Group (CCIC) before October 31, 

2000. In June 2000. France Telecom sold a first tranche of 24.9 

million ordinary CCIC shares in a public offering. The sales 

price amounted to USS 693 million (€ 730 million). The nei gain 

afier tax amounts lo E 301 million. 

in accordance witli the commitmenls given in May 2000 by 

France Telecom to the Briiish competition authorities, those 

shares of CCIC which were not sold as part ofthe public offering 

in June 20O0. were sold to a financial institution. In July 2000, 

France Telecom sold 17.7 million shares. The sales price 

amounted to USS 505 million. The recognition ofthis sale in the 

statement of income has been deferred given the coniraciual 

commitments of France Telecom (Note 28). 

creances). France Telecom remains in charge of servicing the 

transferred receivables on behalf of the Fonds cornmun de 

creances. 

France Telecom subscribed for benefical interests in the FCC, 

notably benefical interests subordinated for risk of non-recovery 

of the securiiized receivables. Such benefical interests are 

recorded in "Other long-term assels. net". Consequently, 

deprecialion of such benefical interests, is presented as a 

reduction in "Other long-term assets, net". Losses on 

irrecoverable receivables and movements in the depreciation 

provision for securitized receivables arc presented within 

operating expenses. 

The positive effect of this operation on operating cash flow 

amounts in 2001 to €914 million (excluding costs of sale of 

receivables - see Note 25). As a result ofthis transaction, "Trade 

accounts receivable" have been reduced by € 1,765 million, 

corresponding lo the iransfcrrcd receivables, and "Other long-

term assets, net" have been increased by a net amount of € 851 

million of beneficial interests in the Fonds cornmun de creances. 

Deutsche Telekom 

Pursuant io the framework agreement entered into in May 2000 

between France Telecom. Deutsche Telekom and Kreditanstali 

fur Wiederaufbau (KfW) to unwind the cross shareholdings 

between France Telecom and Deutsche Telekom. France 

Telecom sold its 1.8% holding in Deutsche Telekom to KfW in 

December 2000. The sales price amounted to € 3.1 billion. The 

net after lax gain amounts to € 1.445 million. 

RECEIVABLE, LESS 9 TRADE ACCOUNTS 

ALLOWANCES 

Sec tiritization of receivables 

In June 2001, France Telecom sold trade receivables for fixed 

iine telephony coniracts with consumers and cenain businesses in 

France. This sale was made without recourse, as pan of a 

securitization program with a Security Fund (Fond* cornmun de 

10- PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT 

ASSETS 

Ai December 31, 2001, the variation of other receivables and 

prepaid expenses is due primarily to ihe different categories of 

preferred shares and securities with a May 2002 maturity on NTL 

(C 553 million) and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter (€510 million) 

received as payment from the sale of Noos shares, 

On May 18, 2001, in accordance with the agreement reached in 

August 2000 with Suez Lyonnaise des Eaux, Noos' majority 

shareholder, France Telecom (i) brought its aggregate interest in 

Noos io 49.9% in exchange for the contribution of France 

Telecom's cable network infrastructure used by Noos and other 

minority shares in cable operators, subsequently (ii) sold its 

entire interest in Noos for an amount of € 1,187 million to 

Morgan Stanley Dean Witter Private Equity and NTL 
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Incorporaled (respeciively 22.9% and 27%). The different 

categories of preferred shares and securities issued by the 

purchasers that represent the sale price have a maturity date of 

May 18. 2002, excepi for an amount o f f 138 million, which is 

due on May 18. 2007. As security. France Telecom maintains 

pledges on the Noos shares. 

In the context of ihe NTL's financial restructuring (see note 8), 

no result was recorded from this sale of shares, and the gain 

recorded at June 30, 2001 (representing € 333 million) has been 

reclassified as deferred income at December 31. 2001. 

II • DEFERRED INCOME 

At December 31, 2001, apart from the operation set out in note 

10 above, this heading includes for 6 634 million the effeci of 

spreading over 20 years ihe invoicing of civil works wilhin the 

context oflhe contribution of cable networks. 

12. NET BORROWINGS 

France Telecom's net borrowings are as follows: 

Net borrowinRs Note 2001 2000 

(in millions of euros) 

Exchangeable or convertible notes 13 10.750 2.653 

Other long-term borrowings 14 45.389 35.436 

(including Ihe ponion due within 

one year) 

Bank overdrafts and other short-tenn 15 11,365 25,165 

borrowings 

Gross borrow!nqs 67,5114 63,254 

Marketable securities (1,138) (216) 

Cash (2.943) (2,040) 

Net borrowinKS (*) 63,423 60.998 

(*) After taking into account the receivable from sale of real 

estate for €2.689 million (Note 6), the net bonowings of France 

Telecom amount to € 60,734. 

At December 31, 2001, the contribution of newly consolidated 

companies in 2001 amounts to € 38 million. Moreover, 

accounting for Nortel / Telecom Argenlina using the equity 

method since December 21, 2001 has the effeci of reducing net 

borrowings of France Telecom at December 31, 2001 by 

€2 billion. 

The bond market is ihe main source of long-term financing for 

France Telecom. 

The annual weighted average interest rale of France Telecom's 

nel bonowings in 2001 represents 5.82% compared to 5.74% in 

2000. Moreover, the weighted average spot rate of bank loans 

and notes amounts at the end of December 2001 to 5.29% 

compared to 5.98% at the end of 2000. 
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13. CONVERTIBLE AND EXCHANGEABLE NOTES 

The table below gives details of outstanding convertible or 

exchangeable notes issued by France Telecom SA at 

December 31. 2001: 

6) Bond of nominal value of € t.000 exchangeable for 

STMic roe lec iron ies shares at a ratio of 19.6986 shares per 

bond, thus a price of € 50.765 per share, this ratio could be 

subject to adjustment. 

Origin Amount Maturity Interest Kate At December 31, 

ul issued 

curren 

I I I 

(%) 

2001 

(in millions 

2000 

o f euros) 

Euro 623 2004 4.125 ( J | 623 623 

FF 13.322 2004 2.000'" 2 030 2.030 

l-uro 3.082 2003 2.5001 , 1 3.082 -

Euro 3.4lJ2 2005 4.000 " ' 3.492 -

l-uro 1.523 2004 1.000 "" 1.523 

Total tnnvertil)It or exchangeable notes 10.750 2.653 

1} in millions of currency 

2) Bond of nominal value of € 1,000 exchangeable for Panafon 

shares between January 8. 2000 and November 29. 2004, at a 

ratio of upproximalely 70 shares per bond, this ratio may be 

subject io adjustment. 

3) Bond of nominal value of £ 800 convertible into France 

Telecom shares between December 7, 1999 and January 1,2004 

at a ratio of 10 shares per bond, thus a price of € 80 per share, 

this ratio could be subjeel to adjustment. 

4) Bond of nominal value of € 12.7 exchangeable for Orange S.A. 

shares at a ratio of one share per bond, thus a price o f f 12.7 per 

share, this ratio could be subject to adjustment. 

5) Bond of nominal value of € 1,000 exchangeable for France 

Telecom shares al a ratio of 13.8889 shares per bond, thus a 

price of € 72 per .share, Ihis ratio could be subject io adjustment. 

The characteristics of the exchangeable noles issued by France 

Telecom in 2001 are as follows: 

Notes exchangeable for shares of Orange SA 

Concurrent with the sale of shares of Orange SA in February 

2001. France Telecom issued exchangeable notes for £ 3.1 

billion. The notes, of nominal value € 12.70. bear interest at a 

rale of 2.5% per annum wilh the first payment due on February 

16, 2002 and the final payment due on February 16. 2003. At any 

time after their issue, these notes are redeemable by way of 

exchange, at the option of the holder, for existing shares of 

Orange SA at an initial ratio of one share for each nole, subject to 

adjuslmcnl on the occurrence of certain evenis and subjeel to the 

right of France Telecom to elect to pay cash in lieu of delivering 

shares ofOrange SA. 

Notes exchangeable for shares of France Telecom 

On November 29, 2001. France Telecom issued notes 

exchangeable for ils own shares for € 3.5 billion. The notes, of 

nominal value € 1,000, bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum. 

At any time after their issue, these notes arc redeemable by way 

of exchange, at the option of the holder, for existing shares of 

France Telecom at a ratio of 13.8889 per bond (representing an 

exchange price per share of £ 72), this ratio being subject to 

possible adjustment. Starting December 15, 2003 under certain 

conditions, then unconditionally starting December 13, 2004, the 

notes issued arc repayable in advance at a price corresponding to 

their nominal value plus accrued interest. 
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Under certain conditions. France Telecom has the right to 

reimburse the bond following the following terms: 

delivery of Frnnce Telecom shares on the basis of the 

exchange ratio. 

and settlement of the positive difference between the 

redemption price of the bond and 99% of the market 

value ofthe exchanged shares. 

Noics exchangeable for shares of STMicroclcctronics 

Concurrent with the private placement of 69 million common 

shares of STMicroeleclronics in December 2001, France 

Telecom issued exchangeable notes for€ 1.5 billion (see note 8). 

The notes, of nominal value € 1.000, bear interest at a rate of I % 

per annum. Starting January 2, 2004 until December 17. 2004, 

these notes arc redeemable for shares of STMicroclcctronics at a 

ratio of 19.6986 share for each note (representing an exchange 

price per STMicroeleclronics share of 6 50.765). this ratio may 

be subject to adjustment. Starting January 21, 2004, without 

condition. France Telecom can exercise its option of anticipated 

repayment. 

Under certain conditions. France Telecom has the right to repay 

the bond following these lerms: 

- delivery of STMicroclcctronics shares on the basis of the 

exchange ratio, 

- settlement of the positive difference between the redemption 

price ofthe bond and 99% ofthe market value ofthe exchanged 

shares 

14. OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

The table below presents an analysis of France Telecom's other 

long-term borrowings by type, after the effects of currency 

swaps: 

Other long-term borrowings 

(in millions of euros) 

At December 31, 

2001 2000 

Notes 38,251 19,128 

Capital leases 73 180 

Bank loans1"1 6.338 15.773 

Olher non-bank loans'11 727 355 

Tolal other long-term borrowings 45.389 35,436 

Due within one vear (1.596) (7.542) 

Other long-term borrowings excluding 
currenl portion 

43,793 27.894 

1) Primarily the long-term portion of cash advances from 

associates 

2) Includes at December 31, 2000, € 10 billion relating to 

the syndicated credit line of July 31, 2000, refinanced as 

long-term borrowings on March 14, 2001. 

The movement in notes is primarily due to the following: 

- On March 14, 2001, France Telecom issued international notes 

for the equivalent of € 17.6 billion. The notes were issued to 

refinance existing borrowings and consist of 7 tranches, of which 

4 tranches are in USS for USS 9 billion, 2 in euros for€ 7 billion, 

and one in GBP for GBP 600 million. The notes mature between 

2 and 30 years. 

- At December 31, 2001, outstanding notes issued under the 

EMTN programs amount to € 16,681 million, of which € 16,055 

million is classified as long-term debt. 
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The iable below presents the annual maturities of total long-term 

debt at December 31, 2001, excluding the short-term ponion, 

after the effeci of cunency swaps: 

(in millions of euros) 20UI 2000 

Two years 10.070 1,682 

Three years S.JOS 3,474 

Four years 6,223 1,590 

Five years 3,940 3.485 

Six vcars and above 18.155 17.663 

Tolal other long-lerm Imaiicial borrowings due 

after miiri.' than one vear 

43,793 27,894 

The table below sets our notes by issuer (excluding convertible 

or exchangeable notes): 

Nole*"1 

tin millions of euros) 

At DecemberSI, 

2001 2000 

France Tetecom SA 

Orange pic 

Nortel / Telecom Arueniina 1 

Other issuers 

36.985 

1.164 

102 

17,083 

1,135 

824 

86 

lotal 38.251 19,128 

1) Excluding convertible or exchangeable notes. 

2) Consolidated using the equity method since December 21, 2001. 

The table below gives details of olhcr outstanding noics issued 

by France Telecom SA at December 31, 2001. before 

consideration of ihe impact of interest or currency swap 

agreements; 

Origin 

al 

Amount 

issued 

Matu 

rity 

Interest Kate 
At I)cccmbcr31, 

Origin 

al 

Amount 

issued 

Matu 

rity 

curren 

cy 

ID 2001 2000 

r/a> (in ml/lions of euros) 

CHF 200 2002 3.250 135 131 

FF 1 , 1 2,000 2002 9.000 305 305 

FF 2,500 2003 7.875 381 381 

USS 1,000 2.003 US Libor 3 months-t- 1.25'" 1,135 

Furo 2.250 2003 Euribor 3 months+1'" 2,250 

CHF 200 2003 3.250 135 131 

JPY 275,000 2003 JPLibor3months+ O.SS141 2.384 . 

Euro 1,400 2003 Euribor 3 monlhs -r 0.375 1.400 1.400 

FF ' " 1.500 2004 5.750 229 229 

Euro 3.500 2004 5.750"' 3.500 

JPY 50.000 2004 l.OOO1'" 434 

Euro 1,000 2005 6.125 1,000 1,000 

Euro 2,750 2005 5.000'" 2,750 . 

GBP 500 2005 7.000 822 801 

FF 1 " 2,000 2005 4.800 305 305 

FF 1.000 2005 l.OOO1" 152 152 

CHF 1,000 2006 4.SOO1'1 674 

USS 2.000 2006 7.200"' 2,269 

FF 4,500 2006 6.250 686 686 

FF 300 2006 3.030% until 7/08/01 ihen 

indexed on ihcTECIO"' 

46 46 

FF 1 " 6,000 2007 5.750 915 915 

Euro 3.500 2008 6.750"' 3.500 

FF'" 3.000 2008 5.400 457 457 

FF 900 2008 4.600% until 13/03/02. 137 137 

ihen TECIO'1' 

less 0.675% 
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Fl" 20(1 2008 10.165%. 

less 3 monlh PIUOR 

30 30 

USS 500 2008 6.000 567 537 

FF 1 " 1.500 200!) Tf:C IO'" 229 229 

FF ' " 3.000 2010 5.700 457 457 

Huru 1,400 2010 6.625 1,400 1.400 

USS 3.500 2011 7.750'J' 3,971 

GUP 600 2011 7.50()',| 986 

GUI' 450 2020 7.250 740 721 

USS 2.500 2031 S.SOO14' 2.837 . 

Loans maiuriny in 2001 6.692 

Currency S waps (233) (59) 

l otal olher noles 36.985 17,083 

11 In millions of currency. 

2) Wilh a redemption premium indexed on the value of the 

Company's shares, capped al 100% of ihe share value at issue, and 

covered by a swap of the same amount, which indexes Ihis debt on 

PIHOR. 

3) Ti-CIO: variable rate with constant 10-year malurily, determined 

by the Comiic Jf Normalisatim OMigataire. 

4) Notes with coupons subject to revision in case of changes in 

credit ralim;. 

5) These loans, initially denominated in FF. have been converted 

into euros. 

At December 31. 2001. France Telecom SA noles are repayable 

at due date, and no specific guarantees have been given in 

relation to their issue. The outstanding notes of France Telecom 

SA at December 31, 2001 have not been guaranteed. Certain 

notes may be repayable in advance, at the request oflhe issuer. 

At December 31, 2001. borrowings also include ihe bond debl of 

Orange pic: 

Origi Amoun Maturit litt e res Au31 

nal t issued y IRate December 

currc 

ncy 

2001 2000 

(in millions (in millions of (in millions (in millions of 

of euros) euros) 

USS 197 2006 8.75 224 213 

GBP 197 2008 8.63 324 316 

USS 18 2008 8.00 21 19 

Euro 94 2008 7.63 94 94 

GBP 150 2009 8.88 247 240 

USS 263 2009 9.00 298 282 

Currency Swaps (44) (29) 

Total 1,164 1.135 

IS. OTHER SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

The lable below presents an analysis of France Telecom's other 

short-term borrowings by type, afier the effects of currency 

swaps: 

Other short-term borrowings 

(in millions of euros) 

At Dccember31, 

2001 2000 

Shon-term noles and commercial 
papci"' 2.369 10.129 

Bank loans 7.619 13.603 

Overdrafts 995 794 

Other loans 382 639 

Total 11365 25,165 

'" The balance at December 31,2001 includes only shon-term notes. 

Interest rates on France Telecom's shon-term borrowings arc 

generally based on French and foreign (esseniially U.S.) money 
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markci raies. The weighted average interest rate on negotiable 

bills and bank loans (after taking into account the effeci of 

inleresl rate hedging instruments) amounts to 4.38% at December 

31,2001, compared lo 5.68% at December 31. 2000. 

- Tranche A of € 5 billion, with one year maturity and one year 

term-out, thus a iota! of 2 years following closing date. 

- Tranche B of € 10 billion, with 3 year maturity. 

At December 31. 2001, France Telecom had the following 

bilateral and syndicated credit lines: 

Al Dcccmhcr3I, 2001 

(in millions of euros) 

Origin Amounts Equivalents Amounis 
al in In millions of drawn in 

curren Currency euros millions 
cv of euros 

When this syndicated credit line was obtained, France Telecom 

committed to maintain certain financial ratios using EBITDA, 

interest expense and net borrowings. 

16. EXPOSURE TO MARKET RISKS 

Bilali'ral credit lines Markel risk management 

Long-temi USS 245 289 221 In connection with its industrial and commercial activities, 

Long-term luiro 7 7 6 France Telecom is exposed io various types of market risk 

Long-iemi CHF 39 26 26 related to the management of the cost of its debt and the value of 

certain foreign currency denominated assets (foreign investment 
Court tenn 1 1 1 Euro 1.055 1.055 • securities). Based on an analysis of its overall risk exposure. 

Hank overdrafts Euro 150 . 150 - primarily due to changes in interest rales and exchange rates, 

Syndicated credit lines France Telecom uses a variety of derivative financial instruments 

Lung-temi1""1 M C " 15.000 15.000 5.200 wilhin limits set by managcmcnl as lo their potential impact on 

Long-term1" MC l i , 1.400 1,589 1.550 the statement of income, with the objective being to optimize the 

Long-temi1,1 GUI' 1,599 2.628 2,545 cost of financing. 

Long-temi 11 EF 18.000 446 367 

Lorui-tenn'" DEM 218 111 93 France Telecom distinguishes between three different types of 

I) The weighied average maiuriiy of these long-lerm credit lines is 

1.31 years for France Telecom SA. 

2) MC = Multi-currency facililics. denominated in USS equivalenls. 

3) MC = Multi-currency facilities, denominated in Euro 

equivalents. 

-tl Syndicated eredii line ofE 30 billion negotiated in relation with 

the purchase ofOrange pic was reduced to€ 15 billion, 

5) Al December 31. 2001. the amounis drawn against Ihese crcdil 

lines are classified in long-lerm debt. 

On February 14, 2002, France Telecom ncgoliatcd a 6 15 billion 

multi-currency syndicated credit line replacing the credit line 

ncgoliatcd in rclaiion with the purchase of Orange pic. This 

credit line is composed of two tranches: 

use of derivative financial instruments: 

Long-lerm debl rate risk management 

France Telecom aims to balance its long-term debl portfolio 

between fixed and variable rate instruments in Euros so as to 

minimize the cost of financing, and uses firm and optional 

interest rale instruments (swaps, future, caps and floors) within 

limits established by management. 

The following table analyzes long-term debt by intcresl rate, 

including all exchangeable and convertible notes and other long-

term debt, with the short-term portion, taking into account the 

effect of interest rate and currency rate swap agreements: 
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December 31, 

(in milliuns of euros) 2001 2000 

Notes and bank loans 

Less than 5% 15.377 3.490 

Heiween 5 and 7% 18,717 5.681 

lictween 7% and 9% 6.708 5.748 

Greater lhan 9% 322 394 

Total fixed rate [Weighted average 

spot rate: 5 .51% at 31/12/01; 6.33% 

11131/12/00) 

41.124 15.313 

Total variable rale (Weighted average 

spot rate: -1.70% at 31/12/01: 5.75% 

ai 31/12/00) 

14,942 22.596 

Tulu l hank loans and notes 

(Weighted average spot ra le: 

5.2 , J%al31/12/01:5.9H%at 

.11/12/(111) 

56,066 37,909 

Capital leases 
73 180 

J'otul long- lerm borrowings 56,139 38,089 

'" Long-term debt including convertible and exchangeable notes. 

The interest rale swaps at December 31, 2001 included in the 

table above are as follows: 

Swap to cover long-temi debl Nominal 

in millions of 

euros 

Swaps paying fixed rate and receiving variable rale 12,028 

Swaps paying variable rale and receiving fixed rate 7,106 

Swaps paying variable rale and receiving variable rate 1,114 

Swaps of structured issues against variable rate 391 

Intcresl rate swaps are used to cover a part of France Telecom's 

future bond issues. Al December 31. 2001, 6300 million of 

forward fixed rate swaps is available lo France Telecom io cover 

future notes issue at variable rate as well as € 2,250 million of 

fixed rate swaps covering future bond issues at fixed interest rate. 

At December 31, 2001. a notional amount of E 594 million of 

swaps not qualifying as hedges for accounting purposes is 

avaiiable lo France Telecom. These swaps were accounted for 

using the method described in Note 2. 

Shorl-lerm debl rale risk management 

France Telecom manages a treasury position as cither lender or 

borrower depending on cash flows provided by operating cash 

flows and maturities of long-term debt. France Telecom 

periodically reviews its projected short-term debl position and 

may use derivative interest rate instruments (future rate 

agreements, short-term swaps. EURIBOR contracts and intcresl 

rate collar agreements) to cover ihis position against unfavorable 

changes in interest rates. 

At December 31, 2001, the derivative interest rate instruments 

covering the short-lcnn debt interest rates are as follows: 

Notional amount in 

mil l ions o f euros 

Short-term swaps allocated to short-term notes 

issued 

1,170 

3 month Euribor coniract (Maturity March, June, 

September 2002) " ' 

22.822 

Sale o f oplion on 3 month Euribor contract 

(Maturity March, June. September)" 1 

5,500 

Sale o f 3 monlh Eurodollar contract (Maturity 

March and June) 

• 1,702 

Rate collar (purchase of cap/sale o f f loor) 1 1 1 1,500 

The interest rale collar agreements and the future sales contracts 
hedging the future short-tenn debt interest rates have not been 
qualified as hedging instmmenls. The accounting method of these 
instruments is described in Note 2. 

Foreign currency risk management 

The activities of France Telecom abroad are carried out by 

subsidiaries operating essentially in their own countries. 
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Therefore, ihe exposure lo foreign currency risk on ihese 

commercial opcraiions is limiled. France Telecom primarily 

hedges ihe risk relalcd lo ihe issuance of foreign cunency noics 

and on certain assets in foreign cunency notably cenain non-

sirategic investments. 

In order 10 take advantage of opponunitics to reduce the cost of 

borrowings, debt instruments may in some cases be initially 

contracted in foreign cunencies. They are generally convened 

inio Euros immediately through the use of cunency rate swap 

agrcemenis in order to reduce France Telecom's exposure to 

foreign exchange risk. 

Long-term borrowings by cunency. taking into accounl the effect 

of cunency swap contracts, is as follows: 

The following table gives, for the off balance sheel instruments 

(cunency swaps, foreign exchange forward contracts and 

currency options) held by France Telecom group, details on the 

currencies to be delivered and to be received: 

tin millions of euros) 

At December 31. 

21101 2000 

Euro 43,632 26.755 

cn]' 5,335 5.378 

USS 5,859 5.463 

Other currencies 1.313 493 

Total long-term borrowings 56.139 38.089 

The borrower position in foreign currency detailed above is due 

to: 

- borrowings of the subsidiaries in the currency in which they 

operate: 

- France Telecom's foreign currency debts used to finance the 

subsidiaries' operations in this same cunency. or hedging assels 

in this currency. 

Al December 31. 2001. France Telecom SA hedged assets in 

foreign cunency through a bonowcr position and cunency 

options of an amounl equivalent to € 2.590 million. At December 

31, 2001. France Telecom was exposed to foreign cunency risk 

due to a non hedged foreign cunency bonower position for an 

amount equivalent to € 3,159 million. 

Amnunts in millions of currency 

(1) EUR USS JPY GBP Other 

currcneici 

m 

Asset leg of 

currcnev swaps 

685 6,002 447,300 600 293 

Liabilily leg of 

currcnev swaps 

(11.285) (14) 0 (361) (577) 

Currency lo be 

received on 

forward cunency 

contracts 

604 781 0 1.084 664 

Cunency to be 

delivered on 

forward cunency 

contracts 

(3,055) (248) 0 (194) (243) 

Currency options 1.485 (1,500) 0 0 0 

(1) - Positive values indicate the cunencies to be received and 

negative values indicate the currencies to be delivered. 

(2) • In Euro equivalent. 

Crcdil risk management 

Financial instruments thai potentially subject France Telecom to 

concentrations of crcdil risk consist primarily of cash 

equivalents, negotiable bills, marketable securities, trade 

accounts receivable and financial instruments used in hedging 

activities 

France Telecom docs not consider itself exposed to a 

concentration of credit risk wilh respect to trade accounts 

receivable due to its large and diverse customer base (residential, 
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professional and large business customers) operating in 

numerous industries and located in many regions and countries. 

France Telecom places ils cash equivalents and marketable 

securities wilh a number of very highly rated financial 

institutions and industrial groups. France Telecom contracts 

interest rate and foreign exchange insirumcnts with major high 

credit quality financial institutions. France Telecom does not 

believe thai there is a significant risk of nonperformance by these 

counterparties because it continually monitors their credit ratings 

and limits the financial exposure to any one financial institution. 

For each financial institution, the maximum loss in the event of 

nonperformance is determined based on the notional amounts of 

interest rate and foreign exchange contracts outstanding and 

coefficients, which take into account their nature and remaining 

duration. 

Individual limits are established based on the counterpart ies' 

credit rating and net assets. Contracts with a duration of more 

than one year can in principle only be entered into with financial 

institutions having a credit rating of al leasl AA-/Aa3 from at 

leasl iwo eredii rating agencies. 

Notional ainouni.s of derivative financial instruments 

The contract or notional amounts shown below do nol represent 

amounis exchanged and thus arc not a measure ofthe exposure of 

France Telecom through its use of derivatives 

At December 31. 

(in millions o f euros) 2001 2000 

Intcresl rate caps 1,541 968 

Inleresl rale collars (caps and Doors) 1.500 562 

Inleresl rale swaps 24,953 20.712 

Currency swaps 12.567 5,471 

Forward currency contracts 4,143 5.416 

Currency options 1,702 2,149 

l :ui i i r ts 24.524 8.550 

Options on futures 5,500 -

17 • FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The principal methods and assumptions used lo estimate the fair 

value ofeach class of financial instruments arc described below. 

For cash and cash equivalents, trade accounis receivable, bank 

overdrafts and other short-term borrowings and trade accounis 

payable, France Telecom considers their carrying value lo be the 

mosi representative estimate of market value, due to the short-

term maturity of these instruments. 

The market value of non-consolidated marketable securities and 

unrestricted investmenls in quoted companies has been estimated 

based on quoted market prices ai December 28, 2001. For other 

investments, France Telecom considers, using available 

information, that their market value is not less than carrying 

value. 

At December 31, 

(in millions of euros) 

Financial instruments 
(assets) 

Marketable securities 

Non consolidated investment 
securities and related 
receivables 

2001 2000 

Carryin Fair Cnrryin Fair 
g value value g value value 

1,138 1,138 216 216 

3.231 6.467 10.218 11,357 

37 



FRANCE T E L E C O M 

NOTES T O T H E C O N S O L I D A T E D F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S 

December 31 , 2001 

The markel value o f long-lerm debl was dcicrmined using; 

- ihe prcscnl value of fuiure cash flows, discounted using rales 

available lo France Telecom al December 28, 2001 for 

insirumcnts with similar tenns and maturities; 

- ihe quoted market value for eonvenible, exchangeable and 

indexed noles 

At I)cccmber31, 

(in millions of euros) 

Financial insirumcnts 
(liabilities) 

Bank overdrafts and olher 
short-tenn loans"' 

l.ong-temi borrowings' 

2001 2000 

Carryin Fair 
g value value 

11.365 11,368 

56.139 57.598 

Carryin 
g value 

25.165 

38.089 

Fair 
value 

25,165 

38.596 

1) Afler taking into accounl the effeci of currency swap contraels. 

2) The accounling and market values presented exclude accrued 

intcresl. 

The fair values o f cunency exchange and interest rate swap 

contracts were eslimated by discounting the expected future cash 

(lows using market exchange rates and related interest rales at 

December 28. 2001 over the remaining terms of the coniracts. 

The fair value o f over-the-counter options was cstimalcd using 

option pricing tools recognized by the market. 

At December 31. 

(in millions of euros) 

Off balance sheet 
financial instruments 

Interest raic caps 

Interest rale collars (caps 
and floors) 

Interest rate swaps 

Cunency swaps 

Forward currency 
coniracts 

Currency oplions 

Futures 

Options on fuiurcs 

2001 2000 

Carr j in 
g value 

(311) 

235 

42 

(72) 

(7) 

(21) 

Fair 
value 

(3) 

9 

(259) 

338 

43 

(217) 

(7) 

(21) 

Carryin 
g value 

6 

(146) 

(237) 

Fair 
value 

(2) 

(111) 

(157) 

(237) 

(170) 

(5) 

Total (129) (117) (370) (676) 

1) Market value of swaps includes accrued interest. 

2) The carrying value of off balance sheel derivative insirumcnts 

includes accrued intcresl. discounts and premiums paid for or 

received, as well as exchange differences already accounted for 

in France Telecom's books. The difference between accounling 

and markel values represents the unrealized gain or loss on off 

balance sheet derivative instruments. 
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18 • PENSION PLANS A N D O T H E R L O N G - T E R M 

L I A B I L I T I E S 

Pension plans and other long-term liabilities arc as foi ows: 

Harly reiirement plan 
3.479 616 4.095 4.149 

Post retirement 
benefits other than 143 6 149 140 

pensions 

Ketirement 
indemnities I5l 24 175 133 

Long-term deferred 
tax 1 1 1 330 - 330 830 

Provision for l:t)uant 2.077 - 2.077 -
CVRs 

Provision for the 81I - 811 -
commiimeni for NTL 
preferred shares 

Other long-temi 
liabilities 1.672 83 1.755 509 

Tolal 8.663 729 9.392 5.761 

1) The current portion is included in «curTcnl liabilities». 

2) Note 26 

At December 31, 

2001 2000 

Portion Portion less Total 
more than one 

(in millions of euros) than one year 
vear 

Tolal 

Plan data (In millions of euros) 

Actuarial value ofthe plan at the beginning 
ofthe year 

Actuarial adj ust men is 

Discounting effect 

Payments made 

Actuarial value oflhe plan at the end oflhe 
vear 

Actuarial adjustment not yei amortized 

Accrued early retirement liabilily 

A l DecemberSI. 

2001 2000 

4.823 

51 

229 

(492) 

4,61: 

4.935 

55 

237 

(404) 

4.823 

(516) (674) 

4,095 4,149 

Early reiirement plan for French civil servants 

The actuarial cost o f the early reiirement plan described in Note 

2. and the sensitivity o f this cost to ihe success rate o f t h e plan 

are as follows: 

Assumptions 

• Success rate 

• Discount rate 

Analysis ofthe charge for tbe year 

Discount charge 

AmoniTation of actuarial adjuslment 

Charge for the year 

94% 

5% 

229 

210 

94% 

5% 

237 

220 

439 457 

Effect of a change in the success rate of 
Ihe actuarial liability at December 31 

• 5% increase 

• 5% decrease 

270 

(222) 

296 

(246) 
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Actuarial assumptions have been reviewed on the basis of trends 

noted al ihe end of 2001. The discount rate of the plan for 2002 

and the following years remains unchanged at 5%, and ihe 

success rate remains unchanged compared lo 1999 and 2000. 

The impacl ofthe revision of actuarial assumptions is accounted 

for as described in «Early Ketirement Plan for French civil 

servants^ Nole 2. A charge of € 210 million was recorded within 

«Special items, nct» in 2001 (Note 24). 

Early retirement payments made under ihe plan since its 

initiaiion on September I , 1996 amounl to € 1,743 million 

(including £ 492 million in 2001), covered by an equivalent 

cumulative reversal of provision al December 31. 2001. 

- deferred income for a lota) amounl of 6 160 million relating to 

Orange pic. Deferred income relates to the net credits arising 

from in-substancc early extinguishment («in substance 

defeasance") of drawdowns under finance leases (Note 28). This 

is amortized lo the stalement of income over the lease term on a 

straight-line basis; 

- debt for an amounl of € 690 million related lo a sale operation 

entered into with a bank of future France Telecom receivables 

from the French State related to years 2002 to 2008. The 

commitments made by France Telecom arc described in note 28; 

- Orange SA's vendor financing arrangements wilh equipment 

manufacturers for the construction of the UMTS network, as 

follows: 

f'ost-rctii-cmenl benefits other than pensions 

The actuarial liability for posi-reiirement benefits of € 149 

million at December 31, 2001 (£ 140 million ai December 31, 

2000) lias been determined using a discount rate of 5%. 

Einumt CVR provision 

As described in Note 3. ihe amount of € 2.077 million covers the 

maximum payment risk ofthe CVR. 

Provision of commitment related to NTL preferred shares 

As described in Note 8. (he amount of € 811 million covers ihe 

risk of loss on the call and put options contracted with financial 

insiitutions. 

Other long-term liabilities 

In 2001, ihe other long-term liabilities include: 

- fixed assei supplier payables for € 209 million; 

At Docomber 31, 2001 

Origin Maturity Equivalent in Amounts 
al millions of drawn 

curren euros In millions of 
cy euros 

MC 2003 270 234 

(11 
Euro 2004 470 -
GDP 2004 10 -
Tolal 750 234 

(I) Multicurrency in Euro equivalent 

19. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

At December 31, 2000, other current liabilities included: 

the debt related to the acquisition in 2000 from 

Deutsche Telekom of its investment in Wind settled 

in July. 2001(6 2.4 billion): 

the payable to E.On, related to the acquisition of 

Orange Communications SA (€ 1.0 billion) settled 

through Orange SA shares in the six monlhs ended 

June 30, 2001. Upon transfer ofthe shares in 2001, 

put and call oplions were entered into (Sec Note 28); 

the security issued in favor of Vodafone following 

the purchase of France Telecom shares in August, 

2000 in connection with the Orange pic acquisition 

(€ 2.2 billion), settled in March 2001. 

40 



FRANCE TELECOM 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2001 

Settlement of these liabilities during the year explains the 

movemenls between 2000 and 2001 of the other current 

liabilities. 

20. MINORITY INTERESTS 

21 • SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

At December 31. 2001. the share capital of France Telecom 

amounts to € 4.615,327,772 and comprises 1.153.831,943 

ordinary shares of par value € 4. For the year ended December 

31, 2001. the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 

circulation amounted to 1,103,126.514 shares and the weighted 

average number of ordinary and dilutive shares amounted to 

1,176.996,343 shares. 

Changes in minority interests arc as follows: 

2(11)1 20UII 1999 

(in millions nt'etiros) 

Openine balance 
2.036 1.369 779 

• Result for the year (714) (52) (198) 

• Issuance o f share capital to 

minority interests 
74 299 134 

• Effect o f acquisitions and 

divestitures 6.802 386 646 

• Appropriation of net result 
(128) (213) (71) 

• Translation adjustment 31 113 79 

• Other changes - 134 

Closine balances 8.101 2.036 1.369 

In 2001. (he effect ofacquisitions and divestitures relate mainly 

lo the public offering of approximately 13% of the capital of 

Orange, the Equant/Global One transactions and the dilutions in 

Wanadoo for Ihe Freeserve and Indice Multimedia acquisitions 

(see Note 3). as well as Nortel/Telecom Argentina being 

accounted for using the equiiy method. 

At December 31. 2001, minority interests relate to Orange SA 

and its subsidiary for an amount of E 4,204 million, to the 

Equant/Global One group for € 1.532 million and to Wanadoo 

forE 1,507 million. 

The «FT law» provides notably that the French State remains the 

majority shareholder. The State owns 55.5% of France 

Telecom's share capital at December 31, 2001. 

Changes in share capital 

During 1999, France Telecom performed two capital increases, 

as follows: 

• The conversion of the share capital into Euros, giving a 

nominal value of € 4 per share, through incorporation of 

reserves for€ 193 million; 

• 1,340 ordinary shares were issued as part of the conversion 

righi of convertible noles open since December 7, 1999. for 

€ 107,200, including premium. 

In 2000, France Telecom : 

• increased its share capital through the issuance of 

129.201,742 new shares with par value of € 4, representing 

€ 516,8 million, in connection with the acquisition of 

Orange pic from Manncsmann on Augusl 22, 2000. The 

premium attached to each share issued amounted to€ 136.2, 

and totaled 6 17.597.3 million; 

• issued 14,300 ordinary shares as part ofthe conversion righi 

of convertible notes open since December 7, 1999 for € 1.1 

million, including premium. 

In 2001, there have been no operations on share capital. 
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Convertible notes 

In 1998 and 2001, convertible notes were issued for a lotal 

amount of € 5.5 billion (See Note 13), The maximum number of 

shares to issue upon conversion or exchange is respeciively 25.4 

million and 48.5 million. 

Through ihe powers vested in it by the Annual General Meeting 

of June 21. 2000. ihe Board of Direciors of France Telecom has 

the authority for 26 monlhs from such dale lo issue shares or 

instruments giving access to France Telecom share capital. The 

cumulative nominal amount of share increases inciuding both 

newly issued shares or shares issuable upon conversion or 

exercise of securilies and the aggregate cumulative nominal 

amount of debt insirumenis may boih not exceed E 900 million. 

No issues have been made in 2001 under this authority. 

offset against consolidated reserves for an amount of € 1,271 

million, nel of tax (€ 778 million). 

The purchase on March 25, 2002 of ihe remaining France 

Telecom shares held by Vodafone (See Nole 28) will reduce 

shareholders' equity by € 4.9 billion. Additionally, i f France 

Telecom or Deutsche Telekom exercise their cross options (See 

Nole 28), il would have the effect, on the basis of quoted market 

value of France Telecom shares ai December 28, 2001, of 

reducing shareholders' equity by € 920 million. 

Purchuse ofthe company's own shares 

At the Ordinary and Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 

31, 2001. the company's shareholders authorized the Board of 

Directors to purchase France Telecom shares representing up to 

10% ofthe capital. Al December 31. 2001 France Telecom held 

48.5 million of ils own shares, for a gross amounl of € 5,002 

million, represenling 4.2% oflhe share capital. At December 31, 

2000, France Telecom held 15.4 million France Telecom shares 

(representing 1.3% of its share capital). 

During the year ended December 31. 2001. France Telecom 

purchased 64.6 million shares at an average price of € 103.37. 

The acquisitions result mainly from two purchases in March 

2001 concerning 64.1 million shares for an amount of € 6.65 

billion in accordance with the agreement signed on February 28, 

2001 between France Telecom and Vodafone (See Note 3). 

During the year ended December 31, 2001, France Telecom sold 

31.5 million shares at an average price of€56.71, including the 

contribution lo llic SITA foundation of 30.9 million shares for the 

acquisilion of Equani (Sec Note 3). The result of these sales is 
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The table below sets out main operating indicators per 

segment for the last three years: 
22 • SEGMENT INFORMATION 

As a result ofthe reorganization in 2001 of its global 

services to businesses under Equant and of the 

reorganization in 2000 of its mobile telephony 

activities under Orange SA and its consumer Internet 

activity under Wanadoo, France Telecom has redefined 

its segments as follows: 

• The segment "Orange" includes worldwide mobile 

telephony services, in France and the United 

Kingdom, as contributed to Orange S.A. in 2000, 

including Orange pic from its date of acquisition 

by France Telecom (i.e. for 4 months in 2000). 

• The segment "Wanadoo" includes Internet Access, 

Portals. c-Mcrchant. Directories and Application 

Service Provider (ASP) activities contributed in 

2000 to Wanadoo S.A. 

• The segment "Fixed line, voice and data services 

in France" mainly includes the activities within 

France as an operator of fixed telephony, data 

transmission, broadcasting and cable television. 

• The segment "Fixed line, voice and data services -

International" includes the same activities outside 

France (notably Equant). 
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France Telecom segments may evolve in the future, 

along with France Telecom's strategic choices. France 

Telecom evaluates the performance of its segments and 

allocates its resources based on EBITDA results, which 

represents the operating income before "specific non-

rccurring items" and "depreciation and amonization". 

The "Elimination and other items" column includes 

intcr-segment transaction eliminations and other non-

material reconciliation items to France Telecom 

financial statements. 
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1 2 1 Average lull time equivalenls 

Sales. EUITDA, and operating income before special items of the 

Orange segment in 2000 includes Orange pic and its subsidiaries 

for 4 months. On a scope comparable to 2001 (pro forma), the 

sales. EBITDA and operating income before special ilems would 

have represented respeciively € 12,059 million, € 1,765 million 

and 6 383 million for 2000. 

The "Fixed line, voice and data services" segment outside of 

France includes Equant for the last six monlhs of 2001. On a 

scope comparable to 2001 (pro forma), the sales, EBITDA and 

operating income before special items ofthe "Fixed line, voice 

and data services" segment outside of France for 2000 would 

have represented respectively € 6.988 million. € 1,235 million 

and € (12) million. 

Geographical breakdown 

Year ended December 31, 

(in millions of 2 0 0 1 

euros) 

2000 1999 

Sales 43,026 33,674 27.233 

France 27,626 24,986 23,753 

Other 15,400 8.688 3.480 

Fixed assets'" 49,917 50,912 29,889 

France1:1 20,431 22.171 22,882 

Olher 29.486 28.741 7,007 

1" tangible and intangible, excluding goodwill. 

includes all shared network structures, 
backbone. 

notably the liuropcan 

23. PERSONNEL COSTS 

Year ended December 31 

(in millions of euros, excepi 2001 
number of emplovces) 

2000 1999 

Average headcount (full time 206,184 
equivalents 1 1 1 

188.866 174.262 

Personnel costs 1 1 1 

ur , • . 6,889 • Wages and salaries 5,993 5,177 

2 593 
• Social charges 

2,406 2,212 

Total 9 - 4 8 2 8.399 7,389 
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Of whom approximately 51.6% were French civil servants at 
December 31,2001. 

i : > Uxcluding early reiirement plan for French civil servants and 
employee profit sharing 

Year ended Dcccmber3I 

2001 2000 1999 

(in millions of euros) 

24. SPECIAL ITEMS 
Gain or loss on divestmentl" 2,576 5,544 603 

Year endc December 31 Dividends received 262 255 180 

2001 2000 1999 Dilution result i :> 1.993 2,096 -

(in millions of euros) Other provision movements 1 , 1 (694) (3.931) -

French early retirement plan"1 (210) (225) (238) Cosi of sale of receivables (503) - -

Other (158) (7) (16) 

"' See Note IK. Total 3.476 3.957 767 

25. OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE), 

NET 

In 20(11. the other non-operating income (expense) relates mainly 

to: 

non-operaling expenses for a total amount of € 9,380 

million (€ 7.882 million, nel of tax) of which (i)e 5.910 

million (G 4,581 million net of lax) relate to the 

valuation allowance on NTL's common and preferred 

slocks as described in Note 8, (ii) € 2,077 million 

(€ 2.077 million, net of tax) relate to the provision for 

losses and charges on the Equant CVR (sec Note 3 and 

Note 17) and (iii) E 1,393 million (E 1.224 million, nel 

of tax) relate lo MobilCom (see Note 7): 

as well as other non-operating income (expense) set out 

below: 

Includes in 2001 the result ofthe divestments of investments in Sema 
Group pic (€401 million), Sprint Fon (€ 181 million) and 
FTlCl/STMicroclectronics (€ I 068 million) as well as a gain of 
€ 482 million following the determination of Ihe fair value of Global 
One in the context of the contribution of Global One to Equant. 

Also includes C 705 million relating to the gain on sale of ofTice and 
mixed technical buildings to a consortium of investors in 2001 (Note 
6). 

Moreover, due to the provision recorded at December 31. 2000, the 
IPO ofOrange SA did not have a significant incidence on the non-
operating result. 

Includes in 2001 a gain of € I 086 million related to the Indice 
Multimedia and Freeserve transactions and a gain of €934 million 
following the contribution of Infostrada lo Wind (Note 3), 

In 2001, Ihe olher movemenls in provision relate mainly io: 

a net reversal, for € 396 million in the provision sel up at 
December 31,2000 for the Equant/Global One operation, 

a provision oft* 134 million relating toTE.SA.M. 

provisions relating lo (he realizable value of certain non 
strategic foreign subsidiaries including € Ml million relating 
to Intelig. 

including € 419 million relating to the sale of the carry back 
receivable (Note 26) and € 79 million relating to ihe Securitization of 
receivables with a Fonds Cornmun de Creances. 

26 • INCOME TAXES 

France Telecom Files a consolidated tax return for all 

French subsidiaries owned in excess of 95%. 

Following the Orange public offering. Orange SA and 

its French subsidiaries arc no longer in 2001 within the 
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scope of the France Telecom consolidated tax regime 

but have their own tax regime starting in 2002. 

Following the Wanadoo public offering in July 2000, 

Wanadoo SA and its French subsidiaries have their 

own consolidated tax regime from 2001 onwards. 

Non transferable tax loss carry-forwards gave rise to the 

recognition of a credit of C 1.453 million in the statement of 

income related to creation of a deferred tax asset, with € 778 

million recorded directly against consolidated reserves for the 

pan resulting from the tax effect of the sale of France Telecom 

shares (see Note 21). 

Income before income taxes, minority interests and 

goodwill amonization o f the companies and equity in 

net result of affiliates is as follows: 

Vear ended December 31, 

(in millions of euros) 2001 2000 1999 

French companies (2.938) 7.423 4.885 

Foreign companies (2.310) (1.135) (641) 

Tolal (5,248) 6.288 4.244 

Income tax for the year is the result of the application of the 

forecast year-end effective tax rate on the result before tax at 

December 31. 2001. Deferred taxes are based on determined tax 

rates, i.e. 36.43% for 2001 and 35.43% for 2002. 

In 2001. France Telecom SA and companies within the scope of 

its consolidated tax regime recorded a significant tax loss, which 

is mainly due to the Orange capital public offering and to the sale 

of France Telecom shares to SITA as part of the purchase of 

Equani. A carry back of € 1.630 million and a loss carry-forward 

of € 2.231 million resulted from this tax loss. 

France Telecom considers that, on the basis of budgets and 

strategic plans of France Telecom SA and of the companies 

within the scope of its consolidated tax regime, (i) no current 

income lax will be due before 2009 by France Telecom SA's 

consolidated tax regime, (ii) the recognized deferred income tax 

asset resulting from France Telecom SA's loss carry-forwards 

will be recovered through taxable profits expected for future 

fiscal years in its activities as fixed line operator in France, 

activilies historically profitable. Moreover, due to these results 

and to the tax method of reputed deferred amortization 

{amortisscments reputes differes), the part of ihe loss carry­

forwards that cannot be carried forward indefinitely under French 

lax law, should be entirely used within the 5-year legal limit. The 

remainder ofthe loss can be indefinitely carried forward. On this 

basis net deferred tax assets arc estimated al €3.6 billion at the 

end of 2006. 

In December 2001, France Telecom sold the following 

Govemment receivables to a financial institution: 

• a receivable of € 235 million resulting from the 

opiion of carrying back the tax loss related to fiscal 

year 2000. 

• A receivable of an estimated amount of € 1,471 

million resulting from the option of carrying back 

the tax loss related to fiscal year 2001. As 

compensation, France Telecom received notes worth 

€ I . I I I million. 
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Income laxes can be analyzed as follows: 

Income (charge) Year ended December 31, 

(in millions of euros) 2001 2000 

France Telecom SA 1.630 76 
Carry-back 

- Olher am (1,666) 

Current tax 842 (1.590) 

France Telecom SA 1.453 _ 
tax loss carry 
forward 

Discounting cliarge 
for entities oflhe lax (750) 
group France 
Telecom SA 

- Olhcr 1.387 277 

Deferred laxes 2.090 277 

Tolal laxes 2.932 (1.313) 

The reconciliation between the French statutory tax rate 

and the effective rate of income tax credit/ expense is as 

follows: 

Income (charge) Year ended December 31. 

(in millions of euros) 2001 2000 

Legal lax rate 36.43% 37.76% 

Theoretical lax 1.912 (2.374) 

• I'ennanem differences 2.846 1.433 

• Losses from subsidiaries 
noi included in the French 
consolidated tax regime (1.826) (1.154) 

• liffect of reduced tax rate - 782 

Fffective lax 2.932 (1.313) 

Permanent differences for fiscal year 2001 are mainly impacted 

by (i) the difference between book value and tax value of the 

Orange SA shares sold in the IPO, (ii) the dilution gains related 

to Wanadoo and Wind, as well as (iii) the effeci of the gain 

recognized in the context of the contribution of Global One to 

Equant. 

Deferred taxes asscts/( liabilities) by nature of 

temporary difference before compensation by tax entity 

arc analyzed as follows: 

At December 31, 

(in millions of euros) 2001 20110 

Early retirement plan 1.451 1.469 

Impaimieni of long-lived assets 437 453 

Non deductible provisions 1.768 1.232 

Employee profit sharing 45 51 

France Telecom SA tax loss carry 
forward 2,999 

Other tax loss carry forwards 3,320 2.181 

Other deferred lax assets 782 720 

Accelerated tax depreciation • (341) (248) 

Olher deferred tax liabiliiics (922) (1,094) 

Discounting charge (750) . 

Depreciation (3.022) (1.965) 

Net group deferred ta\ assets 5,767 2,799 

This net position is presented as follows in the balance sheet: 

At December 31, 

(in millions of euros) 2001 2000 

Net long-tenn deferred tax assets 5.369 2,532 

Net shon-term deferred lax assets 1.102 1,609 

Net long-term deferred tax liabilities (330) (830) 

Nei shon-term deferred tax liabiliiics (374) (512) 

Total 5,767 2,799 

A € 750 million discounting effect has been recorded against 

deferred tax asseis ofthe France Telecom SA's consolidated tax 

regime based on the anticipated timing of reversal. 

Allowances against deferred tax assets relate principally to 

tax loss carry forwards in new subsidiaries or subsidiaries 
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operating in emerging markets for an amount of € 2,923 

million (€ 1.859 million at December 31. 2000). A part o f 

these tax loss carry forwards wil l be recognized when the 

activity of the subsidiaries becomes durably profitable. 

Amounts payable to related parlies 

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Telecommunications services to French governmental 

authorities, which are one of France Telecom's largest 

customers, as well as those to its various regional and local 

authorities are provided at market prices. Subsequent to the 

separation of France Telecom and postal services (La Poste) in 

1987 a number of transactions have subsisted relating 

particularly to personnel and shared properties. 

The transactions and balances summarized below arose in the 

ordinary course of business between France Telecom and related 

parties. 

Amounts receivable from related parlies 

(in milliuns o f euros) A t December 3 1 , 

2 (JUl 2001) 1999 

Kelated par ty 

Sprint 20 20 

La Poste 50 54 34 

Satellite organizations 92 28 11 

( in mill ions o f euros) A t Deccmber3 t . 

2001 2000 1999 

Related partv 

Sprint 10 10 4 

La Poste 30 31 50 

Satellite organizations 147 62 3 

Significant Iransaclions with related parties 

(in millions o f euros) lncome/(expcnses or 

Investments) 

Year ended December 31, 

Related 

par tv 

Nature of 

transaction 

2001 2000 1999 

La I'osie Personnel 

programs • 
(24) (88) 

Commonly 

managed services 

71 28 15 

Satellite 

organizaiions 

Expenses 

Income 

(248) 

50 

(169) (88) 

Sprint Invoiced services 38 32 19 

Expenses (7) (14) -
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28. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Off balance sheet commitments related to purchases of 

network equipmenl and terminals 

In the ordinary course of its activities, France Telecom enters 

into purchase contracts with network equipment manufacturers 

and into supply contracts with suppliers of terminals and other 

equipment. Management believes that there is no significant risk 

of financial loss from these contracts. 

Off balance sheet commitments related to network 

construction and operation 

In connection with the award of licenses, concession contracts or 

acquisilion of businesses. France Telecom is committed to 

certain obligations imposed by administrative or regulatory 

authorities relating lo network coverage, quality of service and 

tariffs. In some instances. France Telecom is required to provide 

comfort letters to financial institutions relating lo bank 

guiirantees given to relevant authorities. Management believes 

that France Telecom has the ability to mcci these obligations to 

administrative or regulatory authorities. 

Off balance sheet commitments related to leases 

Leases 

France Telecom leases land, buildings, equipment, vehicles and 

other items under lease agrcemenis expiring al various dates 

during ihe next 10 years. 

Moreover, as part ofthe divestmeni of part of ils buildings (Note 

6), France Telecom is committed to re-lease these buildings 

except for certain assets to be vacated in the short-iemi. 

Management expects thai leases lhat expire may or may not be 

renewed or replaced by other leases in the normal course of 

business. 

Rental expense under operating leases in the year ended 

December 31. 2001 amounts to € 831 million ( € 473 million in 

2000 and € 313 million in 1999). 

The lable below shows future minimum lease payments due 

under non-cancelable capital and operating leases at December 

31. 2001. including those contracted within the coniexi of the 

divcsimenl of part of the real estate: 

(in millions of euros) 

Capital 
lease 

Operating 
lease'" 

2002 41 881 

2003 20 745 

2004 7 656 

2005 2 616 

2006 I 702 

2007 and ihereaftcr A 1,380 

Tolal minimum future lease pavmcnts 75 4,980 

Less: interest payments (2) 

Present value of minimum commitments 73 

'" including Ihosc contmcted in relation to the sale of part ofthe real 
estate 

Strategic technical buildings 

On October 31, 2001, France Telecom signed a promise to sell 

42 technical strategic buildings which will be rc-lcascd as pan of 

a capital lease coniract. The sale and (he capital lease related to 

these buildings are planned by June 30, 2002. 

QTE leases 

As pan of cross-operation leases (QTE lease) with distinct third 

panics, France Telecom gave and took for hire certain 

telecommunications equipmenl. The crossed rental flow and 

France Telecom remuneration were prepaid at Ihe outset of the 

contracts and, for this reason, are not shown in the above table. 

Of this remuneration, the portion which pays for the guarantee 

against third party commitments given by France Telecom is 

laken as income over the period of this guarantee. France 

Telecom estimates that the risk of the guarantee, which amounts 

to €750 million at December 31, 2001, being drawn upon is 

negligible. 

Orange in substance defeasance 

As part of the lease agreements concluded in 1995 and 1997, 

Orange pic has deposited amounts equal to the present value of 
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its rental obligations with UK financial institutions to secure 

lelters of crcdil issued by these institutions to the lessors in 

connection wilh Orange pic's rental obligalions. These funds, 

which totaled € 1.247 million ai December 31, 2001 (€ 1.221 

million at December 31. 2000 and € 1,192 million in 1999), 

logether wilh the intcresl earned Ihereon, will be used lo setile 

Orange pie's rental obligalions under ihe leases. 

The unwinding of this operation on the basis ofthe share price of 

CCIC as al December 28. 2001 would have lead France Telecom 

to pay an amounl of € 357 million to the purchasers of the shares, 

less at this date than the deferred gain on divcsimenl. 

These in substance early extinguishments of lease commitments 

result in the offset of the deposit amount and the capital lease 

obligalion. and result in a net credit which has been reflected in 

the consolidated balance sheet as deferred income that will be 

amonized to the slatcmcnt of income over the lease term on a 

straight line basis. This includes a provision, based on 

management assessment of likely outcomes, for possible future 

cosls arising for variation in interest rates or tax rales. 

Accordingly ihe related capital lease obligalions are not shown in 

the above table. 

Off balance sheet commitments related to invesiment 

securities and own shares held 

As part of ihe agreements between certain companies of the 

group and their partners within other subsidiaries or consortia, 

clauses relating to put or call oplions exist over shares held by 

partners as well as clauses relating to the transfer of such shares 

of which the most significant are: 

CC7C 

In July 2000. France Telecom sold ils remaining 17.7 million 

CCIC shares for USS 505 million, i.e. USS 28.5 per share (Note 

8). 

Since France Telecom remains contractually exposed to the risk 

of stock exchange fluctuations for the shares sold, for a period lo 

June 2002. ihe sale result has been deferred until the end ofthis 

coniraciual commitment. 

Put and call oplions over NTL preference shares 

As part of the transaction described in note 7, France Telecom 

entered into an agreement on February 17. 2000, and amended on 

December 21, 2001, with financial institutions whereby France 

Telecom may exercise, upon payment, a call oplion over all the 

NTL preferred shares held by the financial institutions, at the 

initial acquisition price i.e. USS 1.1 billion. The financial 

institutions may each sell all their shares to France Telecom at 

iniiial acquisition price, notably if Ihis call option is not exercised 

by France Telecom before March 28, 2003 or under certain 

circumstances. 

A provision for risk of € 811 million has been recorded on the 

basis ofthis commitment at December 31, 2001 (Note 8). The 

residual exposure on this commitment amounts lo €437 million 

included in the € 1.806 million mentioned in Note 8. 

MobilCom 

Orange has a call option to purchase 21.6 million shares (33% of 

ihe outstanding MobilCom shares) held by MobilCom's founding 

shareholder, which is exercisable between 2003 and 2006. 

Moreover, the founding shareholder has a put option against 

Orange regarding these shares exercisable in certain limited 

circumstances (if the France Telecom group acquires shares such 

lhal it owns more shares than the founding shareholder, or i f a 

major disagreement arises and the France Telecom group 

imposes its position on the founding shareholder through the 

contractual mediation process, or if the France Telecom group 

breaches certain material obligations of the cooperation 

framework agreement with MobilCom and MobilCom's founding 

shareholder). The exercise price of the put and call options is to 

be dcicrmined based upon fonnal evaluation opinions by 
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internationally recognized investment banks, using multi criteria 

valuations. 

If MobilCom is unable, through existing own capital resources 

and loan facilities and through addilional financing that it 

procures on its own. lo commence UMTS operations, France 

Telecom SA has a commitment under the tenns and conditions 

set out in this agreement and on ihe basis of a budget and 

business plan agreed by the France Telecom group to provide 

loans directly to MobilCom or to guarantee third party loans to 

ihe exienl of any financing necessary until the commencement of 

UMTS operations. 

The conditions of application of the cooperation framework 

agreement and of France Telecom SA's financing commitments 

are currently the subject of disagreements with the founding 

shareholder. A discussion is in progress, of which the France 

Telecom group cannot predict the outcome. 

Moreover. France Telecom group management considers, to the 

besi of its currenl knowledge, lhat the increase in borrowings 

recorded in ihe financial stalements ofthe France Telecom group 

could reach a maximum of €6 billion to €7 billion within 18 

months should Orange have io fully consolidate MobilCom, of 

which the existing credit facilities of € 6.2 billion are non 

recourse lo ihe France Telecom group. In this case, the assets of 

MobilCom, mainly represented by ihe UMTS license, would be 

reassessed based on the new business plan set up by Orange, and 

taking into accounl the existence or not of likely consolidation in 

the mobile market in Germany. France Telecom group 

managcmcnl considers that the exceptional deprecialion of the 

invesiment in MobilCom recorded in 2001 translates implicitly a 

loss of value ofthe license compared lo ils historic cost. 

Over and above ihe application ofthe contractual arrangemems. 

the sharing belween France Telecom SA and Orange of any 

financial consequences of ihe disagreements with Ihe founding 

shareholder will be determined on the basis ofa fairness opinion 

issued by internationally recognized investment banks designated 

by ihe independent directors of France Telecom SA and Orange. 

TPS A 

Following the sale by the Polish govemment in 2000 and 2001 of 

shares in the Polish operator TP SA, the consortium created by 

France Telecom and Kulczyk Holding held 47.5% of TP SA at 

October 31, 2001. The consortium also hold a call option 

enabling it to acquire 2.5% of the capital of TP SA plus one 

share, at any lime between January I . 2002 and December 31, 

2002, at a price equal to the average closing share price of TP SA 

for the 100 trading days prior to the exercise ofthe call option, 

plus 25%. Following ihis acquisition, the consortium would also 

become the majority shareholder of TP SA. Moreover, the 

consortium also holds a call option enabling il lo acquire a 

further 10% ofthe capital of TP SA in the event that the Polish 

State were to offer TP SA shares, an option exercisable at the 

same price as that proposed to institutional investors within this 

offer. The shareholder agreement between France Telecom and 

Kulczyk Molding includes the following clauses relating to the 

transfer of TP SA shares: (i) France Telecom has a preemption 

right over any transfer of TP SA shares by Kulczyk Holding : (ii) 

France Telecom has a call option enabling il lo purchase from 

Kulczyk Holding its original invesiment of 10% in TP SA and 

its investment of 3.57% after July 2006 or earlier in the event of 

change of control or of violation of Kulczyk Holding 's 

obligations, at a price equal to the higher ofthe acquisition cosl 

plus accrued interest and markel value of (he shares: (iii) 

Kulczyk Holding holds a put option enabling it to sell to France 

Telecom its original investment of 10% in TP SA and its further 

investment of 3.57% between October 2003 and January 2007, al 

a price equal (o its acquisition cost plus accrued interest less 

dividends paid; the banks who financed the purchase by Kulczyk 

Holding of TP SA shares can also demand that France Telecom 

lakes possession of all the shares which the banks may hold as 

security at a price equal to the residual credit plus interest. The 

amount of this commitment amounts to approximaicly 

E 1.7 billion at December 31, 2001. 

E.On 

Following the agreements in relation to the purchase by France 

Telecom of the 42.5% interest which E.On held in the capital of 

Orange Communicaiions SA (Switzerland), approximately 75% 
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of llic payments due to E.On were made through the delivery of 

102.7 million Orange SA shares at the IPO. In this context, 

France Telecom agreed put and call options with E.On which 

were the subject of an amendment on January 28, 2002. Under 

the terms of these amended options, in June 2002, (i) E.On has 

the right to sell to France Telecom the Orange SA shares which il 

holds at a price of 6 9.25 per share (i.e, a total of € 950 million) 

and (ii) France Telecom has the right to purchase the Orange SA 

shares which E.On holds at a price of € 11.25 per share (i.e. a 

total of € 1.155 million). E.On has the ability to sell its Orange 

SA shares in an orderly manner. Given the value in use of 

Orange no provision was set up at December 31, 2001. 

li'incl hijostnuhi 

France Telecom and End agreed lo undertake an initial public 

offering of Wind as soon as possible after the merger on January 

2. 2002 of Infostrada and Wind. France Telecom holds an option 

to purchase a portion of Ihe Wind shares held by Enel, with a 

floor and a ceiling price, sufficient to increase its equity interest 

in Wind to 76.6% of End's inlerest. This option can be exercised 

at any moment between July 31, 2003 and January 31. 2004. 

Moreover, France Telecom also holds a put option of its Wind 

shares io Enel at markel value on a 100% basis (as defined by 

independent experts) exercisable at any moment in the event ofa 

disagreement between France Telecom and End concerning 

Wind. Put and call oplions are also planned in the event of a 

blockage, violation of obligalions or change in ownership ofthe 

shareholders. 

San Salvador CTE 

France Telecom sold in March 2000 24.5% oflhe shares which it 

held in the capital of Estel Co. LLC ("Estel") to Central America 

Communicaiions LLC ("CAC"). In ihe context of this sale, 

France Telecom granted CAC a put option exercisable in case of 

default of CAC under the terms ofthe credit agreement between 

CAC and Citybank. The price varies belween: 

S134.8 million for all 490 CAC shares in Estel before 

September 16. 2003 latest falling lo 

• $101.1 million belween September 17, 2003 and 

September 16, 2004, then 

• $67.4 million between September 17. 2004 and 

September 16, 2005, and 

• $33.7 million between September 15, 2005 and June 

16. 2007. 

Equani Contingent Value Rights (CVR) 

In the conlcxt of the acquisition of Equant, France Telecom 

issued CVR to certain beneficiaries (Nole 3). This commitment 

resulted in a provision for the maximum risk (Notes 3 and 18), 

France Telecom Dominicana 

The joint shareholder has an option to sell its 14% interest in the 

company between 2003 and 2007 at market value. 

B/TCO (Thailand) 

If one of the shareholders docs not respect their commitments, 

the other shareholders can at any moment exercise a call option 

equal to 80% of markel value or a put option over their own 

shares at a price equal to 120% of market value. Moreover, given 

the current legislation in Thailand, the group can in no case 

increase its interest in BITCO beyond its current interest of 49%. 

TPS 

France Telecom signed with TFI in December 2001 a 

memorandum of understanding to sell its share in the satellite 

offer TPS for €128.7 million (Note 7). 

Commitments linked to holdings of own shares 

Own shares of France Telecom held by Deutsche Telekom 

France Telecom has an option to purchase, at any time between 

January 1, 2002 and January 31, 2003, 20,492,292 of its shares, 

representing 1.8% of its share capital, held by Deutsche Telekom 

at a price determined on the basis of the then prevailing market 
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price. If France Telecom does nol exercise ihis option. Deutsche 

Telekom may exercise a put option requiring France Telecom to 

purchase these shares on January 31. 2003 under the same terms. 

Own shares of France Telecom held by Vodafone 

As described in nole 3. France Telecom is commitled to 

repurchase all the France Telecom shares held by Vodafone in 

conneclion wilh ihe acquisition ofOrange pic. The third and final 

tranche of the repurchase, of 49.7 million shares, is lo be 

perfonned on March 25, 2002, for E 4.9 billion. 

Commitments linked to sales of receivables 

Secttritizalio nofreccivabl es 

As part of the Securilizalion program sel out in Nole 9. the 

beneficial interests subscribed by France Telecom in ihe Fonds 

Cornmun de Creances have been pledged. 

Sales of carry back receivables 

As pari of the sale of carry back receivables resulting from the 

choice to carry back tax losses for the years 2000 and 2001, as 

set out in Note 26, France Telecom has guaranteed the 

receivables sold to the credit institution and is committed to 

indemnify it for any error or inexactitude noted in the amounts or 

nature ofthe receivables sold. 

Sale of future receivables from the French Stale 

As part ofthe sale of fuiure receivables from the French State set 

out in Nole IS, France Telecom has guaranteed to the assignee 

instiiuiton the existence and amount of the receivables sold and is 

committed to indemniiy it to this regard. 

Sundry commitments 

Apart from the commitments set out in Notes 14 and 15. France 

Telecom has issued no guarantee on ils financial debt nor is il 

bound by any commiimeni beyond those normally subscribed in 

financing coniracts. 

In the ordinary course of business, the group gives certain 

guarantees of which the mosi significant at December 31, 2001 

arc as follows: 

• Shares and sundry olher assets held by the Orange group 

have been pledged to lending financial institutions (or given 

as security), as collateral for bank loans and credit lines, 

amounting to € 3,936 million, of which E 3,679 million has 

been drawn al December 31, 2001; 

• A counter guarantee of € 169 million has been given to End 

to cover the guarantee granted by Enel to financial 

instilutions in the context of Wind's deferred UMTS license 

payment; 

• A guarantee of a maximum of € 104 million has been given 

to a joint venture to be operated in common between Orange 

Svcrigc AB and the two other operators in Sweden, as part 

ofa network sharing coniract; 

• Guarantees of maximum E 49 million and € 58 million 

respectively have been given to equipmenl suppliers in the 

context ofthe network rollout'of BITCO in Thailand, The 

first guarantee is valid for a five-month period from 

November 30, 2001. The second guarantee also has a 

limiled validity duration. In February 2002, a new guarantee 

of a maximum of USS 175 million replaced these two 

guarantees. 

29. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS 

In the ordinary course of business, France Telecom is involved in 

a number of legal, and arbitration proceedings and administrative 

actions. 

The costs associated with the legal proceedings arc only accrued 

for when il is probable thai a liability will be incurred and the 

amount of that liability can be quantified or estimated within a 

reasonable range. In the latter case, an allowance is recorded to 

provide for the lower end of the range. 

France Telecom believes thai there are meritorious defenses to 

all these claims. Although the ultimate resolution of such claims 

cannot be predicted with certainty, it is France Telecom's 

opinion that their resolution will not have a material adverse 
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effect on its consolidated operating results, its aclivity or 

financial posilion. 

FTML (Lebanon) 

FTML and the Lebanese Ministry of Post and 

Telecommunications agreed in 1994 a Build, Operate and 

Transfer contract (BOT) for the construction and operation ofa 

GSM mobile telephony network in the Lebanon. A similar 

contract was granted to the competitor Libanccll. 

These two coniracts are ihe subject of disputes belween the 

Lebanese governments and the two operators. 

- on June 14. 2001. the Lebanese govemment noiified the 

cancellation of the BOT contract of FTML and thai of ils 

competilor. effective December 13, 2001. The cancellation 

and the transfer are to give rise, under the BOT comracl, to 

an indemnisation of each operator by ihe Lebanese 

govemment which may be subject to an international 

arbiiration. under the French-Lebanese agreemcnl of 

protection of investments, in the absence of a global 

agreement in ihe context ofthe negotiation and the tender for 

the two or Ihree GSM mobile lelephony licenses in Lebanon, 

anticipated within six months. 

- prior to June 14. 2001 the govemment considered that the 

operators had not respected certain clauses in iheir coniracts, 

and claimed indemnities. FTML refused these allegations 

within the context of an international arbitration, temporarily 

suspended until March 31. 2002 as part of a joinl agreement 

between FTML and Ihe Ministry of Post and 

Tclecommunicaiions with ihe goal of finding a global 

solution to the dispute. 

Competition law 

France Telecom is subject to claims made by its competitors in 

front ofthe Competition Authorities (Conseil de la concurrence) 

or the European Commission for alleged abuse of dominant 

position and anli competilive behavior, of which the most 

significant claims are: 

Fixed line 

• The Conseil de la concurrence following a double claim by 

Cegetel / Tele 2 ordered on December 19, 2001 that France 

Telecom was to suspend immediately the commercialization 

of four lariff offers until the olher operators were able to 

propose equivalent offers. France Telecom has three months 

lo migrate lo new offers those customers who subscribed to 

the offer. 

Inlernet high-speed access 

The France Telecom group has been accused in several disputes 

related to the different internet high-speed access markets, 

susceptible to give rise to the pronouncement of financial 

sanctions or damages and interests against the group. 

• Under a decision on February 27. 2002, the Conseil de la 

concurrence ordered France Telecom to suspend 

commercialization of the ADSL of Wanadoo Interactive 

in ils agencies until France Telecom provides to all 

inlemet access providers a computerized lool enabling 

mass handling of high speed internet access requests with 

France Telecom. France Telecom has lodged an appeal to 

cancel this decision wilh the Paris Cour d'appel. 

• 9Telecom requested that the Conseil de la concurrence 

fine France Telecom for non respect of the decision of 

the Conseil of February 18. 2001. which ordered France 

Telecom to propose the operators an ADSL access offer 

enabling them to compete effectively both through the 

price and the nature of services offered, On July 16, 

2001, the Conseil de la concurrence announced a halt in 

the procedure, lo enable a full enquiry. 

• On December 21. 2001. Wanadoo Interactive was 

informed by the European Commission of claims against 

the company's tariffs for the high-speed internet services 

Wanadoo ADSL and Pack X-Tense throughout 2001. The 

Commission considers lhal the price policy of Wanadoo 

Interactive since the beginning of 2001 constitutes an 

abuse of dominant posilion. 
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30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Pramindo Ikal 

On February 20, 2002, the shareholders of Pramindo Ikat signed 

wilh Perusahaan Perseroan (Pcrsora) PT Tclckommukasi 

Indonesia TBK a memorandum of understanding to sell their 

shares al a price of USS 339 million (of which 40% for France 

Telecom), which will be paid after the sale in ten quarterly 

payments wilh interest. 

TDF 

On February 22, 2002. France Telecom signed a letter of 

intention with ihe group Caisse des depots and the investment 

funds Charterhouse Capital Developmenl and CDC Equity 

Capital for the acquisition of 100% of the TDF group by a new 

siruclure. This iransaclion would value the entire TDF group 

between £ 2 billion and 6 2.3 billion of which £ 2 billion arc lo 

be paid to France Telecom upon the transaction and E 300 

million (bearing interest at 7% per annum) are io be paid by the 

investors to France Telecom under the form of an increase in 

price at the lime of divestmeni of iheir shares and on ihe basis of 

the return on investmeni achieved. France Telecom is lo 

subscribe for 35% oflhis new structure. 

31. COM PEN SAT ION OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS AND THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE 

The aggregate amounl of remuneration allocated to directors 

and members ofthe executive committee of France Telecom SA 

amounted to approximately € 5.27 million in 2001. 

The directors of France Telecom do not receive any 

compensation for their services as directors other than 

reimbursement of expenses incidental to their aitendancc at 

Board of Directors meelings. 
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32 • LIST OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES AND 

AFFILIATES AT DECEMBER 31, 2001 

The main changes in consolidation scope in 2001 are set out 
in Notes 3 and 7. 

Orange Segment 
Companv Interest Contro l Coun try 

FULLY CONSOLIDATED 
COMPANIES 

Oninge SA 84.17 84.17 France 

Orange Int. Developments Ltd 84.17 lOO.Ofl Bahamas 

Wirel'ree Services Belgium 84.17 100.1)0 Belgium 

Mohistar Corporale Solutions 42.75 100.00 Belgium 

Mobistar 42.75 50.79 Belgium 

Vista Cellular 42.93 51.00 Botswana 

Company Camerounaise de 88.92 100.00 Cameroon 

Mobiles 

Kapid Link 56.39 67.00 China 

Company Ivoirienne de Mobiles 71.54 85.00 Ivory Coast 

Orange A/S 45.1(1 100.00 Denmark 

Omrikjc Holding A/S 45.10 53.58 Denmark 

Wirel'ree Services Denmark A/S 84.17 100.00 Denmark 

Orange World. Inc. 84.17 100.00 US 

Wildfire Communicaiions. Inc. 84.17 100.00 US 

Inventmobilc 78.93 100.00 France 

Mobi le Internet for Business 92.10 100.00 France 

Orange Caraibes 84.19 100.00 France 

Orange Clients 84.19 100.00 France 

Orange Distr ibut ion 84.19 100.00 France 

Orange France SA 84.19 100.00 France 

Orange Reunion 84.19 100.00 France 

Orange Promotions 84.19 100.00 France 

Orange Services 84.19 100.00 France 

Orange International SAS 84.17 100,00 France 

Orange Supports & Consult ing 84.19 100.00 France 

Rapp 6 84.19 100.00 France 

Telsca 52.73 75.50 Mauritius 

Company Malgachc de Mobiles 34.75 65.90 Madagascar 

Dutchtone 84.17 100.00 Netherlands 

Dutchione Retail 84.17 100.00 Netherlands 

France Telecom Dominicana 72.38 86.00 Dominican 

Republic 

Orange Romania (Mobi lKom) 57.08 67.81 Romania 

Ananova 84.17 100.00 UK 

Orange pic 84.17 100.00 UK 

Orange Cellular Services Ltd 84.17 100.00 UK 

Orange Mobile Data Ltd 84.17 _ 100.00 UK 

Orange Paging (UK) Ltd 84.17 100.00 UK 

Orange Personal Communications 84.17 100.00 UK 

Services Ltd 

Orange Retail Ltd 84.17 100.00 UK 

Orange Holdings Ltd ct ses filialcs 84.17 100.00 UK 

Orange Holdings (UK) L t d . 84.17 100.00 UK 

Orange Overseas Holdings n 0 2 Ltd 84.17 100.00 UK 

A n d its subsidiaries 

Orange 3G Ltd 84.17 100.00 UK 

The Point Communicaiions Ltd 84.17 100.00 U K 

Globtel 54.10 64.27 Slovakia 

Globtel Net 71.54 85.00 Slovakia 

Orange Svcrigc 82.45 97.96 Sweden 

Orange Communications SA 83.96 99.75 Switzerland 

( "OCH") 

PROPORTIONALLY 

CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES 

Darty France Telecom 42.10 50.00 France 

Fidecall 42.10 50.00 France 

EQUITY ACCOUNTED 
COMPANIES 

Mobi lCom A G 23.83 28.31 Germany 

NewsTakcs 21.04 25.00 US 

Wind Telccomunicazioni 22.37 26.58 Italy 

Book2cat.com Holdings Ltd 35.13 41.74 UK 

Bangkok Inter Teletech Company 41.24 49.00 Thailand 

(BITCO) 
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Segment Wanadoo 
Companv Interest Conirol Country 

FULLY CONSOLIDATED 

COMPANIES 

Wanadoo SA 73.68 73,68 France 

Wanadoo Belgium 73.68 100.00 Belgium 

Wanadoo International 73.68 100.00 Belgium 

Pages Jauncs do Brasil 73.68 100.00 Brazil 

Telclistas 73.68 100.00 Brazil 

Activos Mass Market 73.68 100.00 Spain 

Indice Multimedia 69.67 94.56 Spain 

Wanadoo Esparto 73.68 100.00 Spain 

FIT Production 73.68 100.00 France 

Kompass France 73.68 100.00 France 
Marcopoly 73.68 100.00 France 

Nordnet 73.68 100.00 France 

Pages Jaunes 73.68 100.00 France 

Wanadoo Data 73.68 100.00 France 

Wanadoo Interactive Cable 73.68 100.00 France 
Wanadoo Edition 46.96 63.74 France 

Wanadoo E-Mcrchant 73.68 100.00 France 

Wanadoo Interactive 73.68 100.00 France 

Wanadoo Ponails 73.68 100.00 France 

Wanadoo Services Pro 73.68 100.00 France 

Maroc Connect 66.31 90.00 Morocco 

Euronct Inlemet 73.68 100.00 Netherlands 

Freeserve holding pic 73.68 100.00 UK 

Iiabyworld.com Ltd 73.68 100.00 UK 

Frccscrvc.com 73.68 100.00 UK 

Freeserve Auctions Ltd 64.73 87.85 UK 

Imracus Ltd 73.68 100.00 UK 

Freeserve Investment Ltd 73.68 100.00 UK 

F3B Propcrtv Companv 73.68 100.00 UK 

EQUITY ACCOUNTED 
COMPANIES 

Eurodircctorv 36.84 50.00 Luxembourg 
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Fixed line, voice and data services in France Fixed line, voice and data services in France 
segment segment 
Companv Interest Control Counlrv Company Interest Control Country 

FULLY CONSOLIDATED FULLY CONSOLIDATED 

COMPANIES COMPANIES 

Almerys 60.00 60.00 France FT Transmissions Audiovisuclles 100.00 100.00 France 

Cil Com 99.97 99.97 France GIE Innovacom 92.49 100.00 France 

Cogecom 100.00 100.00 France Globe cast Reportages 100.00 100.00 France 

Cognac Jay Image 100.00 100.00 France Immobilierc FT 100.00 100.00 France 

CV2F 100.00 100.00 France Immobilicrc ISIS 100.00 100.00 France 

CVF 86.00 86.00 France Innovacom SA 100.00 100.00 France 

Etrali SA lOO.(H) 100.00 France Innovacom 1 100.00 100.00 France 

Expend Consulling 100.00 100.00 France Iniclmatiquc 100.00 100.00 France 

Expend FM 100.00 100.00 France Intcipac 100.00 100.00 France 

France 102 Sludio 100.00 100.00 France Montcnay Video 100.00 100.00 France 

France Television Enircprise 65.84 65.84 France NEDFI 51.61 51.61 France 

France Telecom EOT 100.00 100.00 France Rapp Fin 1 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable 100.00 100.00 France Regie T France 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Angers 100.00 100.00 France Rcsocom Services 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Allanlique 100.00 100.00 France Sctib 99.99 99.99 France 

FT Cable Avignon 100.00 100.00 France SFET 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Bassin Parisien 100.00 100.00 France Sofratev 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Bordeaux 100,00 100.00 France TDF Cable Ccnod 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Coied'Opalc. 100.00 100.00 France TDF Cable Esi 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Drome 100.00 100.00 France TDF Video Service 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Lille 100.00 100.00 France TdeDifTusion dc France (TDF) 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Lorraine 100.00 100.00 France Tdinvcst ct scs filialcs 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Marseille 100.00 100.00 France Transpac 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Montpellicr 100.00 100.00 France Viaccess 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Region 100.00 100.00 France Visual TV 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Rennes 100.00 100.00 France Voltaire Image 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Cable Rouen 99.99 99.99 France W-HA 100.00 100.00 France 

EQUITY ACCOUNTED 

FT Cable SIRCA 100.00 100.00 France COMPANIES 

FT Cable Tours 99.69 99.69 France 

FT e-busincss 100.00 100.00 France CNTP 50.00 50.00 France 

FT In imo 100.00 100.00 France Tcchnocom 49.91 49.91 France 

FT Iniino Holding 100.00 100.00 France Tdcvision Par Satellite (SNC) 16.46 25.00 France 

FT Immo Invcsiissement 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Multimedia 2 100.00 100.00 France 

FT Technologic Invcsiissement 100.00 100.00 France 

FTTenninaux 100.00 100.00 France 
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Fixed line, voice and data services outside Fixed line, voice and data services outside France 
France segment segment 

Companv Interest Control Counirv Company Interest Control Countrv 

FULLY CONSOLIDATKD FULLY CONSOLIDATED 
COMPANlliS COMPANIES 

FT Deutschland GmbH 100.00 100.00 Germany Global One Communication 100.00 100.00 Ireland 

Financiera S.A. 100.00 100.00 Argentina World Operations 

Sofrecom Consultora 100.00 100.00 Argentina Etrali SRL 100.00 100.00 Italy 

Atlas Services Belgium 100.00 100.00 Belgium Etrali KK 100.00 100.00 Japan 

Mobinvesi 75.75 90.00 Belgium JIT CO 88.00 88.00 Jordan 

Cl-Tclcom 45.90 51.00 Ivory Coast FTM Liban 67.00 67,00 Lebanon 
Atlas Services Denmark 100.00 100.00 Denmark Regie T Mexico 75.00 75.00 Mexico 

Menatcl 47.00 47.00 Egypt Voxlcl 53.23 53.64 Moldavia 

Catalana 75.00 75.00 Spain FT Network Services Norway 100.00 100.00 Norway 
Etrali Espagne 100.00 100.00 Spain Casein a 86.00 100.00 Netherlands 

Madrid Films 100.00 100.00 Spain DFI 100.00 100.00 Netherlands 
Mcdialatina 100.00 100.00 Spain Dutchtone Group BV 86.00 86.00 Netherlands 
Uni2 100.00 100.00 Spain FT Services Ncderland 100.00 100.00 Ncihcrlands 
NR.M 100.00 100.00 Spain Global One Communications 100.00 100.00 Netherlands 
Estel 51.00 51.00 US Services 
Etrali Nortli America 100.00 100.00 US Global One Communications 100.00 100,00 Ncihcrlands 
FCR America 100.00 100.00 US World Services 
FT Network LLC 100.00 100.00 us Equani NV (ci ses filialcs)111 54.17 54.17 Netherlands 

FT Participations US 100.00 100.00 us Ncwsforee & ses filialcs 100.00 100,00 Ncihcrlands 

Globecast N.A 100.00 100.00 us TFN 100.00 100.00 Netherlands 
Atrium 3 100.00 100.00 France PSN 100.00 100,00 Poland 

E2CS 100.00 100.00 France TOUT 100.00 100,00 Poland 
Etrali International 100.00 100.00 France FT Network Services UK 100.00 100.00 UK 
France Cables ct Radio 100.00 100.00 France FTMAN UK 100.00 100.00 UK 
FT/FCR Senegal 100.00 100.00 France Etrali UK 100.00 100.00 UK 
FCR Cote d'l voire 90.00 90.00 France FT Participations UK 100.00 100,00 UK 
FT Developpement International 100.00 100.00 France Globecast N.E 100.00 100.00 UK 
FTF1 100.00 100.00 France CTE 26.01 51,00 Salvador 
FT Marine 100.00 100.00 France CTE Telecom Personal 26.01 100,00 Salvador 
FT Mobiles International 100.00 100.00 France Publicom 22.99 51,00 Salvador 
FT Publtphonie International 100.00 100.00 France Publitcl 26.01 100,00 Salvador 
FT Services 100.00 100.00 France Telecom ODA 45.08 100,00 Salvador 
Silcx 100.00 100.00 France Sonatcl 42.33 42,33 Senegal 
Rapp 10 100.00 100.00 France Sonaicl Mobiles 42.33 100,00 Senegal 
Sofrecom 100.00 100.00 France Etrali Singapore PTE 100.00 100.00 Singapore 
Stellal 70.00 70.00 France FT Network Services Sweden 100.00 100.00 Sweden 
TDF Internationa! 100.00 100.00 France Etrali Suisse 100.00 100,00 Switzerland 
Etrali MK 100.00 100.00 Hong Kong FT Network Services Switzerland 100.00 100,00 Switzerland 
Rincom 100.00 100.00 Mauritius Global One Swiss Sales too.oo 100,00 Switzerland 
Safcable 100.00 100,00 Mauritius FCR Vietnam PTE Ltd 74.00 74,00 Vielnam 
Global One Communications 100.00 100.00 Ireland 
Operations 

Global One Communication 
GBN Holding 

100.00 100.00 Ireland 

1 1 1 Including Global One Communicaiions World 
Holding BV and Global One Communications 
Holding B V from June 29, 2001 (Note 3) 
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Fixed line, voice and data services outside 
France segment 
Company Intcresl Control Counirv 

PROPORTIONALLY 
CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES 

DT-FT Italian Holding GmbH 50.00 50.00 Germany 
ECMS 36.36 71.25 Egypt 
MMEA 36.33 71.25 Egypt 
MobiNil 71.25 71.25 Egypt 
Globecast Espatla S.L. 50.72 50.72 Spain 
EBTC 49.00 49.00 Estonia 
Digita 49.00 49.00 Finland 
Cell Plus 40.00 40.00 Mauritius 
Telecom Mauritius 40.00 40.00 Mauritius 
Telecom Plus 58.00 70.00 Mauritius 
Mobilecom 35.20 40.00 Jordan 
JTC 35.20 40.00 Jordan 
Metroholdings 50.00 50.00 UK 

EQUITY ACCOUNTED 

COMPANIES 

Nortel Inversora 25.52 50.00 Argentina 
Publicom 13.97 50.00 Argentina 
Telecom Argentina 13.97 50.00 Argentina 
Telecom Personal 13.97 50.00 Argentina 
Intelig 25.00 25.00 Brazil 
Ax ion 40.00 40.00 Spain 
Pramindo Ikal 40.00 40.00 Indonesia 
Nucleo 9.43 50,00 Paraguay 
PTK 34.00 34.00 Poland 
TP SA 33.93 33.93 Poland 
Clix 43.33 43.33 Portugal 
Novis 43.33 43.33 Portugal 
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Applicant's custodian for its accounting records and supporting 
documentation: 

Charles Hartman 
Tax Director 
France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
6 lh Floor 
Herndon, VA 20171 
Tel: 703-375-4989 
Fax: 703-375-8192 

Applicant's accounting records and supporting documentation are 
maintained at: 

France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 
2300 Corporate Park Drive 
6 l h Floor 
Herndon, VA 20171 

WASHINGTON 259174v: 



EXHIBIT I 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Christine L. Zepka, hereby certify lhat on this ^ft*1" day of p ^ ^ ^ - i 2003, a true 
and correct copy of France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C.'s Application for IntraLATA 
and InterLATA resale services was sent via first class mail, postage prepaid, to the following 
parties: 

Office of Consumer Advocate 
555 Walnut Street 
5l11 Floor, Forum Place 
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1923 

Office oflhe Attorney General 
Office of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Office of Small Business Advocale 
Commerce Building, Suite 1102 
300 Norlh Second Street 
Harri sburg, PA 17101 

Julia Conover 
V. P. & General Counsel 
Venzon North, Inc. 
1717 Arch Street, Floor 32 NW 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 

All Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers within 
the Slale ofPennsylvania 

Christine L. Zepka 

WASHINGTON 25WI7v 



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 

DATE: JANUARY 30, 2003 

SUBJECT: A-311242; F0002 

TO: Bureau of Fixed Utility Services 

James J. McNulty, Secretary 

Application of France Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. 

We attach hereto a copy of the Application of France 
Telecom Corporate Solutions L.L.C. for approval to provide 
telecommunication services as a Reseller of Toll Services 
docketed at A-311242 and as a Competitive Local Exchange 
Carrier docketed at A-311242 F0002 to the public in the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, which has been captioned and 
docketed to the above number. 

The Protest period for this application will expire on 
February 12, 2003. 

This matter is being referred to your Bureau to schedule it 
for consideration by the Commission at Public Meeting. 

jih 

Attachment 

J A N 30 2003 



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVAf 
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
P. O. BOX 3265, HARRISBURG PA 17105-3265 

JANUARY 30, 2003 
IN REPLY PLEASE 

REFER TO OUR FILE 

A-311242; F0002 

WILLIAM K. COULTER & ELIZABETH HOLOWINSKI 
COUDERT BROTHERS LLP 
1627 I STREET, N.W. 
SUITE 1200 

WASHINGTON DC 20006 

Dear Mr. Coulter: 

Please be advised that the Application of France Telecom Corporate Solutions 
L.L.C. to provide telecommunications services as a Reseller of Toll Services docketed 
at A-311242, and as a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier docketed at A-311242 
F0002 to the public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, has been reviewed and 
found to be in compliance with the filing requirements of the Commission's Opinion 
and Order entered June 3, 1996, at Docket Number M-00960799. 

The protest period for this application will expire on February 12, 2003. 

This matter is being referred to the Bureau of Fixed Utility Services to schedule 
it for consideration by the Commission at Public Meeting. 

Please be advised that you now have provisional authority to do business in 
Pennsylvania. 

Should you have any further questions concerning this matter, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

InmpQ .I M r N n l t v d* James J. McNulty 
Secretary 

JJM:jih 

J A W 3 O 2003 
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PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

RECEIPT 

The addressee named here has paid the PA P.U.C. for the following bill: 

DATE 216/2003 
ELIZABETH HOLOWINSKI RECEIPT # 200635 
COUDERT BROTHERS LLP 
1627 I STREET N.W., SUITE 1200 
WASHINGTON, DC 20006 

IN RE: Application fees for FRANCE TELECOM CORPORATE SOLUTIONS 

Docket Numbers A-311242 and A-311242F0002 $250.00 

REVENUE ACCOUNT: 001780-017601-102 

CHECK NUMBER: 5388 
CHECK AMOUNT: $250.00 

DOCUMEN 
FOLDER 

FEB 

C. Joseph Meisinger 
(for Department of Revenue) 

06 2003 


